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COMPTROLLER'S MESSAGE...

CAPITOL AND CAPITAL

“And in good time, in the state’s future prosperity, it is not too much to
hope that it (the State House) may yet be restored to his ideals.”

These were the words expressed in 1904 by Charles C. Wilson who admired
the capitol design of Major John R. Niernsee, the architect who designed
South Carolina’s capitol building in 1854,

South Carolina’s capitol experienced many alterations in its design,
disasters from war and insufficient funds.

Even now, the State House is experiencing a major renovation for its
preservation as, in the words of Charles C. Wilson, “one of the most notable

buildings of the world.”

Just as the capitol building continues to evolve, South Carolina’s economy
is achieving a “present prosperity” unequaled and unexcelled in the nation.

CAPITOL AND CAPITAL.

Together!

EARLE E. MORRIS, JR.
COMPTROLLER GENERAL




RETRIEVING A TREASURE

Like the State itself, South Carolina’s venerable State House stands scarred
and battered, proud and stately, imperfect, immutable, and infinitely
renewable.

No single structure more faithfully reflects the remarkable history of
America’s most enigmatic state. Grand in scale and noble in design, the
State House was conceived as a monument to the power and wealth of
antebellum South Carolina. Its footings were deep in the soil which
nourished the State’s plantation system, and its temple-like proportions
bespoke the tradition and ambitions of the State.

The Civil War interrupted that construction, and only a roofless shell of the
uncompleted structure stood at the outbreak of the conflict that challenged
and ultimately destroyed the plantation system. Targeted for bombardment
in the final weeks of the war, the building survived as a mutation of earlier
designs, rendered usable as the State’s government center only by makeshift
alterations.

Over time, the structure was strengthened and stabilized. While the
grandeur of the original concept was never achieved, the State House
emerged with a nobility wrought of hardship and ordeal. Its very sturdiness
bespeaks the durability of a state that has also built on its own hardship and
ordeal and has emerged unified, tempered and strengthened by the
experience.



As the new millennium approaches, South Carolina has revisited its beloved
State House and has retrieved and restored much of its earlier grandeur.
The pages of this report, featuring material from an upcoming book on the
State House by University of South Carolina’s Professor John M. Bryan, tell
of that renovation and bring to life much of the history contained within the
walls and foundations of this remarkable building.

This report also tells of the growing economic strength of the State, the
financial responsibility of its government, and the stewardship with which
South Carolina shepherds the assets and treasures of its past, present, and
future.



Photograph is not available
in web version of CAFR

The principal architect of the present State House, Niernsee moved from Baltimore
and lived in Columbia from 1855 through 1865, during the first period of
construction.
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Introductory

Section

North Elevation, A. W. Todd, 1911, courtesy of the South
Carolina Department of Archives and History

Todd's plan included an enlarged dome and
was based upon the U.S. Capitol. Todd, an
architect, was a member of the House from
Charleston (1909-1914 and 1921-1922); he
also served in the South Carolina Senate
(1923-1924). He was on the Public
Buildings Committee when he submitted a
plan to enlarge the State House with wings
Photograph is not available and a dome based on the U.S. Capitol.

in web version of CAFR

Plan, A. W. Todd, 1911, courtesy of the South Carolina
Department of Archives and History

J. R. Niernsee's original plan did not
include bathrooms, elevators, electricity, or
adequate offices. The original granite
construction made interior alterations
difficult. Todd suggested putting service
functions in the proposed wings.
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December 2, 1997

To the Citizens, Governor and
Members of the South
Carolina General Assembly

It is my pleasure to present to the citizens of South Carolina this
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the State of South Carolina for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 1997. The report provides financial information about the State's
operations during the year and describes its financial position at the end of the year.

Contained in the report is information for the use of all those interested in the
State's finances, including South Carolina taxpayers, members of the General
Assembly and directors of the State's executive agencies as well as those investors
and creditors with whom the State has an ongoing business relationship.

As the Comptroller General and chief financial officer of South Carolina, I
present these financial statements as my representations, and I express confidence that
the information is accurate in all material respects. The citizens of South Carolina
may be further assured that this report contains all material facts about the State's
financial condition and thereby reflects my total commitment to accountability to the
taxpayers through full public disclosure. A report issued in 1997 by the South
Carolina Legislative Audit Council determined that the Comptroller General’s Office
had complied with all applicable laws and regulations.

For the convenience of users, we have divided the report into three sections as
follows:

® The Introductory Section, containing this letter of transmittal, the
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting for
the June 30, 1996 report, a list of State officials and an organizational
chart of State government.

e The Financial Section, consisting of the general purpose financial
statements (combined statements, component unit combining

e, ]
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statements, and notes), required supplementary information, other
combining financial statements, and schedules.

e The Statistical Section, presenting comparative financial data and other
non-financial data.

MAJOR INITIATIVES

South Carolina addressed several major components of long-term and mid-
term economic growth and stability during the current session of the General
Assembly, specifically targeting public education, infrastructure, and tax relief for
significant attention.

Education provisions included the following:
e Financial commitment to full-day kindergartens.
® Requirement of additional credits for high school graduation.

e Funding of incentive college scholarships for outstanding high school
students.

e Establishment of a tuition prepayment plan.

® Provision for teacher salaries to exceed regional averages.

Significant among initiatives for the General Assembly was the priority
attention given to the State’s infrastructure needs, particularly in the area of
transportation needs.  Legislators created the South Carolina Transportation
Infrastructure Bank (the Bank), an entity empowered to make loans, issue bonds,
enter into contracts, and establish related policies and procedures. The State’s
infrastructure needs are estimated at $50 billion over the next twenty years.

The legislation establishing the Bank also created the Division of Regional
Government within the State Budget and Control Board, the State’s central
management agency, to coordinate planning among local and regional governments,
as well as among State agencies. A statewide infrastructure plan will be presented to
the General Assembly in the early spring of 1998.

Addressing more immediate capital needs, the General Assembly authorized
the issuance of State capital improvement bonds totaling $250.660 million of which
$150.625 million is planned for use by the State’s universities and colleges (including
technical colleges).

Legislators appropriated $14.200 million in additional monies to fund
property tax relief, raising the total relief for the year to $227.900 million, and South
Carolinians age 65 and over will receive an increase in their income tax exemption
from $10,000 to $11,500. Further tax restrictions were enacted by legislation that
limited the authority of political subdivisions to raise or create taxes or fees.

Key automobile-related legislation tightened experience and training
requirements for young drivers and provided comprehensive changes in the State’s
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automobile insurance market. These and other insurance provisions are designed to
draw more automobile insurers into the State.

ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK

Over the last two decades the economy of South Carolina has grown faster
than that of the rest of the country. Businesses have migrated here from all over the
world to take advantage of the State’s skilled labor force, competitive wages, lower-
priced land, excellent port facilities, accessibility to markets, and in recent years,
substantial tax incentives. Since 1970, industry has made $53 billion of investments
in plants within the State.

The State’s recreation and retirement industries have also been rapidly
growing economic sectors over the last two decades. Each year more retirees move
here to take advantage of the area’s mild climate, lower cost of living and special tax
incentives for people over 65 years of age. The number of individuals receiving
Social Security retirement pay has grown at a rapid average annual rate of 4.3% since
1970. The annual income from retirement now exceeds an estimated $6 billion.

The State’s coastal areas have emerged as one of the leading recreation centers
on the east coast, providing even more stimulus to South Carolina’s growing
economy. Personal income in Horry County, which includes the Myrtle Beach area,
has grown at an extraordinary 10.6% per year over the last two decades and exceeds
$3 billion.

Since 1970, nearly 400,000 people have migrated to the State to take
advantage of a growing economy and to retire here. Total personal income of South
Carolina has grown over nine-fold, one-fifth faster than growth in personal income in
the United States. During the high inflationary 1970’s personal income grew at an
average annual compound rate of 11.8% compared to a much lower 10.6%
nationwide. Even in the lower inflationary 1980’s personal income in South Carolina
grew a healthy 8.5% per year, compared to a lesser 7.7% nationwide. Employment in
South Carolina over the last two decades has grown one-third faster than in the United
States as a whole.

Although South Carolina has been one of the poorer states in the nation since
the War Between the States, the State is closing the gap in wealth between it and the
rest of the country. In 1970, per capita income of South Carolina was only 74% of
the national average, but it has since increased to 82% of the national average.

The State’s economy has begun fiscal year 1997-98 on a positive footing.
Funds are available to help prevent budgetary reductions in the event of an economic
slowdown during the fiscal year. Employment in the State was up by nearly 170,000
in August 1997 versus its level during the recession of 1991. Although statistics for
the fiscal year were not yet available from the Department of Commerce, the State’s
Board of Economic Advisors estimated that personal income growth was in the
healthy range of 5% to 6%.

12
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Last year the State passed the Rural Development Act of 1996 to further
enhance the attractiveness of businesses to locate in rural sections of the State by
substantially increasing the tax incentives for which companies may be eligible.
Through September 1997, more than three hundred companies have taken advantage
of the tax incentive package offered by the State. Recently, Honda of America has
announced the location of a facility to build all-terrain vehicles in Florence, South
Carolina. Bridgestone/Firestone, Inc., also has announced the construction of a multi-
million dollar manufacturing facility in Aiken, South Carolina. In addition to these
projects, there have been other announcements of new plants or additions to existing
plants in the State which will contribute to the State’s continued growth.

The State’s Board of Economic Advisors reported that the State’s Budgetary
General Fund revenue collections at the end of the first four months of fiscal year
1997-98 were greater than anticipated. Accordingly, on November 10, 1997, the
Board of Economic Advisors increased its estimate of fiscal year 1997-98 revenues
by $64.106 million. The Income Tax and Sales Tax, the State’s two leading sources
of revenues, were both healthy, indicating that the State’s economy was growing as
expected.

FINANCIAL CONTROLS
Internal Control Structure

The Statewide Accounting and Reporting System (STARS) is the State's
budgetary-basis operating accounting system. This double-entry system, installed in
1981-82, processes cash and budgetary transactions and maintains records for all
budgeted funds and some unbudgeted funds. The State's higher education institutions
and most of the enterprise entities maintain separate accrual-basis accounting
systems.

An automated system in the Comptroller General's Office designed to allow
reporting in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP)
converts budgetary-basis STARS data into the format presented in this report. State
agencies that use STARS complete forms at year-end to adjust the budgetary-basis
balances to conform with GAAP. The Comptroller General's Office enters data into
the GAAP reporting system from these forms as well as from audited financial
statements for the higher education institutions, component units, and most State
enterprise entities.

The State's internal control structure provides reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance that:

® Assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorized use or
disposition,

® Transactions are executed in accordance with management's
authorization, and
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® Transactions are recorded properly to permit the preparation of general
purpose financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles.

The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that the cost of a control
should not exceed the resulting benefits.

Budgetary Controls

South Carolina's annual Appropriation Act includes legally adopted budgets
for the Budgetary General Fund and for aggregated Other Budgeted Funds. Except
for the Retail Sales Tax and selected other taxes estimated on a modified accrual
basis, the State estimates revenues on a cash receipts basis. Appropriations for
1996-97 covered all expenditures deemed applicable to that year and paid on or
before July 18, 1997. Agencies may carry forward up to 10% of unexpended
Budgetary General Fund appropriations to the next year. Any remaining unexpended
Budgetary General Fund appropriations lapse unless the Appropriation Act
specifically authorizes agencies to carry them forward to the next fiscal year.

State law does not require encumbrance accounting. Accordingly, the State
does not record encumbrances (except for some higher education institutions). The
State currently maintains budgetary control for expenditures at the level of summary
object category within each program of each organizational unit. Except for accounts
of higher education institutions, STARS checks to be sure that an account has
sufficient remaining appropriations before it will charge an expenditure to that
account. Organizational units may request transfers of appropriations among object
categories and/or among programs within the same budgetary fund. The Budget and
Control Board has authority to approve these appropriation transfers within certain
limits.

The initial budget appears in the annual Appropriation Act. The Budget and
Control Board reduces the Budgetary General Fund's appropriations during the year if
it anticipates a year-end operating deficit. Likewise, the State Board of Economic
Advisors may approve revisions of estimated revenues of the Budgetary General
Fund during the year. One such upward revision was approved in February 1997.

During 1996-97, the General Assembly passed a Supplemental Appropriations
Act that added $148.696 million of additional appropriations to the Budgetary
General Fund for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1997. Of this amount, $3.374 million
was used to fund the General Reserve, and the remaining $145.322 million was
appropriated and reserved as Appropriations to be Carried Forward to 1997-98.

State law specifies procedures for processing requested budget changes in
Other Budgeted Funds and for permanent improvement projects.

THE REPORTING ENTITY

The State's reporting entity includes all of the funds and account groups that
make up the primary government of the State of South Carolina as well as its

14



State of South Carolina
—

component units. The funds and account groups of the primary government are under
the oversight of the State's General Assembly and the Budget and Control Board. The
primary government consists of agencies, departments, funds, and institutions that are
not legally separate from the State.

Component units are legally separate entities for which the State and its
elected officials are considered to be financially accountable. Criteria to determine
financial accountability include the ability of State officials to appoint a voting
majority of the entity's governing body, the ability of the State to impose its will on
the entity, and the potential for the entity to provide a financial benefit to the State or
impose a financial burden upon the State. The State's discretely presented component
units are: the South Carolina Public Service Authority (Santee-Cooper); South
Carolina State Ports Authority; the Savannah Lakes Regional Loan Fund; and
Enterprise Development, Incorporated, of South Carolina. Note 1a in the Notes to the
Financial Statements provides a more complete description of the State's reporting
entity.

FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

The following sections detail revenues and expenditures of the State's General
and Special Revenue Funds. In addition, for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1997,
other financing uses exceeded other financing sources for these funds by
$694.487 million.

Revenues

The State's most significant sources of revenue are its 5% retail sales tax, its
individual income tax (2.5% to 7.0% tax rates) and Federal grants. The following
schedule summarizes revenues of the General and Special Revenue Funds for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 1997 (expressed in thousands) and the amounts (expressed
in thousands) and percentages of increases (decreases) in relation to prior year

revenues:

Increase Percentage
1996-97 Percent of (Decrease) Increase

Revenues Amount Total from 1995-96 (Decrease)
Individual income tax.................ccoeooe..... $ 1,927,600 20.4% $ 118,313 6.5%
Retail sales and use tax........................ 2,141,864 22.6% 107,380 5.3%
Othertaxes.......coevvevceieiieeeen 1,163,889 12.3% 14,547 1.3%
Licenses, fees, and permits.................. 258,960 2.7% 15,458 6.3%
interest and other investment income.... 113,199 1.2% 14,471 14.7%
Federal..........cocoomnmnnii e, 3,087,312 32.6% 179,651 6.2%
Departmental services......................... 533,395 5.6% (1,722) (0.3%)
Contributions.........c.ccccvevevvececc e 115,739 1.2% 9,133 8.6%
Fines and penalties.....................c.......... 58,170 0.6% 2,830 5.1%
Other ..., 70,424 0.8% (3.215) (4.4%)
Totals......ccovvirrrecciinrenreeesinenenenens $ 9,470,552 100.0% $ 456,846 51%




State of South Carolina

16

Revenues

1996-97

Federal (32.6%)

Other (3.8%)

Departmental
services (5.6%)

Licenses, fees,

and permits
(2.7%)
Individual
Other taxes Incomeo tax
(12.3%) (20.4%)

Retail sales and
use tax (22.6%)

Interest and other investment income were higher than the previous year
because more cash was available to invest.

Expenditures

The following schedule presents a summary of General Fund and Special
Revenue Funds expenditures for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1997, (expressed in
thousands) and the amounts (expressed in thousands) and percentages of increases
(decreases) in relation to prior year expenditures:
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Increase Percentage
1996-97 Percent of (Decrease) Increase
Expenditures Amount Total from 1995-96 (Decrease)
Current:
General government..........c..oocoeeveviienas $ 351,156 4.0% $ 20,637 6.2%
Education...........ccouvime v 326,103 3.7% (53,881) (14.3%)
Health and environment........................ 3,032,995 34.8% 86,538 3.4%
Social services..........coccoerviriinieniennn, 700,442 8.1% (9,305) (1.3%)
Administration of justice........................ 543,456 6.2% 55,031 11.2%
Resources and economic development 150,131 1.7% (5,171) (3.3%)
Transportation...........cc.ccooeeeivinininenns 230,384 2.6% 12,018 5.5%
Capital outlay..........cccoveiiiiniiiiiinnns 436,798 5.0% 38,022 9.6%
Debt service:
Principal retirement............cccooocin 97,728 1.1% 14,731 17.7%
Interest and fiscal charges 53,493 0.6% 2,919 5.8%
Intergovernmental............c...ccoeeniriinnen 2,805,584 32.2% 169,144 6.4%
Totals...... $ 8,728,270 100.0% $ 330,683 3.9%

Expenditures

1996-97

General government
(4.0%)

Education (3.7%)

Intergovernmental
(32.2%)
Social services

(8.1%)

Other (3.4%) \

Capital outlay

(5.0%)
Transportation Health and
(2.6%) environment

Administration (34.8%)

of justice (6.2%)
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During fiscal year 1995-96, the Department of Education purchased school
buses to transport children using Capital Improvement Bond proceeds. Education
expenditures decreased during fiscal year 1996-97 when the school bus project was
completed.

Administration of Justice expenditures increased with the construction of the
Kershaw Correctional Institution and renovations to existing facilities. Expenditures
for correctional officer salaries and for health services and rehabilitation of inmates
also increased.

Debt Service expenditures for Capital Improvement Bond principal payments
increased for two refunding bond issues. As older debt is retired by the paying agent
when scheduled, more funds are available to pay the newer debt on the refunding
issues.

Status of Fund Balances

GAAP-basis fund balances for the General Fund and Special Revenue Funds
at June 30 (expressed in thousands) for the last five years were:

1997 1996 1995 1994 1993
General Fund
Reserved...........cooniiiiieciiinns $ 450,686 $ 545796 $ 461,303 $ 335,709 $ 153,194
Unreserved (294,233) (261,065) (202,981) (303,628) (247,475)
Total General Fund.................. $ 156,453 $ 284,731 $ 258,322 $ 32,081 $  (94,281)
Special Revenue Funds
Reserved.......c.cccenenenencicncnennn. $ 205377 $ 202,628 $ 172,487 $ 126,482 $ 94928
Unreserved, designated................ 128,640 112,144 73,946 174,827 237,559
Unreserved, undesignated............ 541,769 386,726 383,955 292,657 257,552

Total Special Revenue Funds $ 875786 $ 701,498 $ 630,388 $ 593,966 $ 590,039

The reserved component of fund balance represents amounts legally required
to be segregated and amounts that cannot be appropriated for future expenditure. The
unreserved component of fund balance is computed as total fund balance less reserved
amounts. Even for years in which the total fund balance in the General Fund was
positive, the unreserved component of fund balance was negative because the reserve
requirements exceeded total fund balance.

The designated portion of unreserved fund balance reflects tentative plans for
future use of available financial resources.

18



State of South Carolina

PROPRIETARY OPERATIONS

Primary Government

There are several proprietary segments of South Carolina's primary
government. Significant segments among these include the State Housing Finance
and Development Authority, which provides low-cost housing to the State's citizens
by issuing bonds/notes and by administering Federal contracts and grants, and the
Education Assistance Authority, which issues bonds for the purpose of making loans
to eligible students.

Financial highlights of these segments (expressed in thousands) for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 1997, are as follows:

Education

Housing Assistance
Authority Authority
Operating revenues.... $ 50,520 $ 45130
Net income............cc..... 10,282 15,629
Total assets................. 650,898 494,573
Total fund equity.......... 142,629 91,117

Discretely Presented Component Units

The State's two largest proprietary operations are discretely presented
component units.

The Public Service Authority (Santee-Cooper) is South Carolina's State-
owned public power resource. The Public Service Authority (Santee-Cooper)
produces and sells electric power to individuals, businesses, electric cooperatives and
municipal power departments. The Public Service Authority (Santee-Cooper) made
payments to the State's General Fund of $6.682 million during its fiscal year ended
December 31, 1996. The distribution to the General Fund is based primarily on
operating cash flows and mandatory reserve requirements.

The State Ports Authority develops and maintains State harbors and seaports
and handles the commerce through these ports.

Highlights of segment financial information (expressed in thousands) for
discretely presented component units for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1997, are
presented below:
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Public
Service
Authority State
(Santee- Ports
Cooper) Authority
Operating revenues.... $ 699,606 $ 71,024
Netincome................. 59,264 10,945
Total assets................. 3,464,683 396,746
Total fund equity .......... 790,996 288,585

FIDUCIARY OPERATIONS

The most significant of the State’s Fiduciary Funds are the four retirement
plans administered by the South Carolina Retirement Systems. Those plans include:
the South Carolina Retirement System, the Police Officers’ Retirement System, the
Retirement System for Members of the General Assembly, and the Retirement
System for Judges and Solicitors.

The State presents investments of its Pension Trust Funds at fair (market)
value, in accordance with Governmental Accounting Standard’s Board Statement 25,
“Financial Reporting for Defined Benefit Pension Plans and Note Disclosures for
Defined Contribution Plans”, and Statement 27, “Accounting for Pensions by State
and Local Governmental Employers.” The State has met all actuarially determined
funding requirements for the four plans administered by the South Carolina
Retirement Systems in the current period and in past periods. Under Statement 27,
the State has no pension liability at June 30, 1997, for those plans.

The South Carolina Adjutant General’s Office administers the National Guard
Pension System. The State recorded a $4.534 million pension liability in the General
Long-Term Obligations Account Group at June 30, 1997, for that plan. See Note 7,
“Retirement Plans,” in the Notes to the Financial Statements for more information.

DEBT ADMINISTRATION

The State finances many of its major capital needs by issuing bonds. Some of
this debt is general obligation debt backed by the full faith, credit and taxing power of
the State. Much of the debt, however, is revenue bonds and notes associated with
specific State agencies and discretely presented component units. Specific revenue
flows of particular agencies and discretely presented component units service revenue
debt.

Moody's Investors Service has rated South Carolina's general obligation bonds
as "Aaa," and Standard & Poor’s and Fitch Investors Service, Inc. rate these bonds as
"AAA," representing the highest ratings awarded. The Comptroller General’s Office
annually furnishes the State’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report and related
information to the bond rating firms. This process is critical to ensuring that the State
maintains its current high bond ratings. A report issued in 1997 by the South

 ________________________________________________________________________________________________|]
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—
Carolina Legislative Audit Council emphasized the usefulness of the information that
the Comptroller General’s Office provides in the determination of the State’s credit
rating.

During the fiscal year ended June 30,1997, South Carolina issued
$95.000 million and retired $94.385 million in general obligation bonds payable by
governmental funds. Of the amount issued, $45.000 million were State highway
bonds. The State budgets and pays principal and interest on capital improvement
bonds from current resources of the Budgetary General Fund. The Department of
Transportation Special Revenue Fund pays the debt service on highway bonds. At
June 30, 1997, the Higher Education Funds reported State institution general
obligation bonds outstanding of $85.365 million.

The State's available legal debt margin at June 30, 1997, was $4.635 million
for institution bonds. State law limits annual debt service expenditures rather than
directly limiting the amount of outstanding debt for general obligation bonds/notes.
The annual debt service margin at June 30, 1997, was $51.455 million for highway
bonds and $68.276 million for general obligation bonds excluding institution and
highway bonds.

Net general obligation bonds/notes outstanding per capita (which excludes
general obligation bonds payable from Higher Education Funds) is a useful indicator
to citizens, investors and management of the State's debt position. The following
table shows this amount at June 30 for the last three years:

1997 1996 1995
Net general obligation bonds/notes
outstanding.........ccccocvvinnieiinnas $967 million $965 million $854 million
Net general obligation bonds/notes
outstanding per capita................ $256 $261 $233

The General Services Fund, an Internal Service Fund, had $28.977 million of
limited obligation lease revenue bonds outstanding at June 30, 1997.

The primary government's higher education institutions and enterprise entities
had revenue bonds, notes, and certificates of participation of $1.261 billion
outstanding on June 30, 1997. Revenue bonds, notes, and certificates of participation
outstanding (expressed in thousands) by agency were:

South Carolina Housing Authority ..., $ 488,091
South Carolina Education Assistance Authority.............ccccceveveeinnen 391,915
Various higher education institutions...............ccoviiiinnnnnnns 380,647
Other State agenCies..........c.ccovvrrnciiiniin e 28
Total—primary government $ 1,260,681

In addition, discretely presented component units had the following amounts
of bonds and notes outstanding (expressed in thousands) at June 30, 1997:

15—
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South Carolina Public Service Authority (Santee-Cooper).................. $ 2,229,862
South Carolina State Ports Authority................ccoooviiiiiieee e, 86,080
Enterprise Development, INC...........coocooviiiiiiio e, 175

Total—discretely presented component units............ccouu.e.... $ 2,316,117

During its fiscal year ended December 31, 1996, the Public Service Authority
(Santee-Cooper) advance refunded $342.970 million in revenue bonds to reduce its
total debt service payments over the next twenty-seven years by approximately
$150.258 million and to obtain an economic gain of approximately $27.097 million.
For additional details, see Note 11 in the Notes to the Financial Statements.

CASH MANAGEMENT

State law requires full collateralization of all State Treasurer bank balances.
Agencies and component units may have collateralization policies that differ from
those of the State Treasurer.

Legally authorized investments vary by fund, but generally include
obligations of the United States and certain agencies of the United States, obligations
of the State of South Carolina and certain of its political subdivisions, certificates of
deposit, collateralized repurchase agreements and certain obligations of United States
corporations. For additional details, see Note 1g in the Notes to the Financial
Statements.

As provided by law, the State Treasurer deposits money in a general deposit
account. The State records earnings of the general deposit account as revenue of the
General Fund. The Treasurer deposits other monies into various special deposit
accounts, each of which retains its own earnings.

State agencies that issue their own checks participate in pooled bank accounts.
These agencies issue checks against the pooled bank accounts. Meanwhile, the State
Treasurer invests account balances until the checks clear.

Investment income for the General Fund totaled $66.896 million for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 1997.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The State generally does not purchase commercial insurance for the risks of
loss to which it is exposed. Instead, State management believes it is more economical
to manage its risk internally. Accordingly, the State sets aside assets for claim
settlement in its Internal Service Funds—specifically, in the Insurance Reserve Fund
(IRF), the Health and Disability Insurance Fund, and the State Accident Fund.

The IRF services claims for many of the risks of loss to which the State is
exposed, including the following: property insurance on government owned
buildings, the contents of such buildings, equipment, and automobiles; automobile

liability insurance on government owned vehicles and school buses; tort liability

e ——————————————————————————,—————
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insurance for government premises and operations; and medical professional liability
for hospitals. The IRF purchases insurance to cover risks where it has limited
expertise (aircraft insurance and ocean marine insurance). The IRF purchases
reinsurance to limit losses in the areas of property, boiler and machinery, automobile
liability, and medical professional liability. Reinsurance permits partial recovery of
losses from reinsurers; but the IRF, as direct insurer of the risks, remains primarily
liable.

The Health and Disability Insurance Fund was established to provide health
and dental insurance coverage for eligible employees and retirees of State agencies
and school districts and group life and long term disability insurance coverage to
eligible active State and public school employees. The State, the predominant
participant, retains the risk of loss. Under the health insurance program, participants
elect coverage through either a health maintenance organization or the State’s self-
insured plan. All dental, group life, and long-term disability coverage is through the
State’s self-insured plan.

Section 42-7-10 of the South Carolina Code of Laws, as amended, established
the State Accident Fund to provide a program of workers' compensation insurance
coverage to State entities. The State assumes the full risk for covered claims. The
Fund purchases reinsurance to reduce its exposure to catastrophic losses on insured
events; however, as direct insurer of the risk, the Fund remains primarily liable.

The State conducts various risk control programs to help minimize losses. For
example, the health insurance program conducts extensive wellness education
programs for covered employees that promote development and maintenance of
healthful lifestyles.

The State also administers the Patients’ Compensation Fund, an insurance
enterprise, which provides medical malpractice insurance to participating licensed
health care providers within the State of South Carolina.

AUDIT

An independent audit of the general purpose financial statements was
performed jointly by the State Auditor and the independent certified public
accounting firm of Deloitte & Touche LLP. Again this year, this report includes an
unqualified opinion from the independent certified public accountants, the best
possible result of the audit process.

The audit described above is not intended to meet the requirements of the
Federal Single Audit Act of 1984 as amended in 1996. The Single Audit reports for
the State are issued separately.

CERTIFICATE OF ACHIEVEMENT

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and
Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting to the State of South Carolina for its comprehensive annual financial report

-
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(CAFR) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1996. In order to be awarded a Certificate
of Achievement, a government must publish an easily readable and efficiently
organized CAFR whose contents conform to rigorous program standards. Such
reports must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable
legal requirements. A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year
only.

The State of South Carolina has received a Certificate of Achievement for the
last nine consecutive years (1987-88 through 1995-96). Again this year, the State will
submit its CAFR to the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting program of the GFOA. I firmly believe that South Carolina's report for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 1997, meets the requirements to receive the Certificate of
Achievement.
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The present State House was put into service in 1869 with a temporary—largely
wooden—roof and interior.
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New State House, North Fagade, anonymous, 1896,
courtesy of the South Caroliniana Library

The steps and portico have not been built,
and the trees which were planted in the
1870s and 1880s are immature.




DElﬂltte & State of HSouth Carolina
Touche Ltp
A ot

.. -- ——d
®ffice of the State Auditor

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Honorable David M. Beasley, Governor
and

Members of the General Assembly

State of South Carolina

Columbia, South Carolina

We have jointly audited the general purpose financial statements of the State of South Carolina as of and
for the year ended June 30, 1997, as listed in the accompanying table of contents. These general purpose
financial statements are the responsibility of the State’s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these general purpose financial statements based on our audit. We did not jointly audit the
financial statements of certain blended component units and agencies of the primary government, which
statements reflect the indicated percent of total assets and other debits and total revenues, respectively, of
the Special Revenue (24% and 15%), Enterprise (99% and 89%), Internal Service (76% and 87%),
Pension Trust (100% and 100%), Higher Education (100% and 100%), and Agency (49% of assets and
other debits) Funds, General Fixed Assets Account Group (12% of assets and other debits), and the
General Long-Term Obligations Account Group (9% of assets and other debits). We also did not jointly
audit the financial statements of the discretely presented component units. Those financial statements
were audited by other auditors, including the Office of the State Auditor acting separately, whose reports
have been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for those
component units and agencies, is based solely upon the reports of other auditors. The Office of the State
Auditor acting separately has examined 35% and 43% of the total assets and other debits and total
revenues, respectively, of the Higher Education Funds.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the general purpose
financial statements are free of material misstatement. The financial statements of the Deferred
Compensation Plans, and the discretely presented component units identified in Note 1(a) (with the
exception of the Enterprise Development Incorporated, of South Carolina, which has an audit in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards) were not audited in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. An audit includes

DeloitteTouche
Tohmatsu
International



examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the general purpose
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audit and the reports of those auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, based on our audit and reports of other auditors, the general purpose financial statements
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the State of South
Carolina as of June 30, 1997, and the results of its operations and cash flows of its proprietary and
similar trust funds for the year then ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

As discussed in Note 3(b) to the general purpose financial statements, in fiscal year 1997, the State of
South Carolina adopted GASB Statement No. 28, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Securities
Lending Transactions.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated December 2,
1997 on our consideration of the State of South Carolina’s internal control over financial reporting and
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants.

Our joint audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general purpose financial
statements taken as a whole. The required supplementary information and the combining financial
statements and schedules listed in the accompanying table of contents are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not a required part of the general purpose financial statements of the State of
South Carolina. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the joint audit
of the general purpose financial statements and, in our opinion, based upon our joint audit and the reports
of other auditors, is fairly presented in all material respects in relation to the general purpose financial
statements taken as a whole.

We did not audit the data included in the introductory and statistical sections of this report, and
accordingly, express no opinion thereon.

Dol 1y P = /A/

Columbia, South Carolina Columbia, South Carolina
December 2, 1997 December 2, 1997
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The present State House was designed to face North and was sited to span two blocks
of the original city plan. Note the columns for the porticoes (not built until
1900-1903) stacked on the grounds near the corner of Sumter and Senate Streets.
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Combined Balance Sheet

ALL FUND TYPES, ACCOUNT GROUPS, AND DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

June 30, 1997
(Expressed in Thousands)

GOVERNMENTAL PROPRIETARY FIDUCIARY
FUND TYPES FUND TYPES FUND TYPES
Special Capital Internal Trust and
General Revenue Projects Enterprise Service Agency
ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS
Cash and cash equivalents .............c.ccooreceinienees $ 60189 $ 762527 $ 87,058 $ 88,064 $ 338758 $ 990,714
Cash on deposit with fiscal agents ... — — — — — 664,540
INVESEMENES ....ooiveeiiieciieiie et — 217 — 3,730 210,328 17,293,966
Securities lending investments.................. 33,339 8,571 1,137 1,665 33,289 1,400,921
Receivables, net:
ACCOUNES «.coveiivieiiiieriee e reienereern st eie et 33,539 59,614 551 11,155 62,417 303,539
TEXES .oveeeeeveeieetee e e en s 275,187 102,854 — — — 44,976
Patient and student ... — — — — — —
StUAENt IOANS ..o — 14,645 — 20 — —
Loans and NOES .....oooeeieieieie e 1,003 141,912 — 379,546 — 25,213
Due from Federal government and other grantors ...... 6,000 194,018 126 1,458 44 1,714
Due from other funds ...........cooeciciveree s 174 90,132 451 1 21,962 7,791
Interfund receivables .............cccooiiiii 4,676 1,960 — — 4,679 —
Advances to other funds 9,771 7,087 — — 23,394 —
INVENEOTIES ...oooveiereieieeerieerreerer e sar e enanessara e 14,623 22,051 — 1,927 6,702 —
Prepaid long-term operating lease...........c.......ccoee — — — — — —
Servicing rights, Net.........ccoooeioiiii — — — 2,070 —_ —
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents ... — —_ — 225,653 — _—
INVESEMENES ...veen ettt — —_ —_ 64,991 —_ —_
Loans receivable — — — 468,035 — —
OREE ..o — — — 8,251 — —
OUNEE ASSEES ..o oveeeeeeeeiereeeee e e e s e s ermnee e essrinanes — 143 — 863 2,453 5,310
Deferred Charges ..........cccooveeiiienieiieii e — — — 1,497 — —
Property, plant, and equipment, net ... — — — 24,886 147,424 4,767
Amount to be provided for retirement of long-term
0blIgations ..o —_ - —_ - — —
Total assets and other debits ...........c.cccceeeee $ 980,208 $ 1,405731 § 89,323 $ 1,283,812 $ 851,450 $ 20,743,451

_—— e e e —  — —

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

36



State of South Carolina

Totals Totals
ACCOUNT GROUPS Primary Government Reporting Entity
General General HIGHER {Memorandum Only) {Memorandum Only)
Fixed Long-Term EDUCATION June 30 COMPONENT June 30
Assets Obligations FUNDS 1997 1996 UNITS 1997 1996
$ - $ — $ 637,785 $ 3,506,802 $ 3,142,144  $ 79,213 $ 3,586,015 § 3,227,087
— — — 664,540 604,965 — 664,540 604,965
— — 90,662 17,598,903 16,313,044 83,576 17,682,479 16,349,624
—_ — 22,568 1,501,490 1,419,353 641 1,502,131 1,419,353
— — 15,557 486,372 433,140 83,758 570,130 510,877
— — — 423,017 419,009 — 423,017 419,009
—_ — 92,259 92,259 77,726 — 92,259 77,726
— — 44,827 59,492 58,603 — 59,492 58,603
— — 114 547,788 533,507 881 548,669 534,089
— — 54,785 258,145 232,427 636 258,781 232,958
—_ — 20,939 141,450 153,091 —_ 141,450 153,091
— — — 11,315 11,321 _ 11,315 11,321
— - —_ 40,252 43,472 _ 40,252 43,472
—_ — 21,616 66,919 67,498 75,089 142,008 144 417
—_ — 18,353 18,353 19,033 — 18,353 19,033
— — —_ 2,070 2,185 — 2,070 2,185
— — — 225,653 209,776 183,952 409,605 376,243
— —_ — 64,991 78,484 180,506 245,497 309,196
—_ — — 468,035 457,381 — 468,035 457,381
—_ —_ —_ 8,251 7,556 — 8,251 7,556
—_— —_ 33,388 42,157 33,938 3,394 45,551 37,644
— — — 1,497 1,548 528,156 529,653 533,346
2,303,849 —_ 2,841,563 5,322,489 5,074,927 2,645,153 7,967,642 7,726,178
—_ 1,202,108 — 1,202,108 1,191,023 — 1,202,108 1,191,023

$ 2,303,849 $ 1,202,108 § 3,894,416 $ 32,754,348 $ 30,685,151 $ 3,864,955 $ 36,619,303 $ 34,446,377

Continued on Next Page
L. ________________________________________________________|]
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State of South Carolina

Combined Balance Sheet

ALL FUND TYPES, ACCOUNT GROUPS, AND DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS
(Continued)

June 30, 1997
(Expressed in Thousands)
GOVERNMENTAL PROPRIETARY FIDUCIARY
FUND TYPES FUND TYPES FUND TYPES
Special Capital Internal Trust and
General Revenue Projects Enterprise Service Agency

LIABILITIES, FUND EQUITY, AND OTHER CREDITS
Liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ... $ 178546 $ 305845 $ 5781 3 43539 $ 169,076 $ 27,830

Tax refunds payable ...................ccos 355,776 972 — — —_ 1,577
Intergovernmental payables ... 58,247 99,770 — — — 535
Insurance claims incurred but not reported .............. — — — 3,925 167,476 —
Duetoother funds .............ccoovvvviviviviiiiiiiiiieee 66,194 12,542 397 1,146 — 54,939
Interfund payables ... 3,372 3,368 — 220 1,647 348
Advances fromother funds .............c..occii s 15,402 300 — 14,037 8,175 —
Deferred revenues and deferred credits ................... 107,122 71,650 34 3,027 68,460 476
DEPOSIES ..o — — — 100 — 526
Amounts held in custody for others .......................... — — —_ — — 1,195,246
Deferred compensation ................cccociiiiiiiiiiiienne — — — — — 1,020,301
Obligations under securities lending........................ 33,339 8,571 1,137 1,665 33,289 1,400,921
Liabilities payable from restricted assets ............... — — — 45,342 — —
Notes payable ... — — — 28 — —
General obligation bonds payable ............................ — — — — — —
Revenue bonds payable .................. — — — 880,006 — —
Limited obligation bonds payable.............................. — — — — 28,977 —
Certificates of participation payable ......................... — — — — — —
Capital lease and installment debt obligations
PaYable ... — — — — 10,572 —
Commercial paper notes .........c.ccooevieieier e — — — — — —_—
Compensated absences payable ............................. — — — 990 4,245 —
Other liabilities, including retainages payable ........... 5,757 26,927 3,495 3,130 270 5
Total liabilities 823,755 529,945 10,844 997,155 492,187 3,702,704

Fund equity and other credits:
Contributed capital ... — — — 16,870 76,537 —
Investment in fixed assets
Retained earnings:

RESEIVE. ... .ooiiiiiiie e — — — 210,042 — —
unreserved ... — —_ — 59,745 282,726 —
Fund balances (deficit):

RESEIVEA ..ot 450,686 205,377 — — — 16,938,692

Unreserved, Designated...................ccocooviiiiie — 128,640 78,479 —_ — —

Unreserved, Undesignated....................c..cccooen. (294,233) 541,769 — — — 102,055
Total fund equity and other credits.... 156,453 875,786 78,479 286,657 359,263 17,040,747

Total liabilities, fund equity, and

other credits ........cccovcrvveicinniinnnninneceee. $ 980,208 $ 1,405731 $ 89,323 $ 1,283,812 $ 851,450 $ 20,743,451

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
S —
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Totals Totals
ACCOUNT GROUPS Primary Government Reporting Entity
General General HIGHER {(Memorandum Only) {(Memorandum Only)
Fixed Long-Term EDUCATION June 30 COMPONENT June 30
Assets Obligations FUNDS 1997 1996 UNITS 1997 1596
$ — $ 2416 $ 98846 $ 831,879 $ 944363 $ 110,528 $ 942,407 $ 1,052,781
— — —_ 358,325 348,773 — 358,325 348,773
— 21,850 — 180,402 145,713 — 180,402 145,713
— 3,376 —_ 174,777 167,950 — 174,777 167,950
— — 6,232 141,450 153,091 — 141,450 153,091
—_ —_ 2,360 11,315 11,121 —_ 11,315 11,121
_ —_ 2,538 40,452 43,672 — 40,452 43,672
— — 39,910 290,679 226,628 42,509 333,188 266,707
— —_ 3,339 3,965 4,174 — 3,965 4,174
— — 7,249 1,202,495 1,138,460 — 1,202,495 1,138,460
— — — 1,020,301 902,398 — 1,020,301 902,398
— —_ 22,568 1,501,490 1,419,353 641 1,502,131 1,419,353
—_ — —_ 45,342 43,037 — 45342 43,037
— — 110,761 110,789 109,906 175 110,964 109,906
—_ 966,808 85,365 1,052,173 1,007,394 — 1,062,173 1,007,394
—_ — 247,695 1,127,701 1,145,313 2,315,942 3,443,643 3,496,135
—_ —_ — 28,977 6,672 _ 28,977 6,672
— — 22,191 22,191 22,870 —_ 22,191 22,870
— 15,494 25,390 51,456 76,701 42 806 94,262 123,154
— —_ — — — 204,773 204,773 237,320
— 166,740 81,379 253,354 239,944 11,966 265,320 250,034
— 25,424 6,211 71,219 83,974 53,520 124,739 137,429
—_ 1,202,108 762,034 8,520,732 8,241,507 2,782,860 11,303,592 11,088,144
— — — 93,407 93,787 209,856 303,263 303,141
2,303,849 —_ 2,407,867 4,711,716 4,476,875 — 4,711,716 4,476,875
— — — 210,042 188,301 — 210,042 188,301
—_ — — 342,471 349,222 872,239 1,214,710 1,154,457
— —_ 273,586 17,868,341 16,473,611 — 17,868,341 16,473,611
—_ — 137,245 344,364 256,303 — 344,364 256,303
—_ — 313,684 663,275 505,545 — 663,275 505,545
2,303,849 — 3,132,382 24,233,616 22,343,644 1,082,095 25,315,711 23,358,233
$ 2,303,849 $ 1,202,108 $ 3,894,416 $ 32,754,348 $ 30,585,151 $ 3,864,955 $ 36,619,303 $ 34,446,377
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State of South Carolina

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balances

ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES AND EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1997
(Expressed in Thousands)

Revenues:
Taxes:

Individual income
Retail sales and use...

Licenses, fees, and permits

Interest and other investment income............

Departmental

Contributions.
Fines and penalties...

Expenditures:
Current:

General government
Education....

services.....

Health and environment....
Social services.......c..........
Administration of justice....
Resources and economic development.......

Transportation

Capital outlay
Debt service:
Principal reti

Total expe

rement.............
Interest and fiscal charges....
Intergovernmental

nditures..........

Revenues over (under) expenditures...........

Other financing sources (uses):
Proceeds from bonds and notes....................
Lease and installment debt proceeds............

Operating transfers in
Transfers from component units....
Operating transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses).....

Revenues and other sources over (under)
expenditures and other uses.............c.cueu.

Fund balances, July 1 (restated)..................

Increases (decreases) in reserve for
INVeNtOries.........covicecrercr e

Residual equity transfers out
Fund balances, June 30

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES
Special Capital
General Revenue Projects
$ 1,927,600 — $ -
1,613,374 528,490 —_—
693,969 469,920 657
182,419 76,541 —
66,896 46,303 760
80,215 3,007,097 10,206
306,513 226,882 1
643 115,096 614
15,255 42 915 69
12,697 57,727 23
4,899,581 __ 4,570,971 12,330
255,756 95,400 —
191,047 135,056 —
993,263 2,039,732 —
112,738 587,704 —
488,018 55,438 —
66,829 83,302 —
— 230,384 —
— 436,798 69,702
94,763 2,965 —
49,748 3,745 —
__4123,909 __ 4,604,361 69,702
775,672 (33,390) (57,372)
— 44,550 50,000
1,721 651 —_
1,006 168,756 54,392
7,463 — —_
(913,772) (4,862) (6,015)
(127,910) 175,705 41,005
284,731 701,498 38,811
(368) (9185) —
—_ (502) (1,337)
$ 156,453 875,786 $ 78,479
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FIDUCIARY
FUND TYPE Totals
{Memorandum Only)
Expendable June 30
Trust 1997 1996
$ — $ 1,927,600 $ 1,809,287
— 2,141,864 2,034,484
214,848 1,379,394 1,357,455
2,232 261,192 247,289
48,219 162,178 144,414
12,179 3,109,697 2,932,488
— 533,396 535,265
142 116,495 107,081
—_ 58,239 55,379
1,368 71,815 75,459
278,988 9,761,870 9,298,601
199,618 550,774 544,603
199 326,302 379,984
29 3,033,024 2,946,512
33 700,475 709,809
1 543,457 488,425
— 150,131 155,308
—_ 230,384 218,366
—_ 506,500 473,922
— 97,728 82,997
— 53,493 50,574
4 2,805,588 2,636,447
199,884 8,997,856 8,686,947
79,104 764,014 611,654
— 94,550 190,910
—_ 2,372 3,500
383 224,537 160,828
— 7,463 6,681
(1,245) (925,894) (836,064)
(862) (596,972) (474,145)
78,242 167,042 137,509
742,426 1,767,466 1,634,969
- (1,283) 2,793
- = (1839 __ (808
$ 820,668 $ 1,931,386 $ 1,767,466
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State of South Carolina

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances—Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis)

ALL BUDGETED FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1997
(Expressed in Thousands)

Revenues:

Admissions tax.................
Aircraft tax............cooiiii
Alcoholic lIQuOrs taX.........cccovieiiviviiiieeee e,
BanK taX..........cccoviiiiiiiiiiiiii e
Beerandwinetax.................ocooo .
Business license tax..........ccoooveveieieieieiiiiias
Coin-operated device taX...........ccoccvvvvii i,
Commercial nuclear waste tax................cccccocceiie
Contractors' license tax............c.ooiiiiiiinici
Corporation inCome tax..........cccceevviiiiiiieinniieeee,
Corporation license tax...........ccccoooeeiiiiiiiiiie
Department of Agriculture...............cccoeiiiiii
Departmental revenue (primarily grant revenues

and fees for ServiCes)........ccoocviviiiniiicinie e
Documentary taX.........ccoooeviiiiin
Earned on investments.................ooon
Education Improvement Act—1% sales tax.................
Education Improvement Act-investment earnings.....
Education Improvement Act—other............................
Electric powertax. ...
Estate tax. ...
Excise tax—casual sales................cooeeevviviiiiiiniieee
Fertilizer inspection taX.........cccccocvviiiiiii e
Gasoline tax—counties...............coocoeviiiii
Individual income tax..............c.ccv
INSUrANCE taX.......uiviiiiiiiiiiii e
Miscellaneous SOUrCes...........o.oociieiieiicriceeeee
Motor transport fees...........coovvviiiiiiiiee e
Motor vehicle licenses. ...
Nonrecurring (excess warrants for distraint)...............
Private car linestax...........ccooooiiiiii
Public service assessment.................coocn,
Public Service Authority..................o
Retail sales tax (4%)......ccccoooeiriiiini e
Retail sales tax—-mail order sales.................ccccoeevnne.
Retailers' license taxX...........ccccociiiiiiie,
Savings and loan association taX...............cccccceeenn.
Softdrinkstax...............cooo
Workers' compensation insurance tax........................

Total revenuUES.......cccciiieeenieremrcreremsrerenesesesesenenssenses

BUDGETARY GENERAL FUND

Variance
Final Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
3,000 $ 2,096 $ (904)
3,648 3,277 (371)
47,460 48,269 809
13,637 16,043 2,406
78,819 79,984 1,165
26,750 30,510 3,760
35,000 58,107 23,107
225,510 220,237 (5,273)
43,351 52,246 8,895
7,237 7,381 144
42,369 47,587 5,218
20,662 19,445 (1,217)
55,000 65,616 10,616
20,391 19,091 (1,300)
21,638 28,174 6,536
14,413 14,640 227
200 204 4
19,789 18,128 (1,661)
1,920,564 1,932,992 12,428
90,667 92,922 2,255
65,150 62,938 (2,212)
2,500 212 (2,288)
105,211 101,704 (3,507)
— 932 932
1,800 1,762 (38)
7,154 7,463 309
1,610,755 1,619,982 9,227
1,031 1,039 8
3,908 3,070 (838)
22,631 22,622 (9)
9,539 9,643 104
4,519,784 4,588,316 68,532

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
]}
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OTHER BUDGETED FUNDS

TOTAL BUDGETED FUNDS

State of South Carolina

Variance Variance
Final Favorable Final Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
$ 32,007 $ 25,237 $ (6,770) 35,007 27,333 $ (7,674)
— — — 3,648 3,277 (371)
— — — 47,460 48,269 809
— — — 13,637 16,043 2,406
— — — 78,819 79,984 1,165
— — — 26,750 30,510 3,760
250 250 — 35,250 58,357 23,107
105,305 73,600 (31,705) 105,305 73,600 (31,705)
1,500 1,677 177 1,500 1,677 177
— — — 225,510 220,237 (5,273)
— — — 43,351 52,246 8,895
3,150 2,348 (802) 10,387 9,729 (658)
7,246,325 6,026,038 (1,220,287) 7,288,694 6,073,625 (1,215,069)
2,760 1,372 (1,388) 23,422 20,817 (2,605)
22,838 47,749 24 911 77,838 113,365 35,527
406,292 404,838 (1,454) 406,292 404,838 (1,454)
3,000 2,639 (361) 3,000 2,639 (361)
3,622 3,670 48 3,622 3,670 48
— — — 20,391 19,091 (1,300)
— — — 21,638 28,174 6,536
— — —_ 14,413 14,640 227
— — —_ 200 204 4
— — — 19,789 18,128 (1,661)
— — — 1,920,564 1,932,992 12,428
333 267 (66) 91,000 93,189 2,189
181,297 110,292 (71,005) 246,447 173,230 (73,217)
— 2,367 2,367 2,500 2,579 79
3,041 1,580 (1,461) 108,252 103,284 (4,968)
6 1 5) 6 933 927
— — — 1,800 1,762 (38)
5,416 4,864 (552) 5,416 4,864 (552)
— — — 7,154 7,463 309
— 255 255 1,610,755 1,620,237 9,482
32,000 — (32,000) 32,000 — (32,000)
— — — 1,031 1,039 8
— — — 3,908 3,070 (838)
— — — 22,631 22,622 9)
— — — 9,639 9,643 104
8,049,142 6,709,044 (1,340,098) 12,568,926 11,297,360 {1,271,566)

Continued on Next Page
—
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State of South Carolina

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances—Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis)

ALL BUDGETED FUNDS (Continued)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1997
(Expressed in Thousands)

Expenditures:
Legislative...........ooeiii
JUAICIAL ... e
Executive and administrative........................cc
Educational............coooviiiiiiei e
Health....o.eeeeee e
Social rehabilitation services............cccooiiiiin
Correctional and public safety................cc.cociee
Conservation, natural resources, and development...
ReguIAtONy.......c.ociiiie
Department of Transportation.............cccccccoviiineene.
Debt SEIVICE. ...
Miscellaneous...........cccveeiiiiiiiii e
Enterprise agencies............oocv e

Total expenditures.........cccoceimmnernincssinicnsssessnsonns
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures.......

Other financing sources (uses):
Operating transfers in...........ccooccoiiii
Operating transfers out............cccccoeiiiiiiinne.

Total financing sources (USes)..........ccveuerriscrnrsnnnns
Excess of revenues and other sources over
(under) expenditures and other uses......................

Budgetary fund balance, July 1, 1996.............c....c.c.

Budgetary fund balance, June 30, 1997...................

BUDGETARY GENERAL FUND
Variance
Final Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
31,608 $ 27,507 3 4,101
37,870 35,034 2,836
225,101 164,236 60,865
2,178,704 2,111,951 66,753
768,368 742,824 25,544
160,027 132,595 27,432
516,681 478,064 38,617
151,581 118,945 32,636
58,559 56,088 2,471
590 586 4
157,460 156,809 651
549,667 507,854 41,813
4,836,216 4,532,493 303,723
(316,432) 55,823 372,255
(80,490) (145,994) (65,504)
(80,490) (145,994) (65,504)
(396,922) (90,171) 306,751
598,878 598,878 —_
201,956 $ 508,707 $ 306,751

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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e

OTHER BUDGETED FUNDS TOTAL BUDGETED FUNDS
Variance Variance
Final Favorable Final Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
$ 752 $ 551 $ 201 $ 32,360 $ 28,058 $ 4,302
268 79 189 38,138 35,113 3,025
482,775 285,254 197,521 707,876 449,490 258,386
2,685,041 2,041,070 643,971 4,863,745 4,153,021 710,724
2,834,877 2,593,838 241,039 3,603,245 3,336,662 266,583
850,661 634,198 216,463 1,010,688 766,793 243,895
218,399 117,094 101,305 735,080 595,158 139,922
222,513 151,213 71,300 374,094 270,158 103,936
169,121 140,330 28,791 227,680 196,418 31,262
763,575 664,928 98,647 764,165 665,514 98,651
— — —_ 157,460 156,809 651
— — — 549,667 507,854 41,813
1,908 1,908 —_ 1,908 1,908 —
8,229,890 6,630,463 1,599,427 13,066,106 11,162,956 1,903,150
(180,748) 78,581 259,329 (497,180) 134,404 631,584
80,490 145,994 65,504 80,490 145,994 65,504
—_ — — (80,490) (145,994) (65,504)
80,490 145,994 65,504 —_ — —_
(100,258) 224,575 324,833 (497,180) 134,404 631,584
861,583 861,583 — 1,460,461 1,460,461 —_
$ 761,325 $ 1,086,158 $ 324,833 $ 963,281 $ 1,594,865 $ 631,584
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State of South Carolina

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenses,
and Changes in Fund Equity

ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES, NONEXPENDABLE TRUST FUND, AND DISCRETELY

PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1997

(Expressed in Thousands) FIDUCIARY
PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES FUND TYPE
Internal Nonexpendable
Enterprise Service Trust
Operating revenues:
Charges for SEIVICES.............ciiiiiiirii e $ 72,910 $ 813,705 $ -
Contributions...........c.cocoeiviiiiiin, — 8 158
Interest and other investment income...........cc.ccooviiiiiiii s 55,552 37,030 2
Licenses, fees, and Permits..............cccoieeiriinicriineeie et — —_ 91
Other operating reVENUES. .........c.cooiiiiiiiiiiiee e — — —
Total operating revenues...............ccccccveveeceiiiennniinnssien s 128,462 850,743 251
Operating expenses:
General operations and administration...............cccccvviiiiiinniii, 37,767 261,072 —
Benefits and claims.... 7,105 581,101 —
Interest............oooiiiiiiii, 55,559 — -
Depreciation and amortization...............cccco i 1,170 14,042 —
Other operating @XPENSES.........cccoveriiiriiiie e erarenene e s reenne 2,268 565 3
Total operating eXpenses...........c.ccecrenisnrisisiniesiiniennennnns 103,869 856,780 3

Operating iNCoOmMe (I0SS).........ccuiminrvieniinsininnninn . 24,593 (6,037) 248
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):

INtEreSt INCOME. ... ..ot e e 1,627 1,791 —
Federal reVeNUE..............ooivuiii et 22,699 620 —
Costs to be recovered from future revenues.... — — —
INtEreSt @XPENSE.. ... i (1,069) (5,771) —
Other nonoperating revenues (EXPenSes)...........ccceevereeeiiereniee e (25,576) (282) —_
Total nonoperating revenues (eXpenses)........cccccevvevumriveniisisinaninininins (2,319) (3,642) —_
Income (loss) before operating transfers and
extraordinary items......c..ccovinnncn s 22,274 (9,679) 248

Operating transfers in..............ccooii 125 3,874 —
Operating transfers OUL...............cocriiiiieiiieiie et — (1,361) —
Transfers to primary GOVErNMENt............c.ccoiiiiiiiiiiiii e — — —

Income (loss) before extraordinary items...........ccccceneimnieneninnnnnane 22,399 (7,166) 248
Extraordinary loss on early extinguishment of debt............................ (243) — —

Net iNCOME (JOSS)..cooi et s s se s asa e 22,156 (7,166) 248
Retained earnings/fund balances, July 1 (restated) ............ccecrvniinrurnnan 247,631 289,892 1,271
Net unrealized gain (loss) on investment
securities available for sale..........cccocoriicniiniiic e -—_ —_ —_
Retained earnings/fund balances, June 30..........cc.cccceirinircininrnnvnennninnns 269,787 282,726 1,519
Contributed capital, July 1 (restated).............ccoccrvcriririieinniinrinsnrennenn, 15,5633 78,254 —
Additions to contributed capital .......... 1,337 5,303 —_
Deductions from contributed capital.......c..cccocecceiireniririnnncniinneee - (7,020) —
Fund equity, June 30..........cccomminnmrnn s $ 286,657 $ 359,263 $ 1,519
The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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State of South Carolina

Totals Totals
Primary Government Reporting Entity
{Memorandum Only) {(Memorandum Only)

June 30 COMPONENT June 30
1997 1996 UNITS 1997 1996
$ 886,615 $ 856,871 $ 773,024 $ 1,659,639 1,564,454
166 38 495 661 38
92,584 92,526 12 92,596 92,543
91 72 — 91 72
— 2 —_— — 2
979,456 949,509 773,531 1,752,987 1,657,109
298,839 272,864 436,933 735,772 687,847
588,206 538,661 — 588,206 538,661
55,559 58,055 — 55,559 58,055
15,212 12,141 125,780 140,992 128,157
2,836 6,431 1,929 4,765 8,361
960,652 888,152 564,642 1,525,294 1,421,081
18,804 61,357 208,889 227,693 236,028
3,418 3,465 26,214 29,632 26,053
23,319 21,142 309 23,628 22,725
— _— 2,034 2,034 24,854
(6,840) (7,374) (169,572) (176,412) (177,223)
(25,858) (27,769) 9,465 (16,393) (27,631)
(5,961) (10,536) (131,550) (137,511) (131,222)
12,843 50,821 77,339 90,182 104,806
3,999 303 - 3,999 303
(1,361) (1,473) — (1,361) (1,473)
— - (6,682) (6,682) (6,436)
15,481 49,651 70,657 86,138 97,200
(243) (298) — (243) (298)
15,238 49,353 70,657 85,895 96,902
538,794 489,441 805,235 1,344,029 1,238,902
— — (3,653) (3,653) 8,225
554,032 538,794 872,239 1,426,271 1,344,029
93,787 88,597 209,354 303,141 295,155
6,640 8,415 502 7,142 11,220
(7,020) (3,225) - (7,020) (3,234)
$ 647,439 $ 632,581 $ 1,082,095 $ 1,729,534 1,647,170




State of South Carolina

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Combined Statement of Cash Flows
ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES, NONEXPENDABLE TRUST FUND, AND
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1997 PROPRIETARY FIDUCIARY
(Expressed in Thousands) FUND TYPES FUND TYPE
Internal Nonexpendable
Cash flows from operating activities: Enterprise Service Trust
Operating iNCOME (JOSS)........eu ettt saneaee $ 24,593 $ (6,037) $ 248
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash provided by (used in) operations:
Depreciation and amortization 1,170 14,042 —
Provisions for loan losses and bad debts (493) — —
Amortization of deferred gain on sale of capital leaseback — (296) —
Gain on disposition of property and equipment .............. — 34 —
Issuance of loans and notes................c......... (108,213) — —
Collection of loans and Notes.............coooeiiirii, 108,224 — —_
Interest PaymMents ............ccoeciininninin s 55,560 — —_
Interest on investments and interfund loans.. (16,639) (37,807) 2
Amounts received for payment of claims... . 56,273 - —
Payment of ClaIMS...........c.coiimii e (58,000) — —
Deferred coal contract buy-out Costs..............ooi — — —
Donated property..........cccceeeeee — — _
Other nonoperating revenues... . — 1,084 —
Other nonoperating eXPeNSES..............ccoorvrimmiriiiririe e (311) (124) —
OHNET .ot e e e 388 (2,422) —
Change in assets--decreases (increases):
Accounts receivable, net............. 336 (28,309) —
Student loans receivable, net . 3 — —
Due from Federal government and other grantors.............cccoccco o 146 (30) —
Due from other fuNS..........c.ooooiiii 1) 11,546 —
Due from primary government.. —_— — -
Inventories..............ccceveeunn . (230) (801) —_
Other restricted ASSEES. ... .cvo oo — — —
Other CUMENT @SSBES...........eiviriiteeieter e cen e eesssnssaeaae s (620) (638) -
Deferred charges — — —
Change in liabilities--increases (decreases):
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (8,847) (28,513) —
Insurance claims incurred but not reported... 768 9,623 —
DUE 10 Other fUNDS. ...t 102 —_ —_
Due to primary GOVEMMMENL. ...........ccociormiiiiiriiiiiiiieie s — — —_
Deferred revenues ........ 1,315 27,965 —_
Deposits..........cccociie (9 — —
Liabilities payable from restricted assets .. —_ — -
Limited obligation bonds payable ....... — — —
Compensated absences payable .............. . 85 551 —
Other liabilities, including retainages payable..............co (3) 140 —
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities..........cc.coeereennccece 55,597 (40,092) 246
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Principal payments received from other funds — 9,561 —
Proceeds from loans made by other funds.... — 4,368 —
Principal payments made to other funds (20) (5.926) —
Receipt of interest from other funds....... _ 4,374 —
Interest payments made to other funds . — (3,019) —
Loans made to other funds. ... — (10,866) —
Proceeds from sale of notes payable ...l 1,730 — —
Principal payments on notes payable (440) — —_
Proceeds from sale of revenue bonds.... . 29,643 — —
Principal payments on revenue bonds................cocoooiinn e (58,845) — —
INtErest PAYMENTS ...t s (56,752) — —_
Payment of bond issuance costs. (68) — —
Federal revenue ..............cceee. . 22,604 620 —
Payments from Federal grants...............oooi (24,869) — —
Operating transfers N ... 125 3,874 —_
Operating transfers out ........... — (1,361) —
Transfers to primary government ... . — — —
Indirect cost remitted to State General Fund....................cooo (19) —_ —
Loss on early extinguishmentof debt..................ocoo — — —
Net cash provided by (used in)
noncapital financing activities (86,911) 1,625 —_




State of South Carolina

Totals Totals
Primary Government Reporting Entity

(Memorandum Only) {(Memorandum Only)

June 30 June 30
COMPONENT
1997 1996 UNITS 1997 1996
18,804 $ 61,357 $ 208,889 $ 227,693 $ 236,028
15,212 12,141 125,780 140,992 128,157
(493) 1,443 57 (436) 1,443
(296) — — (296) —

34 165 32 66 165
(108,213) (145,389) (387) (108,600) (145,389)
108,224 113,438 35 108,259 113,483
55,560 57,554 — 55,560 57,554
(54,448) (52,146) — (54,448) (52,146)
56,273 50,178 —_ 56,273 50,178
(58,000) (64,991) — (58,000) (54,991)

— — 5,700 5,700 (50,200)
_ — (495) (495) -
1,084 906 43 1,127 1,231
(435) (132) (160) (595) (169)
(2,034) — 108 (1,926) (305)
(27,973) 9,547 (6,143) (34,116) (987)
3 5 —_ 3 5
116 17 - 116 901
11,545 2,499 — 11,545 2,499
- — —_ —_ 87
(1,031) 16 3613 2,582 1,045
— (54) — — (54)
(1,258) 56 313 (945) (749)
— — 5,460 5,460 —
(37,360) (5,732) (3,144) (40,504) (12,679)
10,291 1,786 —_ 10,291 1,786
102 235 - 102 235
— —_ —_ - (805)
29,280 (7,639) —_ 29,280 4,275
(9) 1 — (9) 1
- 153 - —_ 153
—_ (142) — — (142)
636 356 16 652 356
137 813 (863) g7262 11,732
15,751 46,441 338,854 354,605 292,698
9,561 6,912 — 9,561 6,912
4,368 2,353 —_ 4,368 2,353
(5,946) (5,845) - (5,948) (5,845)
4,374 4,541 — 4,374 4,541
(3,019) (3,289) —_ (3,019) (3,289)
(10,868) (5,624) —_ (10,866) (5,624)
1,730 1,569 - 1,730 1,569
(440) (425) — (440) (425)
29,643 86,785 — 29,643 86,785
(58,845) (46,700) - (58,845) (46,700)
(56,752) (57,924) — (56,752) (57,924)
(68) (835) — (68) (835)
23,224 21,142 204 23,428 22,725
(24,869) (21,083) —_ (24,869) (21,083)
3,999 303 — 3,999 303
(1,361) (1,473) — (1,361) (1,473)
- — (6,682) (6,682) (6,436)
(19) (37) - (19) (37)
— (212) — — (212)
(85,286) (19,842) (6,478) (91,764) (24,695)

Continued on Next Page



State of South Carolina

Combined Statement of Cash Flows

ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES, NONEXPENDABLE TRUST FUND, AND
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (Continued)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1997
(Expressed in Thousands)

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Acquisition of property, plant, and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property, plant, and equipment
Proceeds from sale of notes payable
Principal payments on notes payable
Proceeds from sale and refundings of revenue bonds
Principal payments and refundings on revenue bonds
Proceeds from sale of limited obligation bonds
Principal payments on limited obligation bonds...
Interest payments
Payment of bond issuance costs
Increase (decreases) in commercial paper notes....
Proceeds from the sale of capital assets
Principal payments on capital leases and instaliment

debt obligations payable
Contributions of capital

Net cash used in capital and
related financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from sale of investments
Purchase of investments
Interest on investments
Issuance of loans
Collection of loans

Net cash provided by investing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year (restated)

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year.

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents to the balance

sheet:

Cash and cash equivalents for Fiduciary Funds
Less: Cash and cash equivalents for Expendable Trust
Funds, Pension Trust Funds, and Agency Funds

Cash and cash equivalents Nonexpendable Trust Fund
Noncash capital, investing, and financing activities:

Acquisition of property and equipment through:
Contributions and transfers from other funds

Donations

Contributions from other funds

Total noncash capital, investing,
and financing activities

PROPRIETARY
FUND TYPES
Internal
Enterprise Service
$ (2,069) $ (19,715)
(513) —
— 22,512
— (215)
3) (2,744)
74 —
— (21,919)
1,337 —
_ra ___(22,081)
28,299 53,869
(16,980) (89,279)
21,319 35,715
(1,730) —
.58 —_—
31,492 305
(996) (60,243)
314,713 399,001
$ 313,717 $ 338,758
$ — $ 3,260
— 20
$ — $ 3,280

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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FIDUCIARY
FUND TYPE

Nonexpendable

Trust

254

1,237

1,491

990,714

(989,223)

1,491




Totals

Primary Government
(Memorandum Only)

June 30
1997 1996
$  (21,784) $  (14,748)
— 1,000
(513) (2,845)
22,512 —
(215) —
(2,747) (3,187)
74 231
(21,919) (1,822)
1,337 —
(23,255) (21,371)
82,168 141,425
(106,259) (158,274)
57,042 52,539
(1,730 (1,548)
584 425
31,805 34,567
(60,985) 39,795
714,951 675,156
$ 653,966 $ 714,951
$ 3,260 $ 2,038
20 —
— 5,335
$ 3,280 $ 7,373

COMPONENT
UNITS

$ (97,357)
1
175

354,220
(383,505)

(1 5;,932)
(22,013)
(32,547)

(3.447)
502

(343,893)

5,642
(9,933)
27,563

23,272
11,755

251,410
$ 263165

495

$ 495

State of South Carolina

Totals
Reporting Entity

(Memorandum Only)

June 30
1997 1996
(119,141) $ (141,856)
11 324
175 1,000
(513) (2,845)
354,220 317,791
(383,505) (363,705)
22,512 —
(215) —
(162,679) (174,622)
(22,013) (16,870)
(32,547) 118,620
74 231
(25,366) (5,161)
1,839 2,796
(367,148) (264,297)
87,810 197,302
(116,192) (163,722)
84,605 74,422
(1,730) (1,548)
584 425
55,077 106,879
(49,230) 110,585
966,361 855,776
917,131 $ 966,361
3,260 $ 2,038
515 —
_ 5,335
3,775 $ 7,373
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State of South Carolina

Combined Statement of Changes in Plan Net Assets

PENSION TRUST FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1997
(Expressed in Thousands)

South
Carolina
Retirement
System
Additions:
Contributions:
EMPIOYET.....ooiiiie e $ 374,452
Employee.........ccoooiiiiiiinnnnns 306,678
Transfers from other systems - -
Total contributions...........coccoveiiiiiiicreee 681,130
Investment income:
Net appreciation (depreciation) in fair value
of investments.........cccoooiiiiiiiiiiiii s 359,294
Interest income 851,519
Securities lending income.............c...cooiiiiiniin. 53,111
Total investment income...............coooiiniiiinninen, 1,263,924
Less:
Investment eXpense.............cccoveiiricinniciincnennn. 965
Securities lending expense... 50,687
Net investment income..............cccovinirinecnene 1,212,272
Operating transfers in (for supplemental benefits)....... 5,305
Total additions.........cccccceeeennnee . 1,898,707
Deductions:
Regular retirement benefits...............c.c.ccce 602,922
Supplemental retirement benefits 5,305
Refunds of contributions to members.......................... 52,568
Group life insurance claims..............ccceeneiiincinnnnn. 7,957
Accidental death benefits —
Depreciation............cococveviiieic it 107
Administrative expense............ccocovrvvvrirninvieecce s 9,805
Transfers to other systems....................coc 987
Total deductions.........cccveverernenenans 679,651
Net increase in plan net assets.........c.ccc..c... 1,219,056
Net assets held in trust for pension benefits:
Beginning of year .........cccoeiiinmnrneninennnnenan, 13,279,659
End of year.... “ $ 14,498,715

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Police
Officers’
Retirement

System

$ 61,651

38,402
916

100,969

27,814
103,912
4,389

136,115

74
4,207

131,834

137

232,940

63,958
137
7,392
919
618

11
1,072
1

74,108

158,832

1,447,882

$ 1,606,714

General
Assembly
Retirement

System

$ 2,492
563
3

3,058

651
2,270
28

2,949

26

2,922

5,980

3,751

25
77

25

3,878

2,102

33,324

$ 35,426



State of South Carolina

Judges'
and National Totals
Solicitors' Guard (Memorandum Only)
Retirement Pension June 30
System System Eliminations 1997 1996
$ 4,771 $ 2,499 $ — $ 445 865 $ 423,646
1,252 — —_ 346,895 336,991
69 - —(988) —_— —_
6,092 2,499 (988) 792,760 760,637
1,670 62 — 389,491 (180,370)
4,277 380 — 962,358 882,072
17 — — 57,545 34,812
5,964 442 — 1,409,394 736,514
1 — — 1,041 860
14 — — 54,934 32,663
5,949 442 — 1,353,419 702,991
— — —_ 5,442 5,955
12,041 2,941 (988) 2,151,621 1,469,583
5,443 1,648 — 677,722 628,622
— — —_ 5,442 5,955
— — — 59,985 58,866
5 — —_ 8,958 10,572
—_ — - 618 580
1 1 — 120 120
49 17 — 10,968 11,638
— — (988) — —
5,498 __1.666 —(988) 763,813 — 716,353
6,543 1,275 — 1,387,808 753,230
66,066 3,821 —_ 14,830,752 14,077,522
$ 72,609 $ 5,096 $ —_ $ 16,218,560 $ 14,830,752
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State of South Carolina

Combined Statement of Changes in Fund Balances

HIGHER EDUCATION FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1997

(Expressed in Thousands)

Revenues and other additions:
Unrestricted Current Fund revenues.....................
Restricted student tuition and fees...........................
Federal grants and contracts—restricted..................
State grants—restricted............ccococviiiniiiin
Private gifts, grants, and contracts--restricted.
Investment income—restricted.............cccccccevecnennne
Realized investment gains—unrestricted...
Realized investment gains—restricted.......
Interest earned...........ccceevveeeceeeccn e
Expended for plant facilities (including $65,665
charged to current funds expenditures)..................
Retirement of indebtedness (including $2,994
charged to current funds expenditures)..................
Retirement of indebtedness--defeased bonds..........
Proceeds of refunding bonds...........ccc.cccooninnn
Capitalization of interest cost................c..cocooiienee
Sale of propenty.....c.cccoevevviciiincinnn
Foundations and institutes............cc.cooeevnienen
Other revenues and additions........ e
Total revenues and other additions.................

Expenditures and other deductions:
Educational and general................ccccccovncnnnnen.
Auxiliary enterprises............c.cocorrvrrrrrrreeeeens
Hospital........ooevecemeecencnnni e
Foundations and institutes.............c..ccocoeiiiiiinnnnns
Indirect costs recovered.............cccoovvvvnininininnnn
Loan cancellation and bad debt write-offs................
Administration and collection costs.................c......
Realized investment losses—unrestricted..................
Realized investment losses—restricted......................

Expended for plant facilities (including
noncapitalized expenditures of $17,865)................
Retirement of indebtedness
Interest on indebtedness...............coocciiiiiicnnen
Disposal of plant facilities.............c..cccovniiiinicnnnns
Refunding bonds issued..........c..c.coccoevniiiiiininnnn
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent.................
Refunds to grantors...........coecvecerenienceicnencccrcannnns
Other expenditures and deductions.................c.......
Total expenditures and other deductions.......

Transfers in (out):
Transfers among Higher Education Funds:
Mandatory transfers for:
Principal and interest..............cocoocininins
Loan fund matching grants....

Nonmandatory transfers...............cccocecvevccnciinnnn
Operating transfers in............ccccccvececcccnnnneeee
Operating transfers out................cocccccvvinnnnnnnnene

Total transfers in (out)

Net increase (decrease) in fund balances.............
Fund balances, July 1 (restated)
Fund balances, June 30

CURRENT FUNDS

Unrestricted

$

1,187,513

1,742,338

(37,695)
588,832

$

1,187,513

1,218,113
176,874
345,473

18

1,860

(37,451)
(232)
(71)
(32,737)
697,018

34,007
277,228

311,235

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Restricted
$ —_

263,145
33,438
58,077

4672

302

960
360,594

333,980
2,199

26,606

7

23

9
21
362,845

25
(1,164)
22,569
)]
— 21404
18,153
32,959
§_ 62112

LOAN

FUNDS

617
130

1
243

136
1,051

209

1,397
48,362

$§ 49,759

ENDOWMENT
AND SIMILAR

FUNDS

91

4,496
615
526

3,751

317

132
24
473

16
676

692

9,709
66,681

§ 7o



PLANT FUNDS
Retirement
of Investment
Unexpended Indebtedness in Plant
$ — $ — $ —
2,661 20,226 —_
20,569 857 2,725
859 — 200
874 30 5,800
6,363 2,322 —
44 — —_
—_ —_ 175,094
608 — 34,484
1,097 — 495
4,283 — —_
3,346 1,252 697
40,704 24,687 219,495
3 — —
128,294 —_ —
—_ 32,098 —_—
—_ 21,648 —
— — 44 884
333 233 336
128,630 53,979 45,220
(270) 37,721 —
30 — —
104,734 (16,318) (50,865)
11,411 — —
115,905 21,403 (50,865)
27,979 (7,889) 123,410
122,470 46,663 2,284, 457
$ 150,449 $ 38,774 $ 2,407,867

Foundations
and
Institutes

189,965

189,965

181,473

181,473

(_4,303)

!4,303!

4,189

41,607
3 4576

State of South Carolina

Totals for the
Fiscal Year Ended

June 30
1997 1996
$ 1,187,513 $ 1124304
22,887 28,125
288,004 267,008
34,627 10,219
69,288 59,506
14,215 13,094
526 434
4,233 1,877
1,051 1,031
175,094 179,834
35,082 33,060
— 2,000
- 1,949
1,592 2,119
4,283 2,518
189,965 192,310
6,475 6,814
2,034,845 1,926,202
1,552,093 1,456,589
179,073 173,567
345,473 329,854
181,473 177,782
26,606 26,761
713 646
486 563
18 13
353 90
128,294 133,882
32,098 30,415
21,648 19,777
44,884 24 503
—_ 1,949
— 2,063
148 58
2,807 9,951
2,516,167 2,388,463
730,998 718,892
(37,721) (48,441)
693,277 670,451
211,955 208,190
2,920,427 2,712,237
$ 3,132,382 $ 2,920,427
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State of South Carolina

Combined Statement of Current Funds Revenues,

Expenditures, and Other Changes

HIGHER EDUCATION FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1997
(Expressed in Thousands)

Revenues:
Tuition and fEeS.........cccvieicerererrci e
Federal grants and contracts.............cccooeiincie
State grants and contracts..........cccooiii,
Local grants and contracts...............cocovvvireriiicmsscnsnnnnans
Private gifts, grants, and contracts................ccocoeeninns
Endowment INCOME..........ccooivirrrnieniniree et
Sales and services of educational departments........................
Sales and services of auxiliary enterprises..............ccooovmenni
Sales and services of hospitals.............c.ccconin

Total current revenues.

Expenditures, mandatory and operating transfers:
Educational and general:

Instruction

Research...........

PUDBKC SBIVICE.......cv ettt
Academic SUPPOMt...........ccciiiiiiiirii e
Student services
Institutional SUPPOTt..........cociriiiiii
Operation and maintenance of plant..............ccccovnnnnnnne
Scholarships and fellowships............ccccooiniinnn

Educational and general expenditures...............c.coeviicnnnes

Mandatory transfers for:
Principal and interest..............ccoovii
Loan fund matching grants..

Auxiliary enterprises:
EXPenditUres...........o..ooeveeeirciciiicr e
Mandatory transfers for principal and interest.........................

Total auxiliary enterprises............ccccoooiierniiiiiiiiee

Hospitals:
EXpenditures............cccovvriiiiiiii s
Mandatory transfers for principal and interest........................

Total hospitals...........coovveirieic e

Operating transfers in.............cccoooiiiniie e
Operating transfers out................c.o

Total expenditures, mandatory and operating
transfers.

Other additions (deductions):
Excess of restricted receipts over transfers to revenues
Refunds to grantors
Other deductions

Total additions (deductions)
Net increase in fund balances

Totals for the Fiscal Year

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Ended June 30
Unrestricted Restricted 1997 1996
$ 400,258 $ — $ 400,258 $ 376,942
35,496 240,499 275,995 266,307
—_ 14,277 14,277 8,960
28,690 1,606 30,296 28,228
20,477 54,689 75,166 68,670
748 1,052 1,800 2,462
31,619 — 31,619 31,827
196,007 — 196,007 187,197
421,131 — 421,131 404,717
53,087 1,488 54,575 42,897
1,187,513 313,611 1,501,124 1,418,207
583,668 26,016 609,684 580,956
61,019 111,780 172,799 172,390
74,057 43,357 117,414 105,155
132,868 3,903 136,771 121,352
76,910 11,136 88,046 79,114
138,548 1,939 140,487 144,026
113,315 1,013 114,328 112,458
37,728 134,836 172,564 141,138
1,218,113 333,980 1,552,093 1,456,589
3,572 — 3,572 4197
232 - 232 422
71 (25) 46 15
1,221,988 333,955 1,655,943 1,461,223
176,874 2,199 179,073 173,567
21,088 — 21,088 18,253
197,962 2,199 200,161 191,820
345,473 —_ 345,473 329,854
12,79 — 12,791 12,727
358,264 — 358,264 342,581
(697,018) (22,569) (719,587) (673,975)
37,695 26 37,721 37,579
1,118,891 313,611 1,432,502 1,369,228
—_ 20,377 20,377 2,906
— 9 (9) 8
(34,615) (1,215) (35,830) (16,601)
(34,615) 19,153 (15,462) (13,703)
$ 34,007 $ 19,153 $ 53,160 $ 45,276




State of South Carolina

Combining Balance Sheet

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

June 30, 1997
(Expressed in Thousands)

Savannah
Public State Lakes Enterprise
Service Ports Regional Development, Inc.,
Authority Authority Loan Fund of South Carolina Totals
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents................ccccccoiiiiiinns $ 62,602 $ 15,508 $ 1,098 $ 5 $ 79,213
INVESEMENTS. ...t e 83,436 — 140 — 83,576
Securities lending investments..........c..ccoooeeii — 641 — —_ 641
Receivables, net:
ACCOUNES ...ooveieiiiiievieeeeecrcesseeesreenareeseremenennesnee e 70,966 12,791 1 — 83,758
Loans and NOtES...........cocoiieiiiiereiiie e — -— 15 — 15
Due from Federal government and other
GEANEOTS ..ot e —_ — — 636 636
Inventories... 73,924 1,165 — — 75,089
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents.................ccccoeoniinins 117,607 — —_ —_ 117,607
Other current @ssets...........cccoeocivivieeerinicvrrreeeeeserenees 83 3,296 — 15 3,394
Total current assets..........ocovveveivviiiecvivieieiieeiieeerenenes 408,618 33,401 1,254 656 443,929
Long-term assets:
Loans and notes receivable, net..................cccoi — — 85 781 866
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents..................c.cocvininnns 41,923 24,422 - — 66,345
INVESIMENES........eveeiei e e e 174,658 5,848 — — 180,506
Deferred Charges...........cc.ccceeeecererrniiisirinee s 526,655 1,501 — — 528,156
Total long-term assets..........c.c.ccceeiniiniiiiinnnnnn, 743,236 31,771 85 781 775,873
Property, plant, and equipment:
Land and improvements..........c.ccccooiiiniinniinnincnne —_ 235,652 — 207 235,859
Buildings and improvements.............cccoccoeiniiiinininns — 206,233 — 468 206,701
ULIlItY Plant.........cooeeininicecccit s 3,269,030 — — — 3,269,030
Machinery, equipment, and other 2,021 32,672 —_ 223 34,916
Construction in Progress.......c.c.ccevervvririirinnircninsnesnnes 68,241 22,294 — — 90,535
Less: accumulated depreciation.............ccoceveiniiins (1,026,463) (165,277) — (148) (1,191,888)
Total property, plant, and equipment, net................ 2,312,829 331,574 — 750 2,645,153
Total assets $ 3,464,683 $ 396,746 $ 1,339 $ 2,187 $ 3,864,955

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

Continued on Next Page
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State of South Carolina

Combining Balance Sheet

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (Continued)

June 30, 1997
(Expressed in Thousands)

LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY
Liabilities:
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities....................
Obligations under securities lending...............cc.........
Notes payable
Revenue bonds payable.............c.cccooivvrvercnninnnn.
Capital lease and instaliment debt
obligations payable..................ccccoii

Commercial paper Notes...........c.oocvvoveiveivvinicecene
Compensated absences payable...............................
Other current liabilities, including retainages payable

Total current liabilities................cccoevvneeeiiniiieeeen.

Long-term liabilities:

Deferred revenues and deferred credits.....................
Notes payable..........cccoociiiiii e
Revenue bonds payable.............c.coeiis
Capital lease and instaliment debt

obligations payable...........c.ccccoirii i
Compensated absences payable..............c...coceeceee.
Other long-term liabilities.............c.cococinnnnicniinnns

Total long-term liabilities.............c.ccccoonniinns
Total liabilities............cccceevcmminiiiinnrcniiicnnceennns
Fund Equity:

Contributed capital.................cocoeveiiiiiee
Retained earnings..............ccccooeeieeniiiiiinnce e

Total fund equity

Total liabilities and fund equity.............cccecennee

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Savannah
Public State Lakes Enterprise
Service Ports Regional Development, Inc.,
Authority Authority Loan Fund of South Carolina Totals

$ 94,583 $ 15124 $ 1 $ 820 110,528
— 641 - — 641
— — — 30 30
218,642 1,070 — — 219,712
3,526 29 - - 3,555
204,773 — — —_ 204,773
— 1,274 — 16 1,290
36,297 1,242 — — 37,539
557,821 19,380 1 866 578,068
42,509 —_ —_ — 42,509
— — — 145 145
2,011,220 85,010 — — 2,096,230
39,186 65 — - 39,251
10,676 —_ — —_ 10,676
12,275 3,706 — — 15,981
2,115,866 88,781 — 145 2,204,792
2,673,687 108,161 1 1,011 2,782,860
34,438 174,398 1,020 — 209,856
756,558 114,187 318 1,176 872,239
790,996 288,585 1,338 1,176 1,082,095
$ 3,464,683 $ 396,746 $ 1,339 $ 2,187 3,864,955




State of South Carolin

N
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses,
and Changes in Fund Equity
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1997
(Expressed in Thousands)
Savannah
Lakes
Public State Regional Enterprise
Service Ports Loan Development, Inc.,
Authority Authority Fund of South Carolina Totals
Operating revenues:
Charges for services.................cocooeevvnneinecnene $ 699,606 $ 71,024 $ — $ 2,394 $ 773,024
Contributions. ..o — - — 495 495
Interest and other investment income.................. — — 12 — 12
Total operating revenues..............cccecerencnenen. 699,606 71,024 12 2,889 773,531
Operating expenses:
General operations and administration................. 391,255 42,881 60 2,737 436,933
Depreciation and amortization 110,660 15,086 — 34 125,780
Other operating expenses..........c...cocccocvreierernnene 1,928 — 1 — 1,929
Total operating expenses...........ccoccevrerceririnens 503,843 57,967 61 2,771 564,642
Operating income (10SS)........cconneiesnissennisans 195,763 13,057 (49) 118 208,889
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Interest INCOME........oocoovvviiviiieiciee e 23,537 2,595 57 25 26,214
Federal revenue — — — 309 309
Costs to be recovered from future revenues........ 2,034 — —_ _— 2,034
Interest exXpense............oocciiiiiieiii e (165,013) (4,559) — —_ (169,572)
Other nonoperating revenues (expenses)............ 9,625 (148) — (12) 9,465
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)....... (129,817) (2,112) 57 322 (131,550)
Income before operating
transfers........coccveererrnrercnrrcsenesr e 65,946 10,945 8 440 77,339
Transfers to primary government...........c.cc.cceeceee. (6,682) — — — (6,682)
Net INCOME.....c.cvcveereccrcrner s eseresssasennes 59,264 10,945 8 440 70,657
Retained earnings, July 1, 1996..............ccc.ocen.. 700,947 103,242 310 736 805,235
Net unrealized loss on investment
securities available for sale...........ccccocrcennne (3,653) —_— —_ —_ (3,653)
Retained earnings, June 30, 1997.......c.cccovvcvevenes 756,558 114,187 318 1,176 872,239
Contributed capital, July 1, 1996 34,438 173,896 1,020 — 209,354
Additions to contributed capital......................... —_— 502 —_ 502
Fund equity, June 30, 1997.......ccccccccrverererenenenens $ 790,996 $ 288,585 $ 1,338 $ 1,176 $ 1,082,095

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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State of South Carolina

A —

Combining Statement of Cash Flows

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1997
(Expressed in Thousands)

Savannah Enterprise
Public State Lakes Development,
Service Ports Regional Inc., of
Authority Authority Loan Fund  South Carolina Totals

Cash flows from operating activities:
Operating inCome (I0SS) .........coveeciciiinienminrieeeenienns $ 195,763 $ 13,057 $ 49 $ 118 $ 208,889
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash provided by (used in) operations:

Depreciation and amortization ... 110,660 15,086 — 34 125,780
Provision for loan losses and bad debts...................... — — 57 —_ 57
Loss (gain) on disposition of property and equipment... — 41 — ()] 32
Issuance of loans and notes............ccccceeiiiiniiininnnnn. — — — (387) (387)

Collection of loans and notes................ — — 35 — 35
Deferred coal contract buy-out costs ... 5,700 — — — 5,700
Donated propemnty..........ccocoervvireiciiiiii i — — — (495) (495)
Other nonoperating revenues...............coceoveeviininnnnns 43 — — — 43
Other nonoperating expenses.............ccocceeeieeviieieenninn. — (148) — (12) (160)
(0111 1= SRRV URTSO PP — 108 — — 108

Change in assets--decreases (increases):

Accounts receivable, net................cccccooiiii (4,006) (2,137) — — (6,143)
INVENEOFIES. .....eeeeeeeeeeeieeeiee et cae e eeeeenaneees 3,669 (56) — — 3,613
Other current @sSets............c.cocoveeviiiieiiiii s 1,013 (692) — (8) 313
Deferred Charges............cccooeverveiiecii e 5,460 — — — 5,460
Change in liabilities--increases (decreases):
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities....................... (2,462) (956) — 274 (3,144)
Compensated absences payable................................ — — — 16 16
Other liabilities, including retainages payable................ (863) — — — (863)

Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities............coccvvvirieiniiccncn, 314,977 24,303 43 (469) 338,854

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:

Federal revVenUEe..............cccceeoiiiiiiiineie e — — —_ 204 204
Transfers to primary government..................occoooee (6,682) — — — (6,682)
Net cash provided by (used in)
noncapital financing activities........c.c.covverieinae. (6,682) —_ — 204 (6,478)
The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integrai part of this statement. Continued on Next Page
.
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DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (Continued)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1997
(Expressed in Thousands)

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:

Acquisition of property, plant, and equipment...............
Proceeds from sale of property, plant, and equipment..
Proceeds from sale of notes payable..............cc............
Proceeds from sale of revenue bonds...........................
Principal payments and refundings on revenue bonds..
Interest payments ...........ccccocvvieiiiiin
Payment of bond issuance costs............cceceeiieinnn
Decrease in commercial paper notes .............cc.cceeeee
Principal payments on capital leases and instaliment
debt obligations payable ..............ccccco i,
Contributions of capital ........c.ccocovreveveiiininie

Net cash used in capital and
related financing activities.........c.cccccccrirerenciniieinas

Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from sale of investments..............c.c.ccoooeenee.
Purchase of investments ...........c.oocevr e
Interest on investments...............cccccoiiiiinn,

Net cash provided by investing activities...............

Net increase (decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents...........ccccceeunenenn.

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year............

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year..............ccc.e.

Noncash capital, investing, and financing activities:
Acquisition of property and equipment through:
DOoNAtioNS. .....cccveiiiiiieie e

Total noncash capital, investing,
and financing activities........cccccccvniircrccreniininae

Enterprise
Savannah Development,
Public State Lakes Inc., of
Service Ports Regional South
Authority Authority Loan Fund Carolina Totals
$ (79,860) $ (17,287) — $ (210) $ (97,357)
— — — 11 11
— — — 175 175
354,220 - —_ — 354,220
(382,490) (1,015) — —_ (383,505)
(155,396) (4,536) — — (159,932)
(22,013) — — —_ (22,013)
(32,547) — —_ — (32,547)
(3,418) (29) — — (3,447)
— 502 —_ — 502
{321,504) (22,365) —_ (24) (343,893)
— 5,642 — —_ 5,642
(4,823) (5,110) — — (9,933)
24,886 2,595 57 25 27,563
20,063 3,127 57 25 23,272
6,854 5,065 100 (264) 11,755
215,278 34,865 998 269 251,410
$ 222,132 $ 39,930 1,098 $ 5 $ 263,165
$ — $ — — $ 495 $ 495
$ -— $ — — $ 495 $ 495

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFI-
CANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

a. Scope of Reporting Entity

The State of South Carolina is %ovemed by the
South Carolina General Assembly, an elected
leﬁlslatlve body, and several elecfed executives.
These general purpose financial statements present
the State and its component units—entities for which
the State and its elected officials are considered to be
financially accountable. )

Blended component units, although legally
separate entities, are, in substance, part of the State's
operations. Accordingly, data from these component
units are combined with data of the primary
government. Each discretely presented component
unit, on the other hand, is reported in a separate
column_in the combined financial statements to
empbhasize its legal separateness from the State,

As explained more_ fully below, the State's
primary government and its component units include
various State funds, account groups, agencies,
departments, institutions, authorities, and other
organizations.

Primary Government

All constitutional offices, departments, agencies,
commissions, and authorities have been included in
the State's reporting entity as part of the primary
ﬁovemment unless otherwise noted. Most of these

ave executives or boards appointed by the
Governor, the General Assembly, or a combination
thereof. These entities are financially accountable
to, and fiscally dependent on, the State.

Although'they operate somewhat autonomously,
the entities” listed below are included in_the State's
primary government because they lack full corporate
powers.

Fiscal year ended June 30, 1997:
Staté Housing Finance and Development
Authority . .
South Carolina Education Assistance
Authority .
Jobs-Economic Development Authority
Patriots Point Development Authority

Fiscal year ended December 31, 1996:
The South Carolina Deferred Compensa-
tion Plans L
The Public Railways Division of the
Department of Commerce

The State's five retirement systems are
considered part of the State's primary government,
The State Budget and Control Board, consisting of
five elected officials, serves as trustee of the
s st;ms, and the State Treasurer is custodian of the
unds.
~ The ten State-supported universities and the
sixteen area technical colleges and their blended and
discrete component units are reported within the

State's Higher Education Funds as part of the
primary government. Although the universities and
colleges operate somewhat autonomously, they lack
full corporate powers. In addition, the Governor
and/or the General Assembly appoints most of their
fboa(lids and budgets a significant portion of their
unds.

Note 1s provides further information concerning
component units of the universities and colleges.
The component units of the universities and colleges
are:

Blended Component Units:
The Citadel Trust_
IPTAY Scholarship Fund
The Faculty House of Carolina, Inc.

Blended Component Units Discretely Presented:
Clemson Research Facilities Corporation
Lander Foundatjon ) o
Lander University Alumni Association
University of South Carolina School of

. Medicine Educational Trust =

Clinical Faculty Practice Plan (University
of South Carolina)

Charleston Memorial Hospital

University Medical = Associates of the
Medical University of South Carolina
(including _ its ~ three  for-profit
subsidiaries) o .

Medical University Facilities Corporation

Pharmaceutical Education and Develop-
ment Foundation of the Medical
University of South Carolina i

Medical University of South Carolina
Foundation for Research
Development

Discrete Component Unit: .
South Carolina Environmental Education
Consortium

Discretely Presented Component Units

. The State's financial statements include the
discretely presented component units listed below.

Fiscal year ended June 30, 1997:
Soufh Carolina State Ports Authority
Savannah Lakes Regional Loan Fund
Entexgrlse_ Development, Inc., of South
arolina

Fiscal year ended December 31, 1996: i
South Carolina Public Service Authority
(Santee-Cooper)

The South Carolina Public Service Authority, a
&ubllc utility company, was created by the State
eneral Assembly in 1934. The Authon%,y's primary
gurpose is to provide electric power to the people of
outh Carolina. = The Governor appoints the
Authority's Board of Directors. By law, the
Authority must annually transfer to the State General
Fund any net earnings not necessary for prudent
business operations. .
he South Carolina State Ports Authority was
created in 1942 by the State General Assembl%;for
the purposes of developing and improving the State's
harbors and seaports. e State Ports Authority
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owns and operates seven ocean terminals that handle
import and export cargo. The Governor appoints the
members of the Authority's governing board.
The Savannah Lakes Regional Loan Fund is a
non-profit corporation established in 1990. It
maintains a revolving loan fund to promote
economic development in the State's Savannah
Lakes Region. he Fund's Board of Directors
consists of three members from each of two State
agencies, the Department of Commerce and the
Jobs—Economic Development Authority. .
Enterprise Development, Inc., of South Carolina
was created in 1989 as the result of a proviso of the
State Appropriation Act. The Corporation was
established "to  support the South Carolina
Department of Commerce in achieving its economic
development goals for the State. The purpose of the
organization 1s to identify, create, and develop
strategic initiatives and business resources in order
for the State to achieve economic parity with
neighboring states. During the fiscal year ended
June 30, 1997, the Corporation's Board of Directors
consisted of four ex-officio State elected officers and
five members appointed by the Secretary of the
South Carolina Department of Commerce.
. ..Complete financial statements for each of these
individual component units may be obtained at the
entity's administrative office as follows:

South Carolina Public Service Authority
(Santee-Cooper)
One Riverwood Drive

Moncks Corner, South Carolina
29461-2901

South Carolina State Ports Authority
Post Office Box 22287
Charleston, South Carolina 29413-2287

Savannah Lakes Regional Loan Fund
1201 Main Street, Suite 1750
Columbia, South Carolina 29201

Enterprise Development, Inc., of South
Carolina ]

1105 Bellview Drive

Columbia, South Carolina 29201

These financial statements exclude the related
foundations listed in Note 15 because the State does
not significantly influence operations of the related
foundations nor are the related foundations
accountable to the State for fiscal matters.

Related Organizations

. A related organization is one for which the
primary government is not financially accountable
even though the primary government appoints a
voting majority of the organization's governing
board. The South Carolina Children's Trust Fund is
a related organization because the State is not
financially accountable for it despite the fact that the
Governor appoints all nine of its trustees. County
boards of  mental retardation are related
organizations if their members are appointed by the
Governor but are not related organizations if ‘their
membgirs are appointed by their respective county
councils.

b. Basis of Presentation—Fund Accounting

The State uses fund accounting under which it
segregates its resources and accounts for them in
various jndividual funds. Each individual fund is an
accounting entity with a self-balancing set of
accounts. = Individual funds that have similar
characteristics are combined into fund types.

Governmental Funds

Governmental Funds finance most of the State's

ﬁg)vemmental functions. The measurement focus of

e Governmental Funds is on sources, uses, and
balances of financial resources.

The General Fund is the State's general
operating fund. It accounts for resources that fund
the services South Carolina's  State government
traditionally has provided to its citizens, except those
required to be accounted for in another fund. )

Special Revenue Funds account for specific
Tevenue sources (gther than_for Cagltal Projects,
Trust, and Higher Education Funds) that are legally
restricted for specified purposes.

Capital Projects Funds account for resources to
acquire major capital facilities for use by the General
Fund and Special Revenue Funds.

Debt Service Funds are not used because the
State does not accumulate resources to pay future
§ears' eneral long-term obligations. Instead, the

tate finances such payments directly from the
current year's resources.

Proprietary Funds

Proprietary Funds account for activities_similar
to those found in the private sector. The Financial
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) and _its
predecessor organizations have issued ‘accounting
and reporting standards for activities in the private
sector. The State's Proprietary Funds have elected
not to_apply standards issued by those organizations
after November 30, 1989. These funds, however
have applied all applicable pronouncements issue
?(‘é AtgeB ) overnmental Accounting Standards Board
. The measurement focus of the Proprietary Funds
is upon determination of net income, financial
position, and cash flows. ) )

. Enterprise Funds account for business-like State
activities that provide goods/services to the public
financed primarily through user charges, .

Internal Service Funds provide goods/services to
other funds, agencies, component units, or
governments on a cost-allocation basis.

Fiduciary Funds

Fiduciary Funds account for resources the State
holds  as trustee or agent for individuals, private
organizations, or other governmental units. Both
principal and earnings ot Expendable Trust Funds
may be used for purposes allowed under the trust
a¥reements. Onlly he earnings, but not the principal,
of Nonexpendable Trust Funds may be expended.
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Expendable Trust Funds have the same
measurement focus as_ Governmental Funds.
Nonexpendable Trust and Pension Trust Funds have
the same _measurement focus as Proprietary Funds.
Agency Funds are custodial in pature and do not
involve measurement of results of operations.

Account Groups

. _The Genera] Fixed Assets, Account Group
includes all fixed assets of the primary government
other than those accounted for in the Proprietary,
Fiduciary, and ngIlier Education Funds.

The~General Long-Term Obligations Account
Group accounts for all long-term obligations_of the
rimary government not accounted for in the
roprietary  and ngll)le_r _Education  Funds.
Significant long-term © llgatxons include bonds,
capital leases, compensated absences, and claims
and judgments.

Discretely Presented Component Units

The State's discretely presented component units
conduct business-like” “activities that provide
goods/services to the public and are financed
grlmarll through user charges. The measurement
focus of these entities is upon determination of net
income, financial position, and cash flows. The
Public ' Service Authority and the State Ports
Authority have elected” to apply all FASB
ronouncements that are not inconsistent with
ASB pronouncements. ~ The other discretely
presented component units have elected not to apgly
standards  issued by the FASB  after
November 30, 1989.

c. Basis of Accounting

The basis of accounting determines when the
State recognizes revenues and expenditures/expenses

and relatéd assets and liabilities, regardless of

measurement focus.

Governmental, Expendable Trust, and Agency
Funds

_ The modified accrual basis of accounting is used
in Governmental, Expendable Trust, and "Agency
Funds. Under the modified accrual basis, revenues
are recorded when they become susceptible to
accrual ﬁl.e., both measurable and available). Except
for entitlements, unemployment insurance taxes, and
interest on investments, revenues are deemed
available at year-end only if received within one
month  following _ year-end, Unemployment
insurance taxes in thé Expendable Trust Funds are
deemed available at year-end only if received within
forty-five days following year-end. Interest on
invéstments_is recorded as earned because it is
deemed available when earned. Deferred revenue is
recorded for receivables that are measurable but not
available at year-end. ] )
Individual and corporate income taxes in the
hands of employers or corporations, sales and
similar taxes (including gasoline taxes) in the hands

of merchants or other State collection agents
delinquent taxes, charges for services —an
commodities, and interest income are accrued at
year-end. Fines, forfeitures, licenses and fees, and
other miscellaneous taxes and revenues are recorded
as revenues when received in cash because they are
generally not measurable until actually received.
Expenditures generally are recorded when goods

or_services are received. ~An exception is that
E)}rmmpal and interest on obligations reflected in the

eneral Long-Term Obligations Account Group are
recorded as expenditures when due. Additional
exceptions are that expenditures for compensated
absences, claims and judgments, and special
employee termination benefits reflected in the
General Long-Term Obligations Account Group are
recorded when paid.

Proprietary Funds, Nonexpendable Trust
unds, Pension Trust Funds, and Discretely
Presented Component Units

The State uses the accrual basis of accounting to
report activity of the Proprietary, Nonexpendable
Trust, and Pénsion Trust Funds and the discretely
presented component units. Under the accrual basis
of accounting, the State recognizes revenues when
earned and expenses when incurred. The Public
Service Authority, a discretely presented component
unit, is a regulated utility which uses accounting
ﬁrmmples established by the Federal Energy

egulatory Commission.

Grant/Entitlement Revenues

The State recognizes grants, including non-cash
support, as revenue when the State has incurred
grant costs and has met all  related grant
requirements (such as matching requirements). Food
commodities totaled $12.523 million for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 1997. In contrast, the State
recognizes entitlements as revenue at the beginning
of the entitlement period.

The State_recognizes the face value of food
stamp _ benefits distributed as revenue and
expenditures in the Departmental General Operatin
Fund (a Special Revenue Fund) at the date o
distribution to individual recipients. Food stamp
revenues and expenditures for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 1997, totaled $289.562 million. In
addition, the State has recorded $144 thousand for
food stamp coupons on_hand at June 30, 1997, as
part of Other Assets and Deferred Revenue.

The State normally does not_account for any
grants in its Agency Funds. Pending determination
of which funds are to be financed, however,
grant/entltle_ment monies to be distributed to_other

tate agencies are accounted for in A ency Funds.

At June 30, 1997, assets totalin $%45.housand
were being held in Agency Funds pending such
determination.

d. Cash and Cash Equivalents

The amounts shown on the Combined Balance
Sheet as Cash and Cash Equivalents represent petty

X
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cash, cash on deposit in banks, and cash invested in
various instruments as a part of the State's cash
management pool. Because the cash management
pool operates as a demand deposit account, amounts
invested in the pool are classified as Cash and Cash
Equivalents. e State Treasurer administers the
cash management pool. The pool includes some
long-term investments such as obligations of the
United States and certain agencies of the United
States, obligations, of domestic. corporations,
certificates of deposit, and collateralized repurchase
agreements. . .

Most entities in the primary government
participate in the cash management pool. Significant
exceptions, however, are: Tretirement and deferred
compensation plans, the Local Government
Investment_Pool, the Housing Authority Fund (an
Enterprise Fund), and certain activities of the Higher
Education Funds. Of the discretely presented
component units, only the State Porfs Authority
?artlclpates in the pool. For activities excluded from
he pool, Cash Equivalents include investments in
short-term, highly liquid securities having an initial
maturity of three months or less.

e. Cash Management Pool-Allocation of Interest

The State's cash management pool consists of a
general deposit account and several special deposit
accounts. The State records each fund's equity
interest in the general deposit account. All earnings
on that account, however, are recorded in the
General Fund.  In contrast, each special deposit
account retains 1ts own earnings.

f. Cash on Deposit with Fiscal Agents

The Cash on Deposit with Fiscal Agents in the
Trust. and Agency Funds consists of amounts
associated with the unem?loyment compensation
[%rogram that are on deposit with the United States

reasury.

g. Investments

. The State Treasurer is authorized by statute to
invest all State funds. The State "Treasurer’s
investment obtlectlves are preservation of capital,
maintenance of adequate lquIdl%, and obtaining the
best yield possible within prescribed parameters. To
meet those objectives, the State Treasurer uses
various resources including an investment advisory
service, = electronic  financial quotation and
information services, various economic reports, and
daily communication with brokers and financial
institution investment officers. =

To insure safety of principal, the State
Treasurer’s policy is to limit liquid investments (i.e.,
those with maturities not exceeding one year) to
cash, repurchase agreements (when collateralized by
United States Treasury, Federal agency or other
Federally guaranteed obligations with a market value
in excess of 100% of funds advanced), United States
Treasury bills, Federal agency discount notes, and
commercial paper. The State Treasurer further
preserves principal by investing in only the highest

investment grade securities (i.e., those rated at least
A bal_ two leading national rating services). In order
to diversify investment holdings, asset™ allocation
olicies are utilized for investments having more
han one year to maturity. Overall credit exposure is
managed” by asset allocation policies and
additional constraints controlling risk exposure to
individual corporate issuers.

Investments of the Pension Trust Funds are
[)resented at fair value. Securities are valued at the
last reported sales price as provided by an
independent pricing service. _ Generally, “other
investments are stated at amortized cost_using the
effective interest method to amortize bond
premiums/discounts over the time from purchase to
maturity, except for deferred comﬁensatlon plans'
investments_ which are valued at the value of the
underlying insurance contracts. The Public Service
Authority, a discretely_ presented component unit,
however, carries its available-for-sale investments at
market value with the net unrealized gain or loss
offset against its fund equity. The Authority has no
trading investments.

h. Receivables

Receivables are stated net of allowances for
uncollectible amounts. Uncollectible amounts are
estimated based upon past collection experience.

i. Inventories

Inventories of the Governmental Funds are
valued at cost using predominantly the first-in, first-
out methodology. nventories 0f the Proprietary
Funds and the discretely presented component units
are valued at_cost using the average cost
methodology. The Governmental Funds use the
?urchases method while the Proprietary Funds and
he discretely presented component units use the
consumption method.

j- Servicing Rights

The Public Railways Division of the Department
of Commerce (reporfed in the Other Enterprise
Funds) entered into a serv1c1n% agreement during its
fiscal year ended December 31, 1995. The Division
reports servicing rights as an intangible asset which
will be amortized to operating expenses over the life
of the agreement. The servicing rights are stated net
of accumulated amortization.

k. Fixed Assets and Depreciation

. Fixed assets are valued at historical cost or at
estimated historical cost if actual historical cost data
are not available. Donated fixed assets are recorded
at fair market value on the donation date.

Governmental Funds

Governmental Funds record expenditures when
they acquire fixed assets and capitalize those assets
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in the General Fixed Assets Account Group. The
General Fixed Assets Account Group records neither
depreciation nor  capitalization __ of interest
exgendlturgs during construction. The State does
not record its public domain (infrastructure) assets in
the General Fixed Assets Account Group.

Proprietary Funds, Similar Trust Funds, and
iscretely Presented Component Units

Proprietary Funds, Nonexpendable Trust Funds
Pension Trust Funds, and_the discretely resented
component _units capitalize fixed assets when
acquired. Net interest costs are capitalized on
rojects . during the  construction  period.

epreciation is provided using the straight-line
method over the following estimated useful lives:

Asset Years
Wando River channel dredging project.............. 50
Other land improvements ..............cccceceoeeen, 20-30
Residential buildings...........cccconveriiiiiininnnn. 20-30
Office and other buildings .................c.ocoocenn. 20-40
Hydro-electric utility plants................cc.coeie 55
Other utility plants.............ccccooninnincnncnns 22-37
Automobiles, vans, light trucks .......................... 5-8
Heavy trucks and buses ... 8-15
Airplanes and helicopters ................cccoeeiee 3-8
Other furnishings and equipment....................... 5-15

Depreciation on fixed assets acquired from
Contributed Capital is closed to Retained Earnings.

I. Restricted Assets and Liabilities Payable from
Restricted Assets

Most of the amounts reported as Restricted
Assets in the Enterprise Funds and in the discretely
{)resented component units represent assets required
to be held and/or used as specified in bond
indentures and bond resolutions. In the Enterprise
Funds, Restricted Assets also include amounts
collected by the Second InJu_ri Fund to pay claims
for which the Fund has no risk. The amounts _held
by the Second Injury Fund are offset by Liabilities
Payable from Restricted Assets to demonstrate that
thé Fund has not assumed any risk for the payment
of claims, . )

Restricted assets are classified _into four
categories: Cash and Cash_ Equivalents,
Investments, Loans Receivable, and Other. The
State's restricted assets consist primarily of United
States government securities, repurchase
agreements, and student and mortgage loans
receivable.

m. Deferred Charges

Deferred costs to be recovered from future
revenues of the South Carolina Public Service
Authorltg (a regulated utility which is a discretely
resented component unit) are recorded as Deferred
harges. The Autharity’s rates are based upon debt
service and operating fund requirements. The
Authority recognizes™ differences between debt

principal maturities and straight-line depreciation as
costs to be recovered from future revenue. The
recovery of outstanding amounts associated with
costs to be recovered from future revenue will
coincide with the retirement of the outstanding long-
term _debt of the Authority.

Deferred charges also include the cost of a buﬁ'-
out option on a coal contract exercised by the
Authority. The cost is being amortized 'as a
componeént of fuel costs over the remaining life of
the former contract.

n. Tax Refunds Payable

Most of the Tax Refunds Payable balance in the
General Fund relates to Individual Income Tax.
During the calendar year, the State collects
employee withholdings "and _taxspztl_yers' payments.
Taxpayers file returns by April 15 for the preceding
calendar year. At June 30, the State estimates the
amount 1t owes taxpayers for_ overpayments during
the preceding six months. This estimated payable is
recorded as Tax Refunds Payable and a reduction of
Tax Revenues.

o. Long-Term Obligations

The State records long-term debt of
6ovgmmental funds in the General Long-Term
bligations Account Group. Other governmental
fund obligations not_expected to be financed with
current available financial resources also  are
recorded in the General Long-Term Obligations
Account Group. Long-term _debt and  other
obligations _financed bﬁl proprietary funds are
recorded as liabilities in the appropriate funds.

The State’s debt in the General Long-Term
Obligations Account Group includes “capital
a{)precxatlor_l deep-discount) bonds that were issued
at_stated interest rates significantly below the
effective_ interest rate, The resulting discount is
systematically reduced and the carrying amount of
the debt is systematically increased over the life of
the bonds. i

For Governmental Fund Types, bond premiums
and discounts, as well as “issuance costs, are
recognized during the current_ period. Bond
proceeds are reported as Other Financing Sources
net of the aﬁphcable ?rer_nlum or discount.” Issuance
costs, whether or not withheld from the actual net
proceeds received, are reported as expenditures.

For Proprietary Fund Types and the discretely
presented component units, bond premiums and
discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and
amort.lzed. over the life of the bonds using_the
effective interest method. For current refundings
and advance refundings resulting in defeasance of
debt, the difference between the reacquisition price
and the net carrying amount of the old debt is also
deferred and amortized over the remaining life of the
old debt or the life of the new debt, whichever is
shorter. Bonds payable are reported net of the
applicable bond premium or discount and deferred
amount on refunding. Unamortized issuance costs
are reported as deferred charges. . | )

A component unit of an institution reported in
the State's Higher Education Funds enters into
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interest rate swap agreements to modify interest
rates on outstandm§ ebt. Other than the net interest
expenditures resulfing from_these agreements, no
amounts are recorded in the financial statements.

p. Compensated Absences

_ During their first ten years of service, most full-

time permanent State employees annually earn
15 days of vacation leave and 1S days of sick leave.
After'ten years, most employees earn an additional
1.25 days of vacation leave for each year of service
over ten until they reach the maximum of 30 days
per year. Emtployees may carry forward up to
45 days of vacation leave and 180 days of sick leave
from ~one calendar year to the "next.  Upon
termination  of employment, the State pays
employees for accumulated vacation leave at the pay
rate then in effect. Employees do not receive pay for
accumulated sick leave when they  terminate.
However, at retirement, employees participating in
the South Carolina Retirement System and the South
Carolina Police Officers’ Retirement System may
receive additional service credit for up to 90 days of
accumulated unused sick leave. .

When emgloyees earn vacation leave, the
Governmental Fund T 'Fes record a liability in the
General Long-Term Obligations Account Group for
the amount expected to be used or paid in cash.” The
General and Special Revenue Funds record
expenditures when employees use leave.

_ The Proprietary Funds record an expense and a
liability when employees earn vacation leave.

The South Carolina Public Service Authority, a
regulated utility and a discretely presented
component unit, records the cost of vacation leave
that employees earn as an asset, Deferred Charges
(to be recovered through the rate-setting %rocess),
and as long-term Compensated Absences Payable.
When it pays employees for leave, the Authority
reduces the asset and liability and records an
expense. L )

The State does not record a liability for unpaid
accumulated sick leave.

q. Interfund Transactions

_ The State accounts for the following types of
interfund transactions:

Interfund loans may occur between two_ State
funds. Short-term inteérfund loans outstanding at
year-end are recorded as Interfund Receiv-
ables/Payables. Advances To/From Other Funds
repreglent long-term interfund loans receivable and

ayable.

pay Reimbursements result when one fund makes an
expenditure on behalf of another fund. Reim-
bursement transactions reduce expenditures in the
reimbursed fund and increase expenditures in the
reimbursing fund. i )

Quasi-external transactions involve charges for
oods or services that one fund delivers or provides
o another. These transactions may result in_the
recording of short-term receivables or payables (Due
From or To Other Funds, Primary Government, or
Component Units) at year-end.

Residual equity transfers are nonroutine or
nonrecurring transfers between funds. ]

Operating  transfers include all interfund
transactions that are not loans, reimbursements,
quasi-external transactions, or residual equity
transfers. o ) )

The State eliminates material _intrafund
transactions and interfund transactions that occur
within a single combined financial statement fund

type.
r. Escheat Property

The State accounts for its escheat property in the
General Fund, the fund to which the property
ultimately escheats. To the extent it is probable that
such property will be reclaimed and paid to
claimants, the State records a liability and reduces
revenue in the General Fund.

s. Higher Education Funds

Financial  activities of the State's higher
education institutions are reported in the Higher
Education Funds within the State's primary
government. These funds use generally accepted
accounting principles that apply to colleges and
universities as contained in Audits of Colleges and
Universities ;i.ubllshed by the American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The Higher Education
Funds are presented in a separate column on the
Combined Balance Sheet. The Combined Statement
of Changes in Fund Balances-Higher Education
Funds presents the following fund types: )

Current Funds account Yor resources that higher
education institutions may use_for any purpose in
carrying_out their primary objectives. Restricted
Current Funds include resources that donors or other
outside agencies have restricted for specific current
operating purposes. _ All other current funds are

nrestricted Current Funds. .

Loan Funds account for resources available for
loans to students, faculty, or staff of higher
education institutions.

Endowment and Similar Funds account for
endowment and _ quasi-endowment transactions.
These funds are similar to trust funds. The State
must comply with the terms of any applicable
agreements, . . .

Plant Funds account for transactions involving
physical properties of the higher education
institutions. ~ The Unexpended Plant subgroup
accounts for monies that institutions have available
to finance the acquisition, A construction, or
improvement of physical properties. Resources that
institutions have set aside for the renewal and
replacement of institutional properties are also
recorded in this subgroup. The Retirement of
Indebtedness subgroup_includes monies to pay debt
service_and to_retire indebtedness on institutional
properties.  The Investment in Plant subgroup
accounts for funds that institutions have expended
for (and thus have invested in) their properties and
any related outstanding debt. ) i

Agency Funds within the Higher Education
Funds™ account for amounts that higher education
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inlsltitutions hold as custodians or fiscal agents for
others.

Foundations and Institutes Funds account for
certain component units of the State's colleges and
universities. Most of these component units have
fiscal years ended June 30, but some have fiscal

ears ended December 31. The South Carolina
nvironmental Education Consortium qualifies as a
discrete component_ unit of one of the State's
universities but is still considered part of the State's
primary government, All of the remaining
component units in the Foundations and Institutes
Funds meet the criteria for blending but are
Bresented in a separate column because they use a
asis of accounting different from the one followed
by the State's colleges and universities. Most of the
component units of higher education institutions are
governmental entities that follow one of the two
accounting and financial repqrtm& models defined
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board’s
Statement 29, “The  Use “of Not-for-Profit
Accounting and Financial Reporting Principles by
Governmental Entities.” A few of the component
units, however, are nonagovemm@ntal entities that
follow generally accepted accounting principles for
non-profit entifies as prescribed by the Financial
Accounting Standards Board.

The Combined Statement of Current Funds

Revenues, Expenditures, and Other Changes—Higher
Education Funds is a statement of financial activities
related to the current reporting period. It does not
purport to present the results of operations or the net
income or loss for the period as would a statement of
income or a statement of revenues and expenses.
. Cash transfers between the higher education
institutions and the General Fund and Special
Revenue Funds appear as revenues and expenditures
on the Combined Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances—
Budget and Actual %Budgeta . Basis)—All
Budgeted Funds. On all other combined operating
statements, however, such transfers to (from) the
institutions appear in the Higher Education Funds as
Operating Transfers In (Outﬁ ) ]

The measurement focus in the Higher Education
Funds is upon determination of resources received
and used. The Higher Education Funds use the
accrual basis, Al ou%h certain  not-for-profit
com&ronent units in the Foundations and Institutes
Fund record depreciation of fixed assets, other
Higher Education, Funds do not. In addition,
revenues from tuition and student fees of a summer
session are reported totally within the fiscal year in
which the session is predominantly conducted.
Current Funds used to finance plant assets are
accounted for as (1)expenditures for normal
replacement of movable equ%pment and library
books, (2) mandatory transfers for required

rovisions ~for debt amortization/interest, and
3) transfers of a nonmandatory nature for all other
cases.

Higher Education Funds record expenditures
when they acquire fixed assets and capitalize those
assets within their Plant Funds.  These funds
capitalize interest expenditures during construction
but do not record depreciation. ]

Unamortized bond discounts are netted against
the related portion of bonds %ayable in the
Retirement of Indebtedness subgroup. The

discounts are amortized to interest on indebtedness
over the life of the bonds using the straight-line
method. ) . ]

Inventories of the Higher Education Funds_are
valued at the lower of cost or market using the first-
in, first-out method. These . funds | use the
consumption method of recording inventories.

The State's colleges and universities record an
expenditure and liability in the Unrestricted Current
Funds when employees earn credits toward future
compensated absences.

t. Totals (Memorandum Only) Columns

Amounts in the "Totals-Memorandum Oan"
columns for the primary government and for the
reporting entity represent an_aggregation of the
combined financial statement line-items to facilitate
financial analysis. ~ Amounts in the "Totals—
Memorandum Only" columns are not comparable to
a consolidation.
. "Memorandum Only" columns for 1996 are
included to ;1>rov1de a summarized comparison with
comparable 1997 amounts, The 1996 totals are not
intended to present all information necessary for a
fair presentation of financial position, results of
operations, and cash flows in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles.

To enhance comparability, certain 1996 amounts
have been reclassified to conform with the
presentation used in the 1997 financial statements.

NOTE 2: BUDGETARY ACCOUNT-
ING AND REPORTING

a. Budgetary Funds

South Carolina's A[I)J)ropriation Act does not
gresent budgets by GAAP fund. Instead, it presents
udgets for;
eneral Funds. These funds are general
operating funds. The resources in these funds are
primarily taxes. The State expends General Funds to
%rowde traditional State government services. The
ieneral Funds column in_the Appropriation Act
differs somewhat from the GAAP General Fund.
Total Funds. The Total Funds column in the
Appropriation Act includes all budgeted resources.
Amounts in this column include General Funds as
well as most Federal and department-generated
resources, Total Funds include certain Proprietary
and Capital Project Fund activities but exclude
Pension Trust Funds and most other Trust and
Agency Fund activities. i )
The accompanying financial statements include
a Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances—Budget and Actua
gBudgetary Basis)-All Budgeted Funds.  The
udgetary General Fund cate%_ory on that statement
corresponds to the General Funds column in the
Appropriation Act. The Other Budgeted Funds
category represents the difference between the Total
Funds "and the General Funds columns in the
Appropriation Act.
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b. Budgetary Basis of Accounting

Current_ legislation states  that the General
Assembly intends to apPro riate all monies to
operate State government for the current fiscal year.
Agencies may carry forward up to 10% of
unexpended Budlgetary General Fund appropriations
to the next fiscal year. Any remaining unexpended
Budgetary General Fund appropriations lapse on
July 31 unless the department or agency is given
specific authorization to carry them forward to the
next fiscal year. Cash-basis accounting for payroll
expenditures is required.

State law does not Ipremsely define the budgetary
basis of accounting, In practice, however, it 1s the
cash basis with the Tollowing exceptions:

(i) Departments and agencies charge certain
vendor and interfund payments against the
?recedmf fiscal year's appropriations
hrough July 18.

(ii) Certain revenues collected in advance are
recorded as liabilities (deferred revenues)
rather than as revenues.

(iii) Sales Taxes (including the Education
Improvement Act—1% Sales_Tax, Excise
Tax—Casual Sales, and Retail Sales Tax—
4%) in the Combined Statement of
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund  Balances—Budget and ctual
(Budgetary Basis) are recorded on the
modified accrual basis.

(iv) The following taxes in the Combined
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances—Budget and
Actual (Budgetary Basis) are recorded on
the modified accrual basis:  Admissions
Tax, Alcoholic Liquors Tax, Beer and Wine
Tax, Business License Tax, Electric Power
Tax, Gasoline Tax—Counties, Soft Drinks
Tax, and Commercial Nuclear Waste Tax.

(v) All other revenues are recorded only when
the State receives the related cash.

c. Budgetary Policies

State law does not require the use of
encumbrance accounting. Neither the General Fund
nor the Budgetary General Fund, therefore, records
encumbrances or a reserve for encumbrances.
Instead, the General Fund records the authorized
appropriations to be carried forward as a reserve of
fund balance. L

The_ State maintains budgetary control at the
level of summary object category of expenditure
within each grogram of each department or agency.
All budgeted departments and agencies except the
higher ~ education institutions” process  their
disbursement vouchers through a central bud%etary
accounting_system maintained by the Compfroller
General's Office. Departments and agencies ma
grocess disbursement vouchers in the State’s

udgetary accounting system only if enough cash

and  appropriations  exist. The  State's
1996-97 Appropriation Act has approximately 2,970
aﬁ)proprlate line items. These line items constitute
the level of legal control over expenditures. The
level of legal control for all agencies is reported in a
ublication of the State Comptroller General's Office
itled "A Detailed Report of Appropriations and
Expenditures," not included herein. Departments
and agencies may request transfers of appropriations
among summary object categories and/or amon
rograms within the same budgetary fund. No suc
ransfer request, however, may “exceed twenty
ercent of the program budget.” The Budget and

ontrol Board, composed of five key executive and
legislative officials, has the authofity to approve
such requests.

Each year, the General Assembly enacts an
Appropriafion Act that includes initial estimated
revenue and a pr%ﬁrlatlon figures for the Budgetary
General Fund. e 1996-97 Appropriation Act
directs the Budget and Control Board to reduce the
Budgetary General Fund's approlf)_rlatlons during the
§ear if nécessary to prevent a deficit. Likewise, the

tate Board of Economic Advisors may approve
revisions_of estimated revenues for the Budgetary
General Fund during the year.

For Other Budgeted Funds, the annual
Appropriation Act presents estimated revenue
amounts only for Education Improvement Act and
highway revenues. The Bu%get and Control Board,
however, provides estimated revenue amounts_for
the other resources in these funds.  The
Appropriation Act includes all appropriation
amounts for these funds._

As operating conditions change, departments
and agencies may request revisions of estimated
revenues and expenditures in Other Budgeted Funds,
Such changes require the Governor's approval and
the Budget and Control Board's review.
Departments and agencies also may request
revisions of estimated revenues and appropriations
for permanent improvement prOfects that the General
Assembly did not s%emﬁcal y authorize. _The
Budget and Control Board and the Joint Bond
Review Committee must approve and review these
changes. During the current fiscal year, the State's
budget was amended in accordance with the
procedures outlined above.

During 1996-97, the General Assembly passed a
Sugglemental_ ApPrczPr_lqtlons Act that added
$148.696 million of additional appropriations to the
Budgetarif General Fund for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 1997. Of this amount, $3.374 million  was
used to fund the General Reserve, and the remaining
$145.322 million was appropriated and reserved as
Appropriations to be Carried Forward to 1997-98.

As a result of special leglslatlon, the Budgetary
General Fund transferred $65.504 million to the
Other Budgeted Funds to help fund the newly
created South Carolina Transportation Infrastructure
Bank. This transfer was unbudgeted.

d. Excess of Expenditures Over Appropriations

For the fisca] year ended June 30, 1997, the
Educational function within Other Budgeted Funds
had $2.275 million of expenditures in excess of
appropriations at the level of legal control. These
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overexpenditures were associated with the State’s
technical colleges. The technical colleges maintain
their own accounting systems. The colleges had
sufficient budgetary-basis revenue and cash to
provide for their budgetary-basis expenditures.

e. Legal Limit On Appropriations

State law imposes a ceiling on appropriations for
general, school, and highway purposes. The limit
equals the greater of : (% ) the limit for the last fiscal
year increased by the average percentage rate of
rowth in State personal income for the previous

ree completed calendar tyears, or (2) 9.5% of the
total personal income of the State” for the last
com_;‘gleted calendar year. o )

he 1996-97 AJ);)rqf)natlon Act included

appropriations of $5.493 billion for general, school,
fmd Illlygh)tz\/ay purposes—$1.042 billion less than the
egal limit.

& In addition, the original apﬁro riations a;()froved
by the General Assembly for the Budgetary General
F%,md may not exceed the lesser of:

(i) Total recurring revenues collected in the
preceding fiscal year plus seventy-five
ercent of the revenue growth projected by
he Board of Economic Advisors, or

(i) The estimated revenue projected by the
Board of Economic Advisors.

The  1996-97 A;;;;roprjation Act _included
appropriations of $4.377 billion for the Budgetary
eneral Fund—an amount equal to the legal limit.

f. Legal Limit on Number of State Employees

The State's Constitution and_statutes limit the
number of employees that the Budgetary General
Fund may fund. "The number of these émployees
may not increase faster than the State's population,
On’ June 30, 1997, 37,162 emplo;l/:ees were funded
by the State's Budgetary General Fund—9,022 fewer
than the legal limit.

g. Reconciliation of Budget to GAAP Reporting
Differences

The Combined Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances—
Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis)-All Budgeted
Funds presents comparisons of the” State's legally
adopted budget with actual data on the budgetary
basis, of accounting. Bud etar?' accountin
principles, however, differ significantly from GAA
accounting principles. These different accountin
rinciples_result in_basis, perspective, entity, an
iming differences in the excess of revenues and
other sources of financial resources over (under)
expenditures and other uses of financial resources.
These differences (expressed in thousands) for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 1997, were:

Financial Statement Fund Types

Non- Totals
Expend-  expend- Higher {Memo-
Special Capital Enter- Intemal able able Pension Educa- randum
General Revenue Projects prise Service Trust Trust Trust Agency tion Only)
Classification of budgetary
excess of revenues and
other sources over {under)
expenditures and other uses
into GAAP fund structure:
Budgetary General Fund.. $  (90,171) § — $ — $ — — $ - $ — $ - $ — 8 — $ (90,171)
Other Budgeted Funds.... 10,417 164,188 22,410 1,035 4,665 (190) 91 %) 5,623 16,341 224,575
Totals ....c.coceimrerncrersisnineanens (79,754) 164,188 22,410 1,035 4,665 {190) 91 (5) 5,623 16,341 134,404
Timing differences... —_ —_ — —_ —_ —_ —_ —_ —_ 3,880 3,880
Basis differences.................... {44.617) (17,418) (344) 8,767 458 {1) 3 2 {5,623) 40,111 (18,662)
To record excess of revenues
and other sources over
(under) expenditures/expen-
ses and other uses for
unbudgeted accounts............ (3,539) 28,935 18,939 12,354 {12,289) 78,433 154 1,387,811 — 151,623 1,662,421
GAAP financial statement
excess of revenues and
other sources over
{under) expenditures/ex-
penses and other uses........ $ (127910) $ 175705 $ 41,005 $ 22156 $ (7,166) $ 78242 $ 248 $ 1,387,808 $ — $ 211,955 $ 1,782,043
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NOTE 3: ACCOUNTING AND
REPORTING CHANGES

a. Effects on Beginning Fund Balances and
Retained Earnings

The schedule below details restatements made to

Education Funds_ gives effect to changes in fixed
asset capitalization thresholds. = The schedule
(expressed in thousands) also gives retroactive effect
to certain corrections of prior-period errors as
indicated.

fund equity. The restatement in the Higher
Internal Higher
Service Education
Special Enterprise Funds Funds Expendable Nonexpendable Funds
Revenue Retained  Contributed ~Retained Trust Trust “Tnvestment
Funds Earnings Capital Earnings Funds Fund in Plant
June 30, 1996, fund equity as previously
reported........oooiiii $ 678,424 $ 243,881 22,621 $ 283630 $ 741685 § 2,012 $ 2,329,921
To correct for omission of Teacher
Loan Program balances.......................... 23,074 —_ — — —_— —_ —
To correct fund equity accounts for Jobs-
Economic Development Authority Fund.... — 7,088 (7,088) — — — —
To correct loans receivable for Jobs-
Economic Dewelopment Authority Fund.... —_ (3,338) — —_ — — —
To correct for omission of building............. — — — 6,262 —_ —_ —
To correct fund classification.................... — - — — 741 (741) —
Effect of changes in capitalization policy.... —_ — —_ —_ — — (45,464)
July 1, 1996, fund equity as restated...... $ 701,498 § 247,631 15,533 $ 289,892 § 742,426 $ 1,271 $ 2,284,457

b. Securities Lending

Effective July 1, 1996, the State adpﬁ)ted GASB
Statement 28, “Accounting and Financial Reportin
for Securities Len_dm% Transactions.” As a result o
implementing this sfatement, the State’s balance
sheets now 1nclude the asset, Securities Lending
Investments, and the liability, Obligations Under
Securities Lending. The Sfate has restated its
financial statements for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 1996, for changes resulting from adoption
of Statement 28, but this did nof result in any
restatement of fund equity accounts.

c¢. Medicaid

The State has changed the manner in which it
accounts for Medicaid assistance that the South
Carolina Department of Health and Human Services
ays to other State agency providers reported in the
tate’s Governmental Funds. In the past, Medicaid
was treated as Federal revenue that could be used in
more than one fund at the State’s discretion.
Accordm(%ly, the resources Spald to other funds were
accounted ~for in the State’s Agency Funds.
Effective July 1, 1996, however, the State began
classifying these transactions as _quasi-external
transactions. Although this change did not result in
any restatement of fund balances, the State has
restated its financial statements for the fiscal year

ended June 30, 1996, for this change as summarized
below (expressed in thousands):

Special
General Revenue Totals
ASSEES.........ooooereri $ - $ 30035 s 30,035
Liabilties...... . —_ 30,035 30,035
Revenues.... . 509 414,197 414,706
Expenditures......... . (15,718) 430,424 414,706
Operating transfers in (37) 16,190 16,153
Operating transfers out......... (16,190) 37 (16,153)

NOTE 4: DEPOSITS AND INVEST-
MENTS

By law, all deposits and investments are under
the control of the State Treasurer except for those
which by specific authority are under the control of
other agencies or discretely presented component
units, primarily the Public Service Authority. i
~ The fol_lowm% display reconciles the details
included within this footnote to the Combined
Balance Sheet at June 30, 1997 (expressed in
thousands):
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Combined Balance Sheet

Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,586,015
n ments 17,682,479
Securities lending investments................ccoocccoennciinnnns 1,502,131
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents................c.ccccccocnciiinnnes 409,605
n its 245497

Total 23,425,727

Disclosure regarding deposits and investments plus
reconciling items

Carrying value of deposits $ 148,244
Carrying value of investments...............ccccccocooninnnnnn 23,276,530
Cashonhand........ccoooovcrrcinnnennnns . 953

Total 23,425,727

Amounts on deposit with the United States
Treasury that relate to the Unemployment
Compensation Benefits Fund are not categorized
because they are neither deposits with financial
nstitutions nor mmvestments.

a. Deposits
Deposits include cash and cash equivalents on

deposit in banks and non-negotiable certificates of

deposit. At June 30, 1997, the deposits of the State's
primary government and jts discretely presented
%olr]nponent units (expressed in thousands) were as
ollows:

Total
Category Bank Carrying
1 2 3 Balance Amount

Primary

Government ... $ 285138 $ 13306 $ 35149 § 333593 §$ 145445
Component

242 - 2,557 2,799 2,799
$ 285380 $ 13,306 $ 37,706 $ 336,392 $ 148,244

Category | deposits are those covered by
Federal depository insurance or by collateral held by
a State entity (i.e., primary government or discretely
presented component unit) or by its agent in_ the
entity's name. Category 2 deposifs are collateralized
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with securities held by the pledging financial
institution's trust department or_ agent in_a State
entity's  name. Category 3 ~ deposits  are
uncollateralized. All deposits under the control of
the State Treasurer are fully insured or
collateralized.

b. Investments

Legally authorized investments vary by fund
but generally include obligations of the ~United
States and certain agencies of the United States
obligations of the State of South Carolina and
certain of its political subdivisions, certificates of
deposit, collateralized repurchase _agreements,
certain corporate bonds, and commercial paper.

Investments of the State’s Pension Trust Funds
are presented at fair value. Securities are valued at
the 'last reported sales price as provided by an
independent pricing service. Investment income
consists of realized and unrealized appreciation
(depreciation) in the fair value of investments and
interest income earned.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 1997, the
State's grlmary government and its discretely
presented component units have classified their
investments into three risk categories. Category 1
includes investments that were insured or registered
or for which the securities were held by a State
entity (i.e., primary government or discretely
presented component unlf) or 1ts _a%lent in the entity's
name and investments for which the entity has
safekeeping responsibilities but no equify or
owners 1J) interest or control. Category 2 includes
uninsured and unreﬁlstered investments for which
the securities were held by the counterparty's trust
department or agent in a State entity's name.
Category 3 includes uninsured and unregistered
investments for which the securities are held by the
counterparty, or by its trust d%%artment or agent but
not in a State entlf‘gl's name. The investments of the
State's grlmary government and its discretely

resented component units by risk category
?expressed in thousands) at June 30, 1997, were:
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Category Carrying Market
1 2 3 Value Value
Primary Government
U.S. government securities.................. $ 8475729 $ 297685 $ 7977 $ 8,781,391 $ 8,809,555
Corporate bonds............ccccoiiiiviiennn. 6,458,107 13,078 1,999 6,473,184 6,473,154
Repurchase agreements..................... 1,532,510 5,853 3,282 1,541,645 1,541,742
Collateralized mortgage obligations...... 1,012,559 1,084 — 1,013,643 1,013,604
Asset-backed securities..................... 100,607 — — 100,607 100,613
Commercial paper.......c.oococcvveieennienonn, 724,737 — — 724,737 724,636
Securities lending program
Investments from cash collateral
U.S. government securities.............. — — 183,562 183,562 183,562
Corporate bonds...........ccccoeeeiininne. — — 148,957 148,957 148,957
Repurchase agreements................ — —_ 1,169,612 1,169,612 1,169,612
Other........oie 9,440 24,192 7,819 41,451 49,843
Subtotals.......ccooovciier e, 20,178,789 20,215,278
Not categorized:
Deferred compensation plans--
annuity contracts........cccccoceeecienn. 989,325 989,325
Securities lending program
U.S. government securities.............. 1,345,052 1,354,353
Corporate bonds.........c..cccouericricniine 134,792 134,792
Unsettled investment transactions..... 64,268 64,268
Realestate...........ccovevevvvvvirieieinennnnnn, 2,051 2,051
Mutual funds.........cooceeviiiiiiiins 37,805 37,805
Totals--primary government........ $ 18,313,689 $ 341,892 $ 1,623,208 22,752,082 22,797,872
Discretely Presented
Component Units
U.S. government securities.................. $ 287174 $ — $ 5,848 293,022 293,022
Repurchase agreements..................... 196,245 — —_ 196,245 196,245
Subtotals..........ccoeeeiiriiiii 489,267 489,267
Not categorized:
Investment in primary government's
investment pool...........cceeecceveriiennns 34,449 34,449
Unsettled investment transactions..... 732 732
Totals—discretely presented
component UNits.......c.ovrmneneranes $ 483419 $ — $ 5,848 524,448 524,448
Totals--reporting entity................ $ 23,276,530 $ 23,322,320
At June 30, 1997, the State held collateralized terms. These securities_also provide diversification
mortgage obligations primarily in its Pension Trust in the Pension Trust Fund investment portfolios
Funds. ~ These securities were purchased to protect and maintain the high quality of government-
the State’s Pension Trust Funds from principal sponsored instruments in_the~ portfolios. It is
prepayment risk during an environment of geclmmg estimated that these securities will provide future
interest rates and to provide incremental yield above cash inflows on a time schedule that approximately
that available on corporate securities with similar matches the outflows associated with Pension Trust

N
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Fund liabilities. These highly marketable securities
are rated AAA by the major rating agencies.

The asset-backed securities held by the State at
June 30, 1997, were held by the State’s Pension
Trust Funds. These securitiés, with an average life
of one to three years and a legal final maturity of
five to six years, represented an _undivided
ownership interest in a trust consisting of credit-card
and automobile loan receivables. ost of these
securities were purchased in 1992 and 1993 when
short-term interest rates were approximately 3.00%
and they could provide incremental yields above
other securities with similar maturities without
increasing the risk of the investment Xortfollos.
These asset-backed securities are rated AAA by the
major rating agencies. . . )

The fiscal year for the Public Service Authority,
a discretely “presented component unit, ends
December 31. At December 31, 1996, the Public
Service Authority had held-to-maturity investments
carried at amortized cost of $117.607 million and
available-for-sale inveéstments carried at fair market
value of $367.662 million. The gross unrealized
holding fams _totaled $2.224 million and gross
unrealized holding losses totaled $2.799 million on
the available-for-sale securities. Included in the
Public Service Authority’s available-for-sale
investments, carried at fair market value, are nuclear
decommlssmmn% funds of $40.913 million with
related unrealized holding losses of $2.739 million.

| of the Authority’s investments, with the
exception of decommissioning funds, are limited to
a maturity of ten years or less. For the year ended
December 31, 1996, the Authority had proceeds of
$24.096 million from sales of  available-for-sale
securities and realized $386 thousand in gains and
$6 thousand in losses in connection with these sales.
The gains and losses were computed as the
difference between the proceeds and specifically
identified amortized cost per security. )
At June 30, 1997, the State Ports Au.thorltﬁ/, a
discretely  presented component unit, eld
$2.637 million, _in United ~ States Government
securities classified as held-to-maturity.

c. Securities Lending Programs

By law, the State’s primary government may
lend securities from its investment portfolios on a
collateralized basis to third parties, primarily
financial institutions, with a simultaneous agreement
to return the collateral for the same securities in the
future. The State may lend United States
Government securities, corporate bonds, and other
securities for collateral in the form of cash or other
securities. The contracts with the State’s custodians
requlre them to indemnify the State if the borrowers
fail to return the securities (and if the collateral is
inadequate to replace_ the securities lent) or fail to
pay the State for income distributions by the
securities’ issuers while the securities are on loan.

The weighted average maturity of the State’s
collateral _investments ~generally” matched the
maturity of the securities loans during the fiscal year
and at June 30, 1997. At June 30, 1997, the State
had no credit risk exposure to borrowers because the
amounts the State owed the borrowers exceeded the
amounts the borrowers owed the State. Either the

State or the borrower can terminate all securities
loans on demand. There are no restrictions on the
amount of the loans that can be made. For the fiscal
ear ended June 30, 1997, the State experienced no
osses on its securities lending transactions because
of borrower defaults. o

The State receives primarily cash as collateral
for its loaned securities. A small portion of the
collateral received by the State at June 30, 1997, was
in the form of securities. The market value of the
required collateral must meet or exceed 102% of the
market value of the securities loaned, prov1d1n% a
margin against a decline in the market value of the
collateral. During the fiscal year ended
June 30, 1997, the State met the 102% requirement.
The State cannot pledge or sell collateral securities
unless the borrower defaults. The lending agent, on
behalf of the State, invests cash collateral received,
Accordingly, at June 30, 1997, these investments of
cash collateral were recorded as assets on the State’s
Combined Balance Sheet. Corresponding liability
amounts also have been recorded because the State
must return the cash collateral to the borrower upon
expiration of the loan. At June 30, 1997, the
carrying amount and fair value of the State’s
securitiecs on loan were $1.480 billion and
$1.489 billion, res?ectlyely. These underlying
securities are uncategorized as to custodial credit
risk in the table in the investments subsection
(Note 4b) above. For the State’s cash collateral
investments, that table also includes the carrying
amount, fair value, and custodial credit risk by
Investment type. . .

Securities Lending Income and Securities
Lending Expenses are separately reported in the
State's Pension Trust Funds. For funds other than
Pension Trust Funds, the Securities Lending Income
and Securities Lending Expenses (expressed in
thousands) were as follows:

Description Income Expenses
Primary Government

General Fund.............................. $ 3473 § 3,424
Special Revenue Funds................ 893 880
Capital Projects Fund................... 118 117
Enterprise Funds......................... 173 17
Intermal Senice Funds.................. 3,467 3,419
Expendable Trust Funds............... 185 182
Higher Education Funds............... 2,350 2,318
Totals—Primary Government... 10,659 10,511

Discretely Presented Component
UNitSe..cooiecse s 67 66
Totals~-Reporting Entity................. $ 10726 $ 10,577

NOTE 5: TAXES RECEIVABLE

Taxes receivable (expressed in thousands) at
June 30, 1997, were:
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Special Trust and
General Revenue Agency
Fund Funds Funds

Retail saies and use................. $ 161,057 § 53338 § —
Individual incone........ 104,543 — —
Corporate income.. 6,749 —_ —
Unempioyment.............ccccceenes - — 45,135
Gasoline and motor vehicle...... 1,357 31,420 —
Alcoholic beverages and

tobacco......cooeiviiiis 13,664 —_ —
OtEr. ..o 11,209 19,346 —
Gross taxes receivable....... 298,579 104,104 45,135
Less: Allow ance for uncollect-

ible taxes.........oocvccnncnenn. 23,392 1,250 159
Net taxes receivable............. $ 275187 $ 102854 § 44976

A total of $335.969 million in net taxes
receivable pertaining to the General Fund and
SPec1a1 Revenue Funds were current receivables as
of June 30, 1997, and were collected within thirty
days after that date.

NOTE 6: FIXED ASSETS

Property, plant, and equipment (expressed in
thousanlc)isgt%]t JIL)me 30, 1997,q colrjlsisted g)f: P

Primary Government

~—— ________Trust  General _ Higher  Com-
Enter- Internal and Fixed Educa- ponent
prise Service Agency Assets tion Units
Land and im-
provements...... $19970 $ 5377 $ 582 § 185222 § 114419 § 235859
Buildings, im+
provements,
and utility plant.. 4172 144,276 4,749 1,009,633 1,835,844 3475731
Machinery,
equipment, and
other................. 10,648 119,492 4 1,030,289 803,946 34,916
Construction in
progress........... 8 648 - 78,695 98,815 90,535
Property, plant
and equip-
ment before

accumulated
depreciation.. 34,798 269,793 5,335 2,303,849 2,853,024 3,837,041

Less:accum-
ulated de-
preciation....... 9,912 122,369 568 - 11,461 1,191,888

Total property,

plant, and

equipment,

(1= PR, $ 24886 $ 147,424 $ 4,767 $ 2,303,849 $ 2,841,563 $ 2,645,153

Changes in general fixed assets (expressed in
thousands) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1997,
were:

Balance Balance
July 1, Addi- Retire- June 30,
1996 tions ments 1997
iand and improve-
ments..............cee... $ 172039 $ 13200 § 17 8 185,222
Buildings, improve-
ments, and
utility plant................ 946,127 64,020 514 1,009,633
Machinery, equip-
ment, and other.... ... 988,209 97,597 55.507 1,030,299
Construction in prog-
FESS..ccooiiiireienn, 86,043 51,107 58,455 78,695
Total General Fixed
Assets......ooreneen $ 2192418 $ 225924 $ 114,493 § 2,303,849

Construction_ in progress retirements are
recorded as additions to other categories of assets.

Outstandmf commitments for construction of
fixed assets an _/publlc domain (infrastructure) assets
at_June 30, 1997, totaled $435.975 million for the
grlmary government and $17.756 million for the
tate “Ports Authority, a discretely presented
component unit. The Public Service "Authority, a
discretely presented component unit, reported
commitments for construction of fixed assets of
$81.590 million at December 31, 1996. o

The primary government recorded capitalized
construction period interest of $1.592 million during
the fiscal year ended June 30, 1997.

NOTE 7: RETIREMENT PLANS

Note 1c_describes the basis of accounting that
the State’s five defined benefit pension plans use_to
report Pension Trust Fund activity. Note 4 specifies
the method used to value Pension Trust Fund
mvestments.

a. Plan Descriptions

The South Carolina Retirement Systems (the
System), a part of the State Budget and Control
Board, ‘administers four defined benefit retirement

lans: the South Carolina, Retirement System
SCRS), the South Carolina Police Officers'
etirement System (PORS), the Retirement System
for Members of the General Assembly of the State
of South Carolina (GARS?J .and the Retirement
System for Judges and Solicitors of the State of
South Carolina (JSRS). The System issues a
ublicly available Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report” that includes required supplementary
information for all four plans. The report may be
obtained by writing to:

The South Carolina Retirement System
Fontaine Business Center

202 Arbor Lake Drive

Columbia, South Carolina 29223

SCRS, established by Section 9-1-20 of the
South Carolina Code_of Laws, is a cost-sharing

multlfple-employer defined benefit pension S[t)lan that
benefits employees of public schools, the State, and
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its political subdivisions. Membership is required as
a condition of employment. Both employers and
employees must contribute. Benefits vest after five
years Of service. Vested members who retire at age
sixty-five or with thirty tyears of service at any age
receive an annual benefif, payable monthly, for life.
The benefit is based on length of service and average
final compensation, an annualized average of the
employee's highest twelve consecutive ~quarters'
compensation. The annual benefit amount is 1.82%
of avera}?e final compensation times years of service.
lfgeduce benefits are payable as early as age fifty-
ive.

PORS, established by Section 9-11-20 of the
South Carolina Code_ of Laws, is a cost-sharing
multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan that
benefits police officers and fire fighters employed by
the State or its political subdivisions. Membership is
required as a condition of employment. oth
employers and employees must contribute. Benefits
vest atter five years of _service. Vested members
who retire with twenty-five years of service receive
an annual benefit, payable monthly for life. The
benefit is based on léngth of service and averaEe
final compensation, an annualized average of the
employee's highest twelve consecutive ~quarters'
compensation. The annual benefit amount is 2.14%
of averal%e final compensation times years of service.

GAKS, established by Section” 9-9-20 of the
South Carolina Code of Laws, is a single-employer
defined benefit pension plan that benefits members
of the South Carolina General Assembly.
Membership is required as a condition of takin
office as a member of the General Assembly. Bot
the members of the General Assembly and the State
must contribute. Benefits vest after eight years of
service. Vested members who retire at age ‘sixty or
at any age with thirty years of service receive an
annual benefit, payable monthlg/ for life. The
annual benefit amount is 4.83% of earnable
compensation times years of service. Earnable
compensation is defined as fo de(?/s' pa¥ at the rate
currentlil Eald to members of the General Assembly
plus $12 thousand. ]

JSRS, established by Section 9-8-20 of the
South Carolina Code of Laws, is a single-employer
defined benefit gensmn plan that benefiis the judges
of the State's Supreme Court, Court of Appeals,
circuit courts, family courts, and the State's_circuit
solicitors. Membership is required as a condition of
taking office as a judge in these courts. Both judges
and the State must contribute. Benefits vest after
twelve years of service in a_position as a judge or
solicitor. Members may retire at age seventy with
fifteen \f/ears of service, at age sixty-five with twenty
years of service, or at any age with twenty-five years
of service. embers receive a retirement beénefit
equal to 71.3% of the current active salary of the
position occupied at retirement.

Information  regarding the number of

a1r1t1c1patmg employers at June 30, 1997, was as
ollows:
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State and school............c.coeenne. 105 1 1 1
Other... ..o 506 254 — —
Total participating employers........ 611 255 1 1

. The plans provide retirement, death, and
disability benefits to State employees; public school
employees; employees of counfies, municipalities,
and certain other State political subdivisions. Each
}f)lan is independent. Assets may not be transferred
rom one gan to another or used for any purpose
other than to benefit each plan's participants.

b. Funding Policies

Article X, Section 16 of the South Carolina
Constitution ~ requires that all State-operated
retirement plans be funded on a sound actuarial
basis. Title 9 of the South Carolina Code of Laws
(as amended) grescrlbes regulrements relatm]g to
membership,” benefits, and employee/employer
contributions for each plan.  The following
paraéra;l)hs summarize those requirements.

y law, employee contribution requirements for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 1997, were as follows:

Plan Rate
SCRS 6% of salary
PORS 6.5% of salary
GARS  10% of earnable

compensation
JSRS 7% of salary

Actuarial%y determined employer contribution
rates for the four plans, expressed as percentages of
compensation, for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 1997, were as follows:

Plan Rate
SCRS ~ 7.70%
PORS 10.70%
JSRS 40.69%
GARS 63.75%

Under certain conditions, new employers
entering the plans are allowed up to ten years_to
remit matching employer contributions resulting
from their employees’ ~purchase of prior service
credits. Interest is assessed annually on the unpaid
balance. The amounts outstanding at June 30, 1997,
}verf:)o$1%.s351 million for SCRS and $4.224 million
or .
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¢. Annual Pension Cost

Annual pension cost (dollars expressed in
thousands) and related actuarial data for the State’s
sin lﬁ-employer defined benefit pension plans were
as follows:

GARS JSRS
Annual pension cost................. $2,492 $4,771
Employer contributions
Made......cocovrririeiee s $2,492 $4,771
Actuarial valuation date.... July 1, 1996 July 1, 1996
Actuarial cost method Entry age Entry age

Amortization method.................

Remaining amortization
period.........cooerieniniiiinein 28 years 25 years
5 year smoothed 5 year smoothed
market market

Level percent, open Level percent, open

GARS JSRS
Actuarial assumptions:
Investment rate of return......... 7.25% 7.25%
Projected salary increases....... 2.00% 5.25%
Assumed inflation rate............. 4.25% 4.25%
Assumed cost-of-living
adjustments........................... 2.00% 4.25%

d. Trend Information

. Trend information indicates the progress made
in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits
when due. ) .

For the cost-sharing multiple-employer defined
benefit pension plans in which the State participates,
the State’s, required contributions in dollars
(}elxpressed in thousands) and the percentages of
those amounts contributed for the three latest
available years were as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended

June 30,1997

June 30,1996 June 30, 1995

% % %
Required Contributed Required Contributed Required Contributed

SCRS-State:

Primary government..... $ 142607 100.00% $ 140,288 100.00% $ 134,032 100.00%

Componentunits.......... 7,104 100.00% 6,924 100.00% 6,616 100.00%
PORS-State:

Primary government..... 27,851 100.00% 25,651 100.00% 24117 100.00%

Componentunits.......... 16 100.00% 15 100.00% 13 100.00%

The following table presents the Annual Pension
Cost, percentage of Annual Pension Cost
Contributed, and the Net Pension Obligation for the
two latest available years for the State's single-
employer defined benefit plans (dollars expressed in
thousands):

Fiscal Annual
Year Pension Percentage Net
Ended Cost of APC Pension
Plan June 30 (APC) Contributed Obligation
GARS 1996 $ 1,679 100% $ -
1997 2,492 100% —
JSRS 1996  $ 4,244 100% $ -
1997 4771 100% —

An additional year will be added as available.

e. Funding Status and Progress

The following schedule édollars expressed in
thousands) describes the funding progress for the
State’s single-employer defined benefit plans for the
two latest available years:
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Actuarial UAAL as a
Accrued Percentage
Actuarial Actuarial Liability Unfunded of
Valuation Value of (AAL) AAL Funded Covered Covered
Date Assets Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Plan July 1 (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) ((b-a)/c)
GARS 1995 $ 30,528 $ 58,577 $ 28,049 52.1% $ 4,704 596.3%
1996 31,702 59,914 28,212 52.9% 4,771 591.3%
JSRS 1995 $ 57917 $ 94,420 $ 36,503 61.3% $ 9,417 387.6%
1996 62,850 101,020 38,170 62.2% 10,109 377.6%
An additional year will be added as available. June 30, 1997, for the four plans administered by the
South Carolina Retirement gystems were as follows:

f. Investments and Receivables

_ The principal components of receivables and
investments  (expressed in  thousands)  at

SCRS PORS GARS JSRS Totals
Receivables:
Contributions ........coccoecvcncennnen $ 78,471 $ 8,832 $ 7 $ 170 $ 87,480
Employer long-term.................. 1.351 4,224 —_ — 5,575
Accrued interest.............c.c...... 179,470 21,909 508 999 202,886
Due from other funds............... 12,705 3,118 2 104 15,929
Total receivables.........ccueeeeeee $ 271,997 $ 38,083 $ 517 $ 1,273 $ 311,870
Investments:
United States government
secunties.......cvvveiccncenaenn, $ 3,124,253 $ 269,013 $ 8,478 $ 9915 $ 3,411,659
United States government
agencies and government-
insured securities................... 4,287,428 416,047 8,776 22,382 4,734,633
Corporate bonds....................... 4,135,763 576,414 10,932 24974 4,748,083
Financia!l and other................... 2,166,565 246,318 4,526 10,971 2,428,380
Securities lending
investments.............c..c 1,257,149 133,958 2,445 2444 1,395,996
Total investments...............c.... $ 14,971,158 $ 1,641,750 $ 35,157 $ 70,686 $ 16,718,751
6 Natina Gurd Pension Systam o SSRGS, sl by Sston 20210
oo to National Guard members who served in South
Plan Description Carolina prior to_July 1,1993. National Guard
members are consideréd fo be Federal government
The National Guard Pension System (NGPS) is employees. The Federal government pays Guard
a _single-employer defined benefit pension plan members' drill pay and summer camp pay. In
administered by the State Adjutant General's Office. accordance with State law, the State's General Fund
The Adjutant "General’s thce does not issue a {)}?inGpard members only if the governor activates
¢ National Guard for service to the State.

separate financial report for the NGPS.

HE
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The pension benefit that the State provides is
intended only to supplement the retirement benefit
that Guard “'members receive from the Federal
tgvc‘)lvemment. Members who retire_at a%q sixty with

enty years of mllltaéy service, including at least
fifteen years of South Carolina National Guard duty.
ten of which 1n_1med1a’tel¥1 precede retirement, and
who have received an "honorable discharge, are
entitled to monthly pension benefits. The pension
amount is equal to fSQ per month for twenty years
of creditable service with an additional $5 per month
for each additional year of service, provided that the
total pension shall riot exceed $100 per month,
e following table shows the number of
employees by type of membership as of
June 30, 1997.

Retirees and beneficiaries

receiving benefits........................ 1,650
Terminated employees

entitled to benefits but not

yet receivingthem....................... 1,947
Active employees..........cc.ccovenen... 11,198
Total participants..............cccccce.. 14,695
Number of participating

EMPIOYErS.......cocovvveee e 1

National Guard members who served in_South
Carolina_prior to July 1, 1993, are covered by the
plan. NGPS is closedto new entrants.

Investments and Receivables

The assets of the NGPS are comprised of Cash
and Cash Equivalents and Accounts Receivable. At
June 30, 1997, all of the $88 thousand in Accounts
Receivable consisted of accrued interest.

Contributions and Reserves

Article X, Section 16 of the South Carolina
Constitution = requires that all State-operated
retirement plans be funded on a sound actuarial
basis. Title 25 of the South Carolina Code of Laws
grescrlbes requirements relating to membership,

enefits, and employer contributions for the NGPS.

In accordance with State law, the State Adjutant
General’s | Office  administers the “plan.
Administrative _charges are financed through
investment earnings. e State funded the plan on
an actuarial basis for the fiscal years ended
June 30,1994, and  June 30, 1995: From
July 1, 1995, throu%_h the present time, however, the
plan has not been tully funded in accordance with

actuarial recommendations. = Members do not
contribute. . )
The net assets_of the National Guard Pension
System are required to be reserved for the purpose of
pa_yl_n% the supplemental retirement benefits to
eligible members. e balance in the reserve at

June 30, 1997, was $5.096 million.
Funding Policy and Annual Pension Cost

The, following table provides information
concerning funding policies and annual pension
costs (dollars expressed in thousands):

NGPS

Annual pension cost................... T $2968
Employer contributions made $2,499
Actuarial valuation date June 30, 1996
Actuarial cost method Entry age
Amortization method...... Level percent, open
Remaining amortization pe 30 years
Asset valuation method Market
Actuarial assumptions:

Investment rate of retum.... 7.25%

Projected salary increases N/A

Assumed inflation rate .... 4.25%

Assumed cost-of-living

adjustments.......................... Not applicable

The following represents the components of the
net pension obligation (NPO) for the NGPS, at
June 30, 1997 (expressed in thousands):

NGPS
Actuarially required contribution (ARC)...... $ 3085
Interest on the NPO............ccoccveviveciiniennnn. 294
Adjustment to the ARC..........cccovrninenn. (411)
Annual pension COSt..........ccoovveeevrereenen. T 2,968
Contributions made...........c.cccccoevriiecnnnnnnns 2,499
Increase iN NPO...........oooeeeeicreeereeeeen, T 469
NPO beginning of year................ccccccvenee. 4,065

NPOendof year........ccccccooeeeiiiiien. $ 4534

The State recognized $2.499 million of
expenditures in the General Fund to pay a portion of
the current fiscal years’ actuarially determined
contribution, .

The following schedule (dollars expressed in
thousands) describes the funding progress for the
NGPS for each of the three most recent actuarial
valuations:
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Actuarial UAAL as a
Accrued Percentage
Actuarial Liability Unfunded of

Actuarial Value of (AAL) AAL Funded Covered Covered
Valuation Assets Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) ((b-a)/c)
7/1/93 $ 2,499 $ 26,200 $ 23,701 9.5% $ 48,385 49.0%
7/1/94 3,760 26,996 23,236 13.9% 50,766 458%
6/30/96 6,259 36,756 30,497 17.0% 48,861 62.4%

Trend Information

_ Trend information indicates the progress made
in accumulating_sufficient assets to pay benefits
when due. The following table presents the Annual
Pension Cost, gercenta ¢ of Annual Pension Cost
contributed, and the Nef Pension Obligation for the
latest three fiscal

> dyears for the plan (dollars
expressed in thousands):

Annual
Fiscal Year Pension Percentage Net
Ended Cost of APC Pension
June 30 (APC) Contributed  Obligation
1995 $ 2,300 108.7% $ 3,581
1996 2,982 83.8% 4,064
1997 2,968 84.2% 4,534

h. Supplemental Benefits Funded by General
Fund

The State General Assembly has directed the
General Fund to_pay supplemerntal (cost-of-llvml%)
increases to retirees and has fully funded the
required amount annually on a pay-as-you-go basis.
During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1997, the
State's’ General Fund transferred $5.44Z million to
the South Carolina Retirement System and the
Police Officers' Retirement Systém for retiree
supplemental benefits.

i. Defined Contribution Plan

_ Certain State employees may elect to participate
in the Optional Retirement Program , a
defined contribution tplan administered by the South
Carolina Retirement Systems.  The was
established under Title 9, Chapter 17, of the South
Carolina Code of Laws. The ORP provides
retirement and death benefits through the purchase
of individual fixed or variable annuity contracts
which are issued to, and become the property of, the

participants. The State assumes no liability for this
plan other than for payment of contributions to
designated insurance companies.

DRP participation is limited to faculty and
administrative staff of the State's four-year higher
education institutions who meet all’ eligibility
requirements for membership in the SCRS. To elect
participation in the ORP, eligible employees must
irrevocably waive. SCRS membership within their
first ninety days of employment,

Under State law, contributions to the ORP are
required at the same rates as for the SCRS (see
Section b, “Funding Policies,” above). Employer
and employee contributions to the ORP were
$9.300 million and $7.400 million, respectively, for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 1997.

NOTE 8: POST-EMPLOYMENT
BENEFITS OTHER THAN
PENSIONS

In accordance with the South Carolina Code of
Laws and the annual Appropriation Act, the State
rovides post-employment health and dental benefits
o certain former State emplo(gees and to certain of
their surviving dependents. Generally, retirees are
eligible for the benefits if they have ‘established at
least five years of retirement service credit, whereas
other former employees are eligible only if they have
established at least twenty years of retirement
service credit. Benefits become effective when the
former employee retires under a state retirement
system. urrently, approximately 18,430 retirees
meet these eligibility requirements.
_ Eligible retirees choose between two health
insurance E)lans underwritten by the State, the
Economy Plan and the Standard Pfan. In accordance
with contractual provisions of the plans, participants
must meet specified annual deductible requirements.
Thereafter, the Standard Plan pays 85% of allowable
claims, and the Economy Plan pays 80% of
allowable claims.  The ~“State pays 100% of
allowable claims, however, after the participant has
paid the annual out-of-pocket limit prescribed by
each plan. Both plans disallow claims in excess of

—
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specified annual and lifetime maximums. —In
addition, State health benefits are reduced if the
gart1c1 ant receives or qualifies to receive Medicare
enefits. )

The State also underwrites a dental care plan.
Contractual provisions of the plan specify deductible
requirements as well as annual and lifetime
maximums.

Both health plans and the dental plan_ are
financed on a ay-as-you-ég]o basis. During the fiscal
year ended June 30, 1997, the State recognized
expenses {n_et of participant contributions) of
$57.761 million to provide health and dental benefits
to State participants in post-employment status.

NOTE 9: DEFERRED COMPENSA-
TION PLANS

Several oFtional deferred compensation plans
are available to State employees and employees of
its political subdivisions. The multiple-employer
plans, created under Internal Revenue Code Sections
457, 401(k), and 403ﬁb), are accounted for as
Agency Funds. Employees may withdraw the
current value of their contributions when  they
terminate employment. With approval of the State's
Deferred Compensation Commission, employees
may also withdraw the current value of their
contributions prior to termination of employment if
they meet certain requirements. These requirements

differ among the three plans. Com3pensation
deferred under the Section 01(k_L and 40 (b? plans
is placed in trust for the contributing employees.

The State has no liability for losses under the plans.
Under the Section 457 plan, all = deferred
compensation, all pro er(tly or rights of property
purchased with amounts deferred, and any income
earned on property purchased remain assets of the
empIOﬁ/ers subject to the claims of the employers'
general creditors, one of whom is the employee

participant. It is unlikely, however, that the State
would ever use plan asséts to satisfy claims of the
State's general creditors. State law limits the State's
financial liability to participants.  The State
however, does have the duty of due care that would
be required of an ordinary prudent investor. Of the
$642.707 million assets in_the Section 457 plan at
December 31,1996, ~ $337.387 million _was
%[;thable to the State while the remaining

5.320 million _represented assets of other
participating jurisdictions. .

On August 20, 1996, the provisions of Internal
Revenue Code Section 457 were amended by adding
subsection (g). That subsection provides that new
plans will not be considered eligible plans unless all
assets and income of the plans are held in trust for
the exclusive benefit of the participants and their
beneficiaries. Existing plans also must comply with
this requirement by January 1, 1999. After "South
Carolina's plan makes this change, the plan's assets
and income will no longer be subject to the claims of
employers' general creditors.

NOTE 10: LEASES AND INSTALL-
MENT PURCHASES

a. Lease and Instaliment Purchase
Commitments

The State leases land, office facilities
equipment, and other assets under both capital and
o¥e_rat1n leases. Some of these leases take the form
of installment purchases of property. The present
value of future minimum capital lease and
installment purchase payments and minimum annual
lease payments for capital leases and installment
purchases (expressed in thousands) follow:

Primary Government

General
Long-Term
Internal Obligations Higher
Service Account Education Component
Fiscal Year Ending June 30 Funds Group Funds Units Totals
1998 $ 1,457 $ 3,891 $ 4,593 $ 5,229 $ 15,170
1999 1,457 3,517 4,205 5,198 14,377
2000 1,467 3,369 3,212 4,802 12,850
2001 1,489 2,750 2,154 4,129 10,522
2002 1,524 2,149 1,916 3,821 9,410
2003 and after 7,861 3,144 24,560 33,746 69,311
Total minimum payments.................... 15,255 18,820 40,640 56,925 131,640
Less: interest and executory costs......... 4,683 3,326 15,250 14,119 37,378
Present value of net minimum
payments $ 10,572 $ 15,494 $ 25,390 $ 42,806 $ 94,262

Assets under capital leases at June 30, 1997, were as follows (expressed in thousands):

{5 —
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Primary Government

General
Long-Term
Internal Obligations Higher
Service Account Education = Component
Assets Acquired Under Capital Leases Funds Group Funds Units Totals
Land and improvements...................ccoooeiiii, $ — $ —_ $ 4374 $ — $ 4,374
Buildings, improvements, and utility plant................. 14,405 6,450 33,546 98,178 152,579
Machinery, equipment, and other.......................... — 15,600 15,800 150 31,550
Assets acquired under capital leases before
accumulated amortization...............ccecevccerremrnenn. 14,405 22,050 53,720 98,328 188,503

Less: accumulated amortization...............cccc.cooee.. 2,918 — 1,993 63,717 68,628
Assets acquired under capital leases, net........... $ 11,487 $ 22,050 $ 51,727 $ 34611 $ 119,875

The capital lease liabilitly and the assets acquired
under capital leases in Internal Service Funds
decreased 51gimﬁcantly during the fiscal year ended
June 30, 1997, because the State exercised a
purchase option on a building under capital lease.

Operating lease 7paymen S durlrzﬁ e fiscal year
ended June 30, 1997, totaled $54.028 million. = At
June 30, 1997, future minimum payments under
opﬁratmg leases (expressed in thousands) were as
ollows:

Operating Leases

Fiscal Year Ending Primary Component
June 30 Government Units Totals

1998 $ 26,138 § 144 § 26,282

1999 23,566 33 23,599

2000 18,295 18 18,313

2001 13,099 " 13,110

2002 10,316 — 10,316

2003 and after 33,271 — 33,271

Total minimum payments.... § 124685 $ 206 $ 124,891

b. Facilities Leased to Others

Non-State parties lease land and facilities under
operating leases from the State Ports Author1§y, a
discrete] Eresented component unit, and from
Enterprise Funds (the Patriots Point Development
Authority and the Other Enterprise Funds). At
June 30,"1997, the State Ports Authority had leased
to others certain land and facilities having a cost of
a;f)prox1mately $214.753 million and $69.712 million
0 related” accumulated  depreciation, At
June 30, 1997, the total cost of land and
improvements leased to others by the Enterprise
Funds was $9.314 million, with $707 thousand of
related accumulated depreciation. Future minimum
rental.paﬁ/ments to be received at June 30, 1997,
under these operating leases (expressed in
thousands) were:

Fiscal Year
Ending Enterprise = Component
June 30 Funds Unit
1998 $ 402 % 6,607
1999 410 3,292
2000 410 2,834
2001 410 414
2002 417 414
2003 and after 20,660 1,962
Total $ 22709 $ 15,523

NOTE 11: BONDS, NOTES, AND
CERTIFICATES OF
PARTICIPATION
PAYABLE

a. General Obligation Bonds

. General obligation bonds are backed by the full
faith, credit, and taxing power of the State.” General
obligation = bonds {(expressed in thousands)
outstanding at June 30, 1997, were:

General Long-Term Obligations Account Group

Capital improvement bonds, 3.50% to 7.30% $ 874,038
State highw ay bonds. 3.50% t0 6.10%........................ 92,770
Subtotal-General Long-Term Obligations -
Account Group 966,808
Higher Education Funds
State institution bonds, 4.10% t0 7.00%....................... 85,365
Total--general obligation bonds payable........... $ 1,052,173

Of the $874.038 million in outstanding capital

improvement bonds,

$13.782 million 1s” capital

appreciation (deep-discount) bonds.

e —————_—_—_————————,—,——
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At June 30, 1997, $282.597 million of capital
improvement bonds were authorized but unissued.,

At June 30,1997, future debt service
rec]ulre_ments (expressed in thousands) for general
obligation bonds were:

Year Ending June 30 Principal Interest Totals
1998 $ 107815 $ 53415 § 161,230
1999 90,830 47,135 137,965
2000 91,760 41,934 133,694
2001 108,347 36,657 145,004
2002 86,440 31,614 118,054
2003 and after 574,879 128,391 703,270
Total debt service
requirements............ 1,060,071 $ 339,146 § 1,399,217
Unamortized discounts... (7,898)
Total principal -

outstanding........c.uuueee $ 1,052,173

The Department of Transportation Special
Revenue Fund pays the debt service for the State
hlghway bonds recorded in the General Long-Term
Obligations Account Group. The General Fund pays
debt service for the other general obligation bonds
recorded in the General Long-Term Obligations
Account Groug. The Higher Education Plant"Funds
Retirement of Indebtedness) pay the debt service
or general obligation bonds recorded in the Higher
Education Funds. )

The State's legal debt margin at June 30, 1997,
was $4.635 million for institufion bonds. Rather
than directly limiting the amount of other
outstanding ‘genera] obligation debt, State law
imposes a Dmitation on annual debt service
expenditures. The legal annual debt service margin
at June 30, 1997, was $51.455 million for highway
bonds and $68.276 million for general obligation
bonds excluding institution and highway bonds:.

b. Limited Obligation Bonds

Limited obligation bonds are not backed by the
full faith, credit, and taxing power of the State.
Limited obligation bonds gexpressed in thousands)
outstanding at June 30, 1997, were:

Internal Service Funds
Lease revenue bonds, 4.00% t0 7.00%...........ccceen. $ 28,977

At June 30,1997, there were no limited
obligation bonds authorized but unissued.

he State issued the lease revenue bonds to
finance the cost of capital facilities for use by the
Department of Social Services, the Department of
Revenue, the Museum Commission, and the_ State

Library. The bonds are secured by, lpledges of lease

rental pa){:ments that the agencies will pay from their

1(:iengral und appropriations and Special Revenue
unds.

At June 30, 1997, = future debt service
reﬂulre_ments (expressed in thousands) for limited
obligation bonds were:

Year Ending June 30 Principal interest Totals
1998 $ 2,000 $ 1,695 $ 3,595
1999 2,170 1,382 3,552
2000 2,265 1,274 3,539
2001 2,365 1,157 3,522
2002 2,465 1.015 3.480
2003 and after 17,880 4,009 21,889
Total debt service
requirements.............. 29145 $ 10,432 § 39,577
Unamortized discounts..... (168)
Total principal -

outstanding.........cceeiueun $ 28,977

The General Services Fund, an Internal Service
lgung, pays all debt service for the lease revenue
onds.

c. Revenue Bonds, Notes, and Certificates of
Participation

Revenue bonds, notes, and certificates of
participation are not backed by the full faith, credit,
and taxm§ power of the State. Revenue bonds,
notes, and certificates of gartlcq(a) tion outstanding
(expressed in thousands) at June 30, 1997, were:

Certificates
of
Bonds Notes Participation

Primary Government:
Enterprise Funds
Housing Authority bonds, 3.50% to
9.375%. $ 488,091 § — $ —
Education Assistance Authority
bonds. 3.50% to 7.40%..... 391,915 — —_
Other Enterprise notes, 6.00 — 28 —

Totals—Enterprise Funds.............ovcseenene 880,006 28 —

Higher Education Funds
Various bonds and notes, 3.00% to

11.25%. ..o 247,695 55,761 —
Direct note obligations, 8.79%.................... — 55,000 —
Certificates of participation. 5.60%

to 7.50%. — — 22,191

Totals—-Higher Education Funds............ 247,695 110,761 22,19

Totals--Primary Government................ 1,127,701 110,789 22,191

Discretely Presented Component Units:
Public Service Authority bonds,
3.80% 10 7.75%.......ooecrreriecrnrencienrene
State Ports Authority bonds. 4.25% to
6.75% 86,080 — —
Enterprise Development, Inc.,
notes, 8.00%.........cooooieeirns — 175 —

Totals—Discretely Presented
Comp t Units. 2,315,942 175 —_

2,229,862 —_ -

Totals--revenue bonds, notes,
and certificates of participa-
tion payabl $ 3443643 $ 110,964 § 22,191

Certain revenue bonds require the individual
enterprises to provide sufficient revenue to pay debt
service and to fund all necessalgl expenses to run the
enterprises. Additionally, the State Ports Authorltg',
a discretely presented component unit, is required o
maintain an irrevocable letter of credit equal to the
principal amount of its Series 1994 Bonds_and
accrued interest. The letter of credit had an available
balance of $27.813 million at June 30, 1997.
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_University Medical Associates of the Medical
University of South Carolina (UMA) is a component
unit of the Medical University of South Carolina, an
institution reported in the Higher Education Funds.
During January 1995, UMA issued $55.000 million
in Direct Note” Obligations, Select Auction Variable
Rate Securities. The variable rate of interest is set
every 35days. UMA entered into a thirty-year
interest rate swap agreement for these obligations.
Based on the swap agreement, UMA owes interest
calculated at a_fixed rate of 8.79%. If the actual
floating variable interest rate exceeds 8.79%, the
counteH)arty pays, the differential to UMA. If the
actual floating variable rate is less than 8.79%, UMA
pays the counterparty. Onlly the net difference in
inferest payments is actually exchanged with the
counterparfy. The $55.000 million in note principal
is not exchanged; it is only the basis on which the
interest payments are calculated. UMA continues to
pay interest to the note holders at the variable rate
?rowded by the notes. However, during the term of
he swap agreement, UMA effectively pays a fixed
rate on the debt. The debt service requirements to
maturity included in this note are based on that fixed
rate. UMA will be exposed to variable rates if the
coun_teTarty to the swap defaults or if the swap is
terminated. )

At June 30, 1997, the State also owed the United

States government $9.204 million for construction of

the Trotters Shoals Lake Project. This obligation is
included in Other Liabilities in the General Long-
Term Obligations Account Group. During the fiscal
ear ended June 30, 1997, retirements on this debt
otaled $39 thousand.

e funds that receive the proceeds of revenue
bonds, notes, and certificates of participation have
gleﬁdged revenues for payment of debt service as
ollows:

Primary Government:
Enterprise Funds
State Housing Authority bonds: State Housing Authority
Fund revenues
Education Assistance Authority bonds: loan repayments
and United States Commissioner of Education funds
Higher Education Funds
Various higher education bonds, notes, and certificates of
participation: various specific higher education revenues

Discretely Presented Component Units:
Public Service Authority obligations: Public Service
Authority Fund revenues
State Ports Authority bonds: State Ports Authority Fund
revenues

At June 30,1997, future debt service
requirements (expressed in thousands) for revenue
bonds, notes, and certificates of participation were:

Primary Government:

Year Ending June 30 Principal Interest Totals

1998 $ 98179 $ 78446 $ 176,625

1999 66,614 74,179 140,793

2000 84,169 69,261 153,430

2001 65,614 64,847 130,461

2002 63,324 60,389 123,713

2003 and after 893,601 579,718 1,473,319

Total debt service

requirements..........cccceenenn. 1,271,501 § 926,840 $ 2,198,341
Unamortized discounts............... (10,657)
Deferred amount on refunding... (163)

Total principal outstanding... $ 1,260,681

Discretely Presented Component Units:

Year Ending June 30 Principal Interest Totals

1998 $ 60,519 $ 146,024 $ 206,543

1999 58,422 143,079 201,501

2000 71,635 139,654 211,289

2001 72,798 136,143 208,941

2002 54,041 133,032 187,073

2003 and after 2,342,127 1,913,150 4,255,277

Total debt service

requirements..........cccoceeuenen. 2,659,542 $ 2,611,082 $ 5,270,624
Unamortized discounts............... (58,496)
Deferred amount on refunding... (284,929)

Total principal outstanding... $§ 2,316,117

The fiscal year for the Public Service Authority
ends December 31 while the fiscal year for the State
Ports Authority ends June 30. Both entities are
discretely presented component units. At
December 31, 1996, the carrying value of the Public
Service Authority’s debt was $2.456 billion while
the fair value was approximately $2.780 billion. At
June 30, 1997, the carrying value of the State Ports
Authority debt was $86.374 million_while the fair
value was approximately $91.231 million. The fair
values were estimated using current rates available
to the entities for similar borrowing arrangements
and on the market rate of comparable traded debt.

d. Extraordinary Loss on Early Extinguishment
of Debt

The $243 thousand of Extraordinary Loss on the
Early Extinguishment of Debt in the Enterprise
Funds represented a loss on Housing Authority debt
extinguishments that resulted from calling bonds.

e. Defeased Bonds

During its fiscal year ended December 31, 1996
the Public Service Authority, a discretely presented
component unit, issued” $350.515 million in
refunding revenue bonds with an average interest
rate of 5.58% to advance refund $342.970 million in
revenue bonds with an average interest rate of
7.07%. The net proceeds of $325.817 million (after
payment of $10.592 million in original issue
discount and $14.106 million in issuance costs,
insurance costs_and reserve requirements) plus an
additional $30.761 million were used to purchase
United States government securities. The advance
refunding resulted in a difference between the
reacquisttion price and the net carrying amount of
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the old debt of $97.427 million. This difference,
reported in the accompanying financial statements as
a deduction from bonds payable, is bemﬁ charged to
operations through the year 2027 using the effective-
interest method. The Authority refunded these
bonds to reduce its total debt service payments over
the next twenty-seven years by $150.258 million and
to obtain an economic gain (difference between the
present values of the old and new debt service
payments) of $27.097 million. )

In addition, during the current and prior years
the State defeased certain general obligation and
other bonds. _For those defeasances involvin
advance refundings, the proceeds of the new bonds
were placed in irrevocable trusts to provide for all
future debt service pa%yment_s on the old bonds. At
June 30, 1997, the following outstanding bonds
(expressed in thousands) are considered defeased:

Primary Government

General
Long-Term
Obligations Higher
Account Education Component
Group Funds Units
Capital improvement
boNdS........cooevreiee $ 204,000 $ —_ $ —_
Public Service Authority
bonds.......c..occcoeiniennns —_ —_ 543,175
State Ports Authority
bonds........ccccoovrciinne - — 18,070
Other.......ccooericrcenns — 23,360 —
Totals.......cccurrcrirunrunns $ 204000 $ 23,360 $ 561,245

Since adequate funds have been placed with a
trustee to pay fully the principal and interest of these
bonds, the  liabilities are not recorded in the
accompanying financial statements.

f. Conduit Debt

State law authorizes issuance of certain bonds
for which the State assumes no responsibility for
repayment. These bonds, therefore, do not appéar as
liabilities in the accompanying financial statements.

The Jobs-Economic Development Authority, an
Enterprise Fund, issues_industrial revenue bonds to
develop and benefit business enterprises. The bonds
are payable solely by revenues of the business
enterprise and generally are secured b}; an
irrevocable letter of credit. At June 30, 1997, the
original amount of bonds issued ~prior to
June 30, 1996, was $757.465 million, ‘and the
outstanding balance of bonds issued after
June 30, 1996, was $72.448 million.

The State Housing Finance and Development
Authority, an Enterprise Fund, issues certain
mortgage loan notes and housing revenue bonds for
developers to construct moderate to low income
housing projects. The bonds are payable solely from
housing rental payments received by the developer

and generally are secured by an irrevocable letter of

credit or bond insurance.” At June 30, 1997, the

outstanding balance of bonds issued was
$186.525 million. o )

The Educational Facilities Authority, reported as
art of the State’s primary government, issues bonds
o assist nonprofit educational institutions that do not

receive State a%proPrlatlo_ns in the acquisition,
construction an inancing of facilities for
educational programs. The bonds are payable solely
from, and secured by, a lease agreement on the
facilities between the” Authority and the institution.
When the bonds have been_fully paid, the Authority
conveys the title for the facility to the institution. At
June 30, 1997, the outstanding balance of bonds
issued was $76.328 million.

g. Resources Authority Debt

In prior years, the Resources Authorit¥ issued
bonds and used the proceeds to_ purchase obligations
of local governmental _entities. The ™ local
overnmental entities used the proceeds received
rom the Au.thquti' to fund water and sewer projects.
Periodic principal and interest payments received
from the local §ove_mmental entities are used by the
Authority to refire its own debt. The debt issued by
the Authority is not a debt of the State and is not
recorded in ‘the accompanying Combined Balance
Sheet. The Authority's outstanding debt at
June 30, 1997, was $45.120 million. Effective
October 1994, the General Assembly enacted
legislation that prohibits the Authority from issuing
bonds except to refund bonds previously issued.

In fiscal years 1993-94, 1994-95, 1995-96, and
1996-97, one”local governmental entity was unable
to meet 1ts financial obligation under the terms of a
$5.025 million revenue bond that was purchased by
the Authority. _In June 1990, when  the local

overnmental entity issued its debt, it estimated that

e related sewer project would be completed and
operational by calendar year 1992. = Revenue
generated by the sewer system is %ledged for debt
retirement. = At June 30, 1997, the system was
partially operational but construction had not been
completed. The State paid $132 thousand in
1993-94, $425 thousand in 1994-95, $330 thousand
in 1995-96, and $420 thousand in 1996-97 to the
Authority to offset the loss of revenues from the
delmciuent local entity. The State has a%proprlate_d
$420 thousand in fiscal year 1997-98 to be used, if
needed, to offset the foss of revenues from the
delinquent local entity.

h. Commercial Paper Notes

The Public Service Authoritg a_discretely
presented component unit, issued 204,773 million
of Commercial Paper Notes, The paper is issued for
valid corporate purposes with a term not to exceed
270 days. The Authority has a $250.000 million
revolving credit agreement to support the issuance of
commercial paper. There were no borrowings under
the agreement for the Authority's fiscal year ended
December 31, 1996.

i. Subsequent Events

Since June 30, 1997, the State’s primary
overnment has issued $80.810 million of bonds.
Of this amount, $14.470 million of bonds were
issued as an advance refunding of prior bond issues.

X
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The Public Service Authority, a discretely presented
component unit, has_issuéd  $214.555 million of
bonds and $58.933 million of commercial Paper to
advance refund prior bond issues. Also, the
Authority has executed an in-substance ~cash
defeasance of $29.035 million in outstanding bonds.

. The State primary government plans to issue
mini-bonds in an aggregate amount not to exceed
$25 million in December 1997.

NOTE 12: CHANGES IN GENERAL

The Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities
the Insurance Claims Incurred but not Reported, and
$11.686 million of the Other Liabilities consist of
claims and judgments payable. The increase of
$95.699 million ™ for General Obligation Bonds
Payable includes $699 thousand in accretion of
{)nteﬁest on capital appreciation (deep-discount)

onds.

LONG-TERM OBLIGA-
TIONS
Changes in general long-term obligations
Sexpresse in thousands) for the fiscal year ended
une 30, 1997, were:
Balances Balances
atJuly 1,1996 Increases Decreases at June 30, 1997
Accounts payable
and accrued lia-
bilties.................. $ 1986 $ 2808 $  (2378) § 2,416
nsurance claims
incurred but not
reported.............. 6,840 — (3.464) 3376 NOTE 13: INTERFUND
General obligation
bonds payable.... 965,494 95,699 (94,385) 966,808 BALANCES
Capital lease and
installmeant debt
bligati - . g paes I
bl 16,422 2,376 (3.304) 15,494 a. Interfund Assets and Liabilities Within the
ooy - 21,850 - 21,850 Primary Government
Compensated ab- C g eqegs .
sonoes peycble. 159,107 86,161 (78,528) 166,740 Interfund assets and _liabilities Sexpnessed in
Other liabilties...... 41,174 6,608 (22,358) 25,424 thousands) for each individual fund within the
Totals.......ccomeee $ 1,191,023 § 215502 §$ (204417) § 1,202,108 primary government at June 30, 1997, were:
Interfund Interfund Advances Advances
Fund Type/Fund Due From Due To Receivables  Payables To From
General
General FUNd...........ccoeeiiieiiiecciee e $ 55904 $ 121,924 $ 4676 $ 3372 $ 9771 § 15402
Less: eliminations..............ccoecvenenriniiiininnnine, (55,730) (55,730) — —_ — —
Adjusted General Fund 174 66,194 4,676 3,372 9,771 15,402
Special Revenue
Departmental Genera! Operating Fund....................... 13,501 46,958 343 3,198 — 300
Education Improvement Act Fund..............c..ccoee 1,846 2,379 — 100 — —
Chidren's Education Endow ment Fund................... — 6 —_ — —_ —
Repair, Maintenance, and Renovation Fund... 1,564 191 —_— — — —
Waste Management Fund.............c..coccoeeeee. 1,546 383 — —_ — —
Department of Transportation Special Revenue Fund 48,660 2,155 1,358 — 6,227 —
Local Government Infrastructure Fund...................... 65,504 17 200 — 600 —
Accommodations and Local Option Sales Tax Fund.. 33 72 — — — —
Energy Settlement Fund..............ccccmmniccccnnccnn. — 42 — — — —
Ormibus Crime Fund...........coccooiiivinnnccieenn, 249 243 —_ — —_ —
Medicaid Bxpansion Fund..............cccccviinnnivcccnnnnnn, — 59 — —_ —_ —
Other Special Revenue Funds 768 3,576 59 J0 260 —
Less: elimnations.............cccoeciiiicciiiinnicccenens (43,539) (43,539) — — — —
Adjusted Special Revenue Funds..................... 90,132 12,542 1,960 3,368 7,087 300
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Interfund Interfund Advances Advances
Fund Type/Fund Due From Due To Receivables Payables To From
Capital Projects
Capital Projects Fund............. . 3 619 $ 565 § — $ — $ — $ —
Less: eliminations.............c..ccoooevene (168) (168) — — — —
Adjusted Capital Projects Fund......................... 451 397 - — —_ —
Enterprise
Housing AUthority ..o 5 14 — — — —_
Education Assistance Authority..................cccoois — 210 — —_ — —
Patients' Compensation Fund........ — 2 — —_ —_ —
Second injury Fund.............cccccees — 458 — — — —
Patriots Point Development Authority.. — 8 — 20 — —
Other Enterprise FUNAS............cccceiiiimniniiineeceees — 458 — 200 — 14,037
Less: eliminations..............ccoovev i (4) (4) — —_ — —_
Adjusted Enterprise Funds.........cccccvmunevvrnenans 1 1,146 — 220 - 14,037
Internal Service
Insurance Reserve FUNd............ccoovveececeeenniiiininns 450 22 5,772 — 34,075 —_
Health and Disability Insurance Fund.......................... 13,064 170 — —_ —_ —
State Accident Fund............ccomrniivccienccciis 2,703 110 — — — —_
General Services Fund.........cc.cccoooivciiinnniiininenn. 3,700 858 420 2,141 — 19,413
Central Supplies and Equipment Fund. 860 24 — 1,000 — —
Motor Pool FUNG..........ccoeeiiiieiiinic e 2,043 106 — — —_ —
Pension Administration Fund............ccocoviniiins — 111 — — — —_
Prison Industries Fund...........cccccoevnininninnncininns 911 219 — — — —
Other Internal Service Funds............ccoevniieeeen 151 300 4,561 4,580 17,966 17,409
Less: eliminations...........cccoceveciivinininnnieicniennenn (1,920) (1,920) (6,074) (6,074) (28,647) (28,647)
Adjusted Internal Service Funds..........cccc....... 21,962 —_ 4,679 1,647 23,394 8,175
Trust and Agency
Expendable Trust:
Unemployment Compensation Benefits Fund............. — 202 — — — —
Other Expendable Trust ..........cceeviniiieniivvicnenneane, 5 39 — — — —
Pension Trust:
South Carolina Retirement System..............coccccennn 12,705 13,613 — — —_ —_
Police Officers' Retirement System............cccccceeeeei. 3,118 462 — — — -
General Assembly Retirement System...................... 2 — — —_ — —
Judges' and Solicitors' Retirement System................. 104 — — — —_— —
Agency Funds:
Federal Interfund Activity Fund.................ccoenii — 262 — 343 - —
Payroll Clearing Fund................ 41,495 9,175 — 5 — —
Other Agency FUNds...........ccoovievienciiicie 4257 85,081 — — — —
Less: eliminations..............cccoomvieniniinenninciicce (53.895) (53,895) - - — —
Adjusted Trust and Agency Funds.................. 7,791 54,939 -_ 348 _— _—
Higher Education
Unrestricted Current FUNAS..........c.coocceeevcennicinninns 17,978 6,381 — 400 — —_
Restricted Current Funds.........ccc..occooeiiiinnnnnnns 2,975 366 — —_ — —
Loan Funds........c.ccccerennn. 3 —_ — — —_ _—
Unexpended Plant Funds... 270 12 — 326 — 520
Retirement of Indebtedness.. — — — —_ 520 -—
Investment in Plant Funds.............cccocoinnnins — — — 1,634 — 35,178
Agency FUNAS.........coooceiiiiiiiiiiiicie e 240 —_ — —_ —_ —
Foundations and Institutes.............. —_ — — — 32,640 —
Less: eliminations.............ccooveeneeeine (527) (527) — — (33,160) (33,160)
Adjusted Higher Education Funds..................... 20,939 6,232 —_ 2,360 -_— 2,538
Totals~-Primary Government............ecvvevvueens $ 141,450 $ 141450 § 11,315 ¢ 11,315 $ 40,252 $ 40,452
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b. Inequality of Advances To and Advances From
Other Funds

Advances From Other Funds exceed Advances
To Other Funds by $200 thousand because of an
interfund loan from the Local Government
Infrastructure Fund, a Special Revenue Fund, to the
Division of Public Rai wa)i§ (rcgqor_tqd as part of
Other Enterprise Funds). The Division_of Public
Railways reports using a December 31 fiscal year-
end, while the Local Government Infrastructure
Fund’s fiscal year ends June 30. The Division of
Public Railways’ $200 thousand June 1997 loan
;())aﬁment was not reflected in _its Advances From
ther Funds at December 31, 1996, but that
ayment reduced the Local Government
nfrastructure Fund’s Advances To Other Funds as
of June 30, 1997.

c. Inequality of Transfers Between the Primary
Government and Discretely Presented
Component Units

Transfers  From Component Units exceed
Transfers To Primary Government by $781 thousand
because the Public "Service Authority, a discretely

resented component unit, reports using a

)ecember 31 fiscal year-end. The $781 thousand
difference represents Transfers From Component
Units to the General Fund for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 1997, less Transfers, To~ Primary
Government from the Public Service Authority for
its fiscal year ended December 31, 1996.

d. Inequality of Residual Equity Transfers In and
Out

_ Residual Equity Transfers Out of $1.337 million
in the Capital Projects Fund were recorded as
additions_to Contributed Capital in the Enterprise
Funds. These balances resulted from transfers of
Capital Improvement Bond proceeds.
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_ Residual Equity Transfers Out of $502 thousand
in the Special Reévenue Funds were recorded as
additions to Contributed Capital of the State Ports
Authority, a discretely presented component unit,
These balances resulfed from transfers of capital
grant proceeds.

NOTE 14: RESERVATIONS AND
DESIGNATIONS OF
FUND EQUITY

Reserved components of fund equity represent
amounts legally sIe)grqgated and amounts that cannot
be appropriated. Designated portions of unreserved
fund eciu%y reflect tentative plans for future use of
available financial resources. o

The unreserved component of fund equity is
computed as total fund equity less reserved amounts,
Although the total fund balance in the General Fund
was positive at June 30, 1997, the unreserved
component was negative because the reserve
requirements exceeded total fund balance.

a. Primary Government—Reserved Retained
Earnings

At June 30, 1997, the $210.042 million balance
of Reserved Retained Earnings in the primary
ﬁove_mment’s Enterprise Funds consisted entirely of

etained Earnings Reserved for Debt Requirements.
The reservations are required by bond indentures
and other financing agreements.

b. Primary Government—Reserved and
Designated Fund Balances
At June 30, 1997, the following amounts of fund

balance (expressed in thousands) were reserved or
designated:
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Special Capital Trust and Higher
General Revenue Projects Agency Education
Fund balances reserved for:
Pension and other benefits ............ $ — — $ — $ 16937265 $ —
Restricted fund balance .................. — — — — 169,129
Federal government grants
refundable ... — — — — 44,046
General fund reserve ........c.c.ccceoe.e. 130,380 — — — —
INVENTOTIES ...ooveieiiie e 14,623 22,051 — — —
Advances to other funds ................. 9,771 7,087 — — —
Appropriations to be carried
forward ..o 294,761 — — — —
Endowment and similar funds ....... — — — 1,361 42,445
Long-term loans and notes
receivable ........cccoovveercvennieinn 929 152,460 — 66 —
Debt requirements..........ccovecienne — 1,267 — — 8,027
School building aid .......cccceveevinnnne. 222 22,512 — — —
Encumbrances .........coevcevvnceniiinnnn — — — — 3,880
Other special purposes ................... — — — — 6,059
Total reserved fund
balances $ 450,686 205,377 $ —_ $ 16,938692 $ 273,586
Unreserved fund balances
designated for:
Future years' expenditures.............. $ — 76,805 § — $ — $ 4,260
Capital expenditures ...........ccoccc.... —_ 37,508 78,479 — —
Loan funds........cooooenvrencnecencrnennns — — — — 172
Scholarships.....ccooiviinniicineee — 14,327 — — —
Quasi-endowments .........cccceccoueee — — — — 33,945
Plant funds......ccoooo oo — — — — 87,195
Special purposes ... — — — — 11,673
Total unreserved, desig-
nated fund balances........ccceenes $ —_ 128640 $ 78479 $ — $ 137,245
The following subsections contain further reserves. These reserves include reserves for

descriptive information regarding the above reserved
and designated components of fund balance.

Reserved for Pension and Other Benefits

This account includes $16.219 billion reserved
for pension, group life, and accidental death benefits.
It also includes $718.705 million of reserves to
recognize the restricted nature of the fund balances
in the Unemployment Compensation Benefits Fund.

Reserves in the Higher Education Funds

Outside sources may restrict certain Higher
Education Funds' resources. The financial
statements present restricted fund balances as

endowments and_ other higher education restricted
funds to be used for special purposes. .

Grant monies received from the United States
government under certain student loan programs are
recorded as Reserved for Federal Government
Grants Refundable. The purpose of this reserve is to
indicate  that these amounts can neither be
appropriated nor expended and to reflect the State's
ongoing responsibility to lend the resources only in
accordance with applicable Federal program
guidelines.

X
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General Fund Reserve

The South Carolina Constitution requires that
the State maintain a reserve to prevent deficits in the
Budgetary General Fund. he reserve is fully
funded whenever it eguals three percent of the
Budgetary General Fund's revenue (budgetary basis)
of the latest completed fisca) year.

If the State withdraws funds from the reserve to
cover a year-end deficit, it must replace the funds
within three years. The Constitution requires that at
least one percent of the Bud%eta General Fund
revenue (budgetary basis) of the latest completed
fiscal year, if so much is ne_cessar_Y, be restored each
year Yollowing the deficit until full funding is
achieved.

At June 30, 1996, the Reserve was fully funded
at $127.006 million. During the fiscal year ended
June 30, 1997, the Reserve retained its fully-funded
status y _ increasing  $3.374 million to
$130.380 miillion.

Reserved for Inventories

Governmental Funds reserve a portion of fund
balance equal to year-end inventory balances to
indicate, that the " funds are not "available for
appropriation.

Reserved for Advances to Other Funds and
Reserved for Long-Term Loans and Notes
Receivable

Advances to Other Funds, Long-Term Loans,
and Notes Receivable are assets that do not represent
expendable available resources. The Governmental
Funds, therefore, reserve a corresponding portion of
fund balance.

Reserved for Appropriations to be Carried
Forward

The General Fund does not use encumbrance
accounting. The Reserve for Appropriations to be
Carried Forward, however, is used in situations
where the General Assembly has authorized
Budgetary General Fund appropriations to be carried
forward to the next fiscal year. For additional
information, see Note 2c.

Reserved for Endowment and Similar Funds

This reserve recoarllize_s restrictions placed on
donated resources. In the Fiduciary Fund Types, the
reserve represents amounts donatéd to Stafe-owned
secondary schools and to certain other State
departments.

Reserved for Debt Requirements

Amounts in_the Special Revenue Funds
represent reservations required by bond indentures
for State Highway bonds. The amounts recorded as
Reserved for Debt Requirements in the Higher
Education Funds are reservations required by

financing agreements and bond indentures of
discretely presented component units of the Medical
University of South Carolina.

Reserved for School Building Aid

Amounts in the General Fund and in the
Education Improvement Act Fund, a Special
Revenue Fund, are reserved if committed to State
school districts to build school buildings or to retire
debt on such buildings. Such amounts are not
available for appropriation.

Reserved for Encumbrances

Although not required by State law, some
technical colleges reported in the Higher Education
Funds  use encumbrance accounting. These
institutions also record a reserve for encumbrances.

Reserved for Other Special Purposes

. Amounts Reserved for Other SJ)ecial Purposes
in the Higher Education Unrestricted Current Funds
consist of resources that are reserved for various
operatmg purposes specific to certain individual
higher education institutions.

Designated for Future Years’ Expenditures

Amounts Designated for Future Years'
Expenditures in the Special Revenue Funds
%rlmarlly _relate  to ~the  Department of

ransportation’s expenditures for future highway
repair and maintenance. In the Higher Education
Funds the designations were reported b}' discretely
presented component units of the Medical University
of South Carolina for future use.

Designated for Capital Expenditures

The amount reported in the Special Revenue
Funds represents amounts that the Department of
Transportation _ designated for rffglacement of
structurally deficient bridges. State Highway Bonds
will finance these replacéments. The Staté reports
the entire fund balance in the Capital Projects Fund
as Designated for Capital Expenditures.

Designated for Loan Funds

. Amounts Designated for Loan Funds in the
Higher Education Funds consist of resources which
are designated for loans to students, faculty, or staff
of higher education institutions.

Designated for Scholarships

Of the amount reported as Designated for
Scholarships, in the Special Revenue Funds,
$14.085 million is to be used for the Teacher Loan
Program. The program makes loans to students to
attract talented individuals to teach in areas of
critical need. For each year the borrower teaches in
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a critical need area, 20% to 33% of the loan is
canceled. If the borrower does not teach, however,
the loan must be repaid. The remaining
$242 thousand reported as  Designated for
Scholarships in the Special Revenue Funds is bein

accumulated to establish endowments at public an

?rlvate colleges and universities, The purpose of
hese endowments is to provide environmental
scholarships.

Designated for Quasi-Endowments

_The Designated for Quasi-Endowments account
includes resources that the State's higher education
institutions intend to use in a manner similar to
endowments in future years.

Designated for Plant Funds

. Amounts Designated for Plant Funds in the
Higher Education Funds consist of resources
designated to finance the acquisition, construction
improvement, renewal, or replacement of physical
properties, and to pay debt seryice and Tretire
indebtedness on institutional properties.

Designated for Special Purposes

_ Amounts Designated for Special Purposes in the
Higher Education Unrestricted Current Funds
consist of resources that are designated for various
operatmg purposes specific to certain individual
higher education institutions.

NOTE 15: RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

These financial statements exclude certain
related foundations and other organizations. (See
also Note la, Scope of Reporting Entity.) =
~ The most significant of these ~organizations
include: the University of South™ Carolina
Development Foundation; the University. of South
Carolina Educational Foundation; the University of
South Carolina Business Partnership Foundation; the
South Carolina Universities Research and Education
Foundation; the Greater University of South
Carolina Alumni Association; the Carolina Piedmont
Foundation, Inc.; the Lancaster County Educational
Foundation, Inc.; the  Clemson = Universi
Foundation; the Clemson University Researc
Foundation; the Clemson Architectural Foundation;
the Clemson University Continuing Education and
Conference Complex” Corporation; the Health
Sciences Foundation of the Medical University of
South  Carolina; the = Coastal _ Educational
Foundation, Inc., of Coastal Carolina University; the
College of Charleston Foundation; the Winthrop
University _Foundation; the Francis Marion
University Foundation; the Citadel Development
Foundation; the Association of Citadel Men; the

Citadel's Brigadier Foundation; South Carolina State
University Educational Foundation; The S.T.A.T.E.
Club of South Carolina State University; Greenville
Technical Foundation, Inc.; Tri-Counfy Technical
College = Foundation; York Technical College
Foundation, Inc.; the South Carolina Student Loan
Corporation; the Educational Television Endowment
of South C’arolm_a, Inc.; the South Carolina State
Museum Foundation; EDI Ventures, Inc.; the South
Carolina Research Authority; and the Carolina
Capital Investment Corporation.

_Those organizations above that are related to
higher  education _ report total assets of
$458.033 million. During the fiscal year ended
June 30, 1997, the State’ entered into various
transactions with these organizations. Approximate
amounts within the State's Higher Education Funds
that represented transactions with these related

arties include:  receivable from foundations—

1.762 million; donations of cash and other assets
from foundations—$20.405 million; expenditures
rental  of foundation-owned pro ertyf)—

2.696 million; and reimbursements to the State for
expenses/expenditures the State incurred on behalf
of foundations—$14.133 million. | i

The South Carolina Education _Assistance
Authority (EAA), an Enterprise Fund, has
designated the South Carolina Student Loan
CorRoratlon (SLC) as the entity to administer the
EAA student loan Srogram. During the fiscal year
ended June 30,1997, "EAA entered into various
transactions with SLC.  Approximate amounts
within the State's Enterprise Funds that represent
these transactions include: accounts receivable from
SLC-$6.994 million; notes receivable from SLC-

354.739 million; program revenue from SLC-

34.049 million; accounts payable to SLC-

3.062 million; and reimbursements to SCL for
administrative costs—$5.095 million.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1997, the

Educational Television Endowment of South
Carolina, Inc., disbursed $8.876 million on behalf of
the State for programs, development, advertising,
and other costs. In addition, during the fiscal year
ended June 30, 1995, the State entered into a capital
lease with the' Endowment for a building valued at
$6.450 million. The lease term covers ten years.
The remaining capital lease obligation at
June 30, 1997, was $5.525 million.
. The Jobs—Economic Development Author-
ity JEDA), an Enterprise Fund, maintains _a
management and administrative agreement with
Carolina Capital Investment Corporation (CCIC).
During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1997, JEDA
paid CCIC $594thousand for management and
administrative expenses and incurred payables to
CCIC of $52 thousand. .

In past years, the State of South Carolina has
contributed capital of $11.234 million to the South
Carolina Research Authority, a related party.
During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1997, the State
made an additional contribution of land valued at
$142 thousand.

EDI Ventures, Inc., a related party, earned
approximately $619 thousand of contract revenues
and rental revenues under various contracts with the
State of South Carolina during the fiscal year ended
June 30, 1997.

91



State of South Carolina

Notes to the Financial Statements

NOTE 16: SEGMENT INFORMA-
TION

a. Enterprise Funds

The State groups its Enterprise Funds into the
following segments: the State Housing Finance and
Development Authority (Housing Authority), the
South Carolina Education Assistance Authority, and
the Jobs—Economic Development Authority. In
addition, the Patriots Point Development Authority,
the Patients’ Compensation Fund, the Second Injury

Fund, and Other Enterprise Funds are grouped into
an Other segment. ] ]

The Housing Authority provides low-cost
housing to the State's citizens by 1ssuing bonds/notes
and by administering Federal contracts and grants.
The South Carolina Education Assistance Authority
issues revenue bonds for the purpose of making
student loans. The Jobs—Economic Development
Authority acts with others in the promotion of
development, especially in areas of the State with
greatest need. 1e Authority is supported primarily

y interest on project loans. ]

Financial information (expressed in thousand53
for these segments for the fiscal year ende
June 30, 1997, follows:

Education Jobs—Economic

Housing Assistance Development
Authority Authority Authority Other Totals

Operating revenues.............c.cccceeeenne. $ 50,520 $ 45130 3 1,427 $ 31,385 $ 128,462
Depreciation and amortization

EXPENSE......ceiieiiiieiiiiie e 222 51 —_ 897 1,170
Operating income (10SS)...........coceen... 10,437 15,629 1,108 (2,581) 24,593
Federal revenue............cccococeeeeeieininia. 21,547 1,152 — 22,699
Operating transfers in........................ — 125 — 125
Extraordinary I0ss........ccc.oocveviicenenen. (243) — — (243)
Net income (10SS).......cccovvveeicrireicnenne 10,282 15,629 (1,023) (2,732) 22,156
Current capital contributions and

transfers.........cccoooviei e — — 1,337 1,337
Property, plant, and equipment:

Additions...........coooeiiiii 253 — 1,816 2,069
Retirements..........ccccoceiiicinns (246) — (832) (1,078)

Net working capital........................... 110,949 129,494 8,434 26,478 275,355
Total assets.........covvieiicriiiree. 650,898 494,573 15,817 122,528 1,283,816
Bonds and other long-term liabilities

payable from operating revenues...... 471,846 360,050 — 28,976 860,872
Total fund equity...................... 142,629 91,117 15,633 37,278 286,657

b. Discretely Presented Component Units

~ The primary segments among the State's
discretely presented component units are the Public
Service "Authority and the State Ports Authority.
The remaining entities are reported within an Other
segment.

92

The Public Service Authority produces and sells
electric power. The State Ports’ Authority develops
and maintains State harbors and seaports and
handles the commerce through these ports.

Financial information (€xpressed In thousandsg
for these segments for the fiscal year ende
June 30, 1997, follows:
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Public State
Service Ports
Authority Authority Other Totals
Operating revenues. . .................... $ 699606 $ 71,024 $ 2901 $ 773531
Depreciation and amortization
expense.............. 110.660 15,086 34 125,780
Operating income....................... 195,763 13.057 69 208,889
- —_ 309 309
(6.682) — — (6.682)
Netincome. ... 59,264 10,845 448 70,657
Curent capital contributions and
transfers............oociis —_ 502 —_ 502
Property. plant, and equipment:
Additions. ... 89.677 29,627 778 120,082
Retirements............................. {(42,692) (1,285) {110) (44,087)
Net working capital....................... (149,203) 14.021 1,043 (134,139)

Total assets 3,464,683 306,746 3526 3,864,955
Bonds and other long-temm liabilities
payable from operating revenues.. ... 2,115,866 88,781 145 2,204,792

Total fund equity...............l 790.996 288,585 2,514 1,082,005

The Public Service Authority's sale of electric
power to two major customers constitutes a
concentration of credit risk. For its fiscal year ended
December 31, 1996, the Authority's, revenue and

Accounts Receivable (expressed in thousands)
attributable to those customers were:

% of Total % of Total
Operating Accounts Accounts
Customer Revenue Revenue Receivable Receivable
Central Bectric Pow er
Cooperative, Inc............ $ 314,000 4488% $ 30,551 43.05%
Alumax of South
Carolina, Inc.................. 87,000 12.44% 7,503 10.57%

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1997, two
customers each accounted for approximately 10% of
the State Ports Authority’s revenues.

NOTE 17: DEFICIT RETAINED
EARNINGS

The Patients'’ Compensation Fund, reported in
the Enterprise Funds, had_a deficit Retained
Earnings balance of $2.000 million at June 30, 1997,
This deficit resulted from large losses that the Fund
experienced in the last two years. The fund has
increased Kremlum_s and expects that this will
eliminate the deficit, If not, the Fund, as a last
resort, can assess additional premiums. .

The Patriots Point Development Authority,
reported in the Enterprise Funds, had a deficit
retained earnln%s _balance of $1.677 million at
June 30, 1997. This deficit resulted primarily from
an interrupted development project and the related
bankruptcy proceedings over the last several years.
The interfupted project left the Authority with an

unfinished hotel and marina. During the fiscal year
ended June 30, 1996, the Authority entered info a
lease with a private company that plans to develop
the unfinished assets, The "Authority expects_ that
revenues from this agreement ~and private
contributions, eventually will eliminate the “deficit
retained earnings.

NOTE 18: INSURANCE
ACTIVITIES

a. Insurance Reserve Fund

The State generally does not purchase
commercial insurance for the risks of losses for
property damage, including theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; automobile liabi 1tly; tort
liability; and medical professional liability. Instead,
State management believes it is more economical to
manage its risks 1ntemall)i and set aside assets for
claim settlement in its Insurance Reserve Fund
(IRF), an Internal Service Fund. The IRF services
claims for risk of loss to which the State is exposed,
including the following: property insurance on

overnment owned buildings, the contents of such
uildings, equipment, and automobiles; automobile
liability insurance on government owned vehicles
and school buses; tort liability insurance for
government ;l)_remlses and operations; and medical
rofessional liability for hospitals. Although the
tate is the predominant participant in the IRF,
county and municipal governments, school districts
and _ special Tﬁ)ut})ose olitical subdivisions _also
participate. The IRF allocates the cost of providing
claims servicing and claims payment by chargmg
each participant an actuarially determine

"premium.” NPT .

The IRF reports liabilities when it is_probable
that a loss has occurred and the amount of that loss
can be reasonably estimated. Amounts for allocated
and unallocated claims adjustment expenditures
have been included in the calculation of the unpaid
claims liability. The liability is_reported net of
receivables for  salvage. = subrogation,  an
reinsurance. ~ The unpaid claims liability of
$157.306 million at June 30,1997, includes a
provision for claims in the process of review and for
claims incurred but not reported. The liability for
claims in_the process of review is_included in
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities, while the
liability for” Insurance Claims Incurred But Not
Reported is reported separately on the face of the
financial statements. ~ The liability for claims
incurred but not reported is an actuarial estimate
based on the most current historical claims
experience of previous payments, changes in number
of members and participants, inflation, and award
trends. This process does not necessarily result in an
exact amount. Estimates of liabilities for incurred
claims are continually reviewed and revised as
changes occur. Revisions are reflected in the current
year's income., . .

Changes in the balances of claims liabilities
during the past two years were as follows (expressed
in thousands):
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Fiscal Current-Year
Year Beginning-of Claims and Balance at
Ended Fiscal-Year Changes in Claim Fiscal

June 30  Liability Estimates Payments Year-End

1996 $ 146572 §$ 41999 §$ (35531) $ 153,04C
1997 153,040 51,370 (47,104) 157,306

The IRF purchases insurance to cover risks
where it has limited expertise (aircraft insurance and
ocean marine insurance). o ]

The IRF purchases reinsurance to limit losses in
the areas of property, boiler and machinery
automobile | liability, ‘and medical _professional
liability. Reinsurarice for catastrophic losses in
the area of property insurance is purchased for
osses above $2.000 million per location and

10,000 million per occurrence. For medical
protessional liability insurance, reinsurance for
catastrophic _losses is acquired for losses
exceeding $250 thousand ~ per occurrence.
Reinsurance permits partial recovery of losses from
reinsurers; but the IRF, as direct insurer of the risks,
remajns primarily liable, e _unpaid, claims
gablhtles were reduced by $4.700 million  and

10.080 million as of June 30, 1997, and 1996
respectlvel%{,
claims esti
reinsurers.

for amounts re’latlng to unpal
mated to be recoverable from

b. Health and Disability Insurance Fund

The Health and Disability Insurance Fund, an
Internal Service Fund, was established to provide
health and dental insurance coverage for eligible
employees and retirees of State agencies and school
districts and group life and long-term disability
insurance coverage to eligible active State and
public _school employees. . The _State, the

redominant participant, retains the risk of loss.

nder the health insurance program, participants
elect coverage throu%h either a health maintenance
organization or the State’s self-insured plan. All
dental, groug life, and lox%g-term dlsabllltg’ coverage
is through the State’s self-insured plan. State funds
and payroll deductions &ay health and dental
premiums for eligible State and public school
employees. Agencies and school districts pay the
employer share of premiums for retirees, and retirees
directly pay their own share of premiums. Agencies
and school districts pay the premiums for group life
and long term disability.

The Health and’ Disability Insurance Fund
establishes claims liabilities when information prior
to the issuance of the financial statements indicates
that it is probable that a liability has been incurred at
the date of the financial statements and the amount
can be reasonably estimated. Amounts for allocated
and unallocated claims ad_lustmr_ent expenditures
have been included in the calculation of the unpaid

claims liability. The unpaid claims liability of

$97.560 million . at_ June 30, 1997, includes a
provision for claims in the process of review and for
claims incurred but not refportegi. The liability for
claims in the process of review is included in

Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities, while the
liability for™ Insurance Claims Incurred But Not
Reported is reported separately on the face of the
financial statements. ~ The Tliability for claims
incurred but not reported is estimafed actuarially
based, on the most current historical claims
experience of previous payments, changes in number
of members and participants, inflation, award trends,
and estimates of health care trend changes (cost,
utilization, and intensity of services). This process
does not necessarily result in an exact amount.
Estimates of liabilities for incurred claims are
continually reviewed and revised as changes occur.
Revisions are reflected in the current year's income.

. Claim costs for group life and long-term
disability coverage are actuarially calculated using
the one-year term cost method; the cost of coverage
is the present value of all benefit payments that will
be made on expected claims incurred during the year
following_the valuation date. Claim liabilities are
equal to the present value, as of the valuation date
of all future payments to be made for disabilities and
deaths up to "that date. Actuarial assumptions
include an interest rate of 5.50% for 1997 and 7.25%
for 1996, compounded annually. Of the total claims
liability reported for the Health and Disability
Insurance Fund at June 30, 1997, $24.461 million
relates to group life and long-term disability
insurance coverage. Claims liabilities for health and
dental insurance coverage are not discounted to
present value. . L

Changes in the balances of claims liabilities
during the past two years were as follows (expressed
in thousands):

Fiscal Current-Year
Year Beginning-of Claims and Balance at
Ended Fiscal-Year Changes in Claim Fiscal

June 30 Liability Estimates Payments Year-End

1996 $ 92995 $ 467,807 $ (472,737) $ 88,065
1997 88,065 513,584 (504,089) 97,560

c. State Accident Fund

State law established the State Accident
Fund éthe Fund), an Internal Service Fund, to
rovide workers' compensation insurance coverage
o State entities. Although the State is the Fund's
predominant _participant, counties, municipalities,
and other political subdivisions of the State may also
elect to participate. The State assumes the full risk
for workers' compensation claims.

The Fund investigates, adjusts, and pays
workers' compensation claims as awarded by the
Workers' Compensation Commission for job-related
accidenta] injury, disease, or death to covered
individuals. "The Fund annually bills participating
entities for estimated premiums based on the entity’s
estimated payroll. = After the policy period ends,
policyholders submit the details of the actual salaries
paid.” The Fund then adjusts the premium using the
actual payroll data and "a rating modifier based on
claims experience. L .

The Fund establishes claims liabilities when it is
probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of
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that loss can be reasonably estimated. The claims
liabilities include specific incremental  claims
adjustment extpenses but not _administrative
expenses.  Estimated amounts of salvage and
subrogation and reinsurance recoverable, if any, on
both settled and unsettled claims are deducted from
the liability for unpaid claims to the extent they can
be reasonably estimated. Adjustments to claims
expenditures ‘are charged or credited to expense in
the period in which they are made. Claims habilities
are actuarially determined and include an amount for
claims reported but not yet paid and claims incurred
but not yet reported. At June 30, 1997, the claims
liability “for the Fund was $58.443 million. _The
liability for claims reported but not yet paid is
included in_ _Accounts _Payable an ccrued
Liabilities, while the liability” for Insurance Claims
Incurred But Not Reported is reported separately on
the face of the financial statements. Because actual
claims costs depend on such complex factors as
inflation, changes in legal doctrines, and damage
awards, compufation of the claims liability does not
necessarily result in an exact amount. Claims
liabilities~ and = the computation methods are
reevaluated periodically, and any adjustments are
reflected in current earnings. ) L

Changes in the balances of claims liabilities
during the past two years were as follows (expressed
in thousands):

Fiscal Current-Year
Year Beginning-of Claimsand Balance at
Ended Fiscal-Year Changes in Claim Fiscal

June 30 Liability

1996 $ 65651 § 20,726 $ (26,586) $ 59,791
1997 59,791 25,563 (26,911) 58,443

Estimates Payments Year-End

The Fund has entered into a reinsurance
agreement, to reduce its exposure to catastrophic
losses on insured events. Losses are covered up to
$45.000 million per event and $2.000 million per
individual, with the Fund retaining the risk for the
first $5.000 million of loss, Reinsurance permits
Bamal recovery of losses from reinsurers; but the

und, as diréct insurer of the risks, remains
rimarily liable. There were no amounts estimated
o be recoverable from reinsurers at June 30, 1997,
or at June 30, 1996.

d. Patients’ Compensation Fund

The State’s Enterprise Funds include the
South Carolina Medical Malpractice Patients’
Compensation Fund (PCF). The PCF is accounted
for as an insurance enterprise because it is primarily
composed of non-governmental entities.
Accordmg]y, the PCF follows the guidance of FASB
Statement ~60, “Accounting and Reporting by
Insurance Enterprises.” .

State law created the PCF to pay that portion
of any medical malpractice claim, settlement, or
judgment against a licensed health care provider
which exceeds $100 thousand per incident or
$300 thousand in the aggregate for one year. In the
event the PCF incurs a liability” exceeding

$100 thousand to any person under a single
occurrence, the PCF  may not pay more than
$100 thousand per year until the claim™has been fpald
in_full. However, the Board of Governors of the
PCF may authorize payments in excess of
$100 thousand per year so as to avoid payment of
mterest. . .

. Licensed health care providers include
{)hyswlans and  surgeons, directors, officers and
rustees of hospitals, nurses, oral surgeons, dentists,
pharmacists, chiropractors, hospitals, nursing homes,
and any similar category of licensed health care
providers. All providers licensed in South Carolina
are eligible to participate upon remittance of the
annual assessment fees. ) .
~_The PCF actuarially establishes claims
liabilities based on estimates of the ultimate cost of
claims that have been reported but not settled, and of
claims that have been incurred but not reported. At
June 30, 1997, the claims lgqbllltfy for the PCF was
$12.800 million.  The liability for claims reported
but not settled is included in Accrued Liabilities
while the liability for Insurance Claims Incurred But
Not Reported is reported separately on the face of
the financial statements. The PCF does not incur
claim adjustment expenses because it lEl)rowd'es only
excess liability coverage. The length of time for
which such “costs must be estimated varies
depending on the coverage involved. Because actual
claims costs depend on such complex factors as
medical technology, changes in doctrines of legal
liability, and damage awards, the process used in
comPutmg claims liabilities does not necessarily
result in an exact amount. Claims liabilities are
recomputed annually using a variety of actuarial and
statistical techniqués to produce current estimates
that reflect recent settlements, claims frequency, and
other economic and social factors. A provision for
inflation in the calculation of estimated future claims
costs is implicit because reliance is placed both on
actual historical data that reflect past inflation and on
other factors that are considered to be appropriate
modifiers of past experience. Adjustments to claims
liabilities are charged or credited to expense in the
periods in which they are made.

e. Public Service Authority—A Discretely
Presented Component Unit

The Public Service Authority, a discretely
presented component unit with a December 31 fiscal
¥/ear-end, is exposed to various risks of loss related
o torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; and errors and omissions. The Authority
gurchases commercial insurance to cover these risks.

ettled claims resulting from these risks have not
exceeded commercial insurance_coverage in any of
the past three years. Policies are subject to
deductibles ranging from $1 thousand to approxi-
mately $800 thousand. Also a $1.000 million self-
insuréd layer exists between the Authority’s primary
and excess liabiljty policies. o

The Authority self-insures its risks related to
auto, dental, "and _ environmental incidents.
Automotive exposure is_up to $2.000 million .{)er
incident. Risk exposure for the dental plan is limited
by plan provisions. There have not been any third-
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ﬁ)grg‘%/ claims for environmental damages for 1995 or

The State reports all of the Authority’s risk
management activities within the Public “Service
Authority’s accounts. Claims expenditures and
liabilities are reported when it is probable that a loss
has occurred and the amount of the loss can be
reasonabll)y estimated.

At December 31, 1996, the amount of these
liabilities  was $1.649 miflion. Changes in the
reported liability in each of the gast two years were
as follows (expressed in thousands):

Fiscai Current-Year
Year Beginning-of Claims and Balance at
Ended Fiscal-Year Changes in Claim Fiscal
December 31 Liability Estimates Payments Year-End
1995 $ 2437 % 77 8 (880) $ 1634
1996 1,634 984 (969) 1,649

NOTE 19: JOINT OPERATION

The Summer Nuclear Station is a joint operation
owned by the Public Service Authority (the
Authority), a discretely presented component unit
and regulated electric utility, and the South Carolina
Electric and Gas Company (SCE&G), a non-
governmental electric utility. ~ The Authority owns
an undivided one-third interest in the Station while
SCE&G owns an undivided two-thirds interest.
SCE&G is sole?' responsible for the_Station's
management, budgeting, operation, maintenance
and decommissioning; and the Authority is obli a_ted
to pay its ownership share of all costs relating
thereto. The Authority receives one-third of the net
electricity generated. = )

In accordance _with regulatory accountin
Eracxlces. the Authority reported Propérty, Plant, an

uipment_of $480.000 million and eéxpenses of
$4(1]2 33 million which represent its interest in_this
joint operation, ~The Authority has financed its
interest in the joint operation with long-term debt.
The Summer Nuclear Station is not a separate legal
entity and does not prepare separate financial
statements. o

The Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC) has
published final regulations on decommissioning of
nuclear facilities.” These regulations require a
licensee of a nuclear reactor to provide minimum
financial assurance of its ability to decommission its
nuclear facilities. A site-specific decommissioning
study comci)leted in 1991 estimated the Authority's
share of decommissioning costs for the Summer
Nuclear Station as $76.266 million in 1990 dollars,
The Authority accrues for its share of the estimated
decommissioning costs over the remaining life of the
facility, These costs are being recovered through the
Authority's rates. )

To ‘comply with the NRC regulations, the
Authority established an external trust fund and has
been making deposits into this fund since
September 1990, In addition, the Authority
established an internal decommissioning account.
The Authority makes deposits into this fund in the

amount necessary to fund the difference between the
1991 site-specific stud%/ and the NRC's imposed
minimum  requiremenf.  Based on current
decommissioning cost estimates developed by
SCE&G, these funds, which totaled $40.913 million
(adLusted to market) at December 31, 1996, alon
with future deposits into both the external an
internal decommissioning accounts_and investment
earnings, are expected to provide sufficient funds for
the Authority’'s share of the estimated
decommissioning costs. ) )

The Price-Anderson Indemnification Act has
established the maximum liability for public claims
arising from any nuclear incident as $8.900 billion.
This amount would be covered by nuclear liabili
insurance of up to $200.000 million per site, wit
gotentlal retrospective,  assessments of up to
$379.300 million per licensee for each nuclear
incident occurring at any reactor in the United States
(payable at a rate not to exceed $10.000 million per
incident per ear?. Based on its one-third interest in
the Summer Nuclear Station, the Authority would be
responsible for a maximum assessment of
$26.400 million, not to exceed approximately
$3.300 million per incident per year. This amount is
subject to further increases to reflect (i) inflation, (11}
increases in the licensing for operation of additiona
nuclear reactors, and (iii) any increase in the amount
of commercial ljability insurance the NRC is
required to maintain. ) o ]

CE&G and the Authority maintain, with
American Nuclear Insurers AKH% and Nuclear
Electric Insurance Limited (NEIL), $500.000 million
primary and_ $1.500 billion excess property and
decontamination insurance to cover the costs of
facility cleanup in the event of an accident. In
addition to the premiums paid on the excess policy,
SCE&G and the Authority also could be assessed a
retroactive premium, not to exceed five times the
annual premium, in the event of property damage to
any nuclear generating facility covered by IL
Based on the current annual premium ‘and the
Authority’s one-third interest, the Authority’s
maximum _ retroactive  premium  would “be
$2.900 million. )

The Authority does not purchase insurance for
any retroactive premium assessments, claims in
excess of stated coverage, or cost increases due to
the purchase of replacement power.

NOTE 20: CONTINGENCIES AND
COMMITMENTS

a. Litigation

Among the unresolved lawsuits in which the
State was involved at June 30, 1997, were several
that challenge the legality of certain taxes. The
challenged revenues include the following: sales
taxes on certain prescription medicines, on video
%amlng machines, and taxes on bingo operations.

nother suit challenges the legality of the State’s
enforcement of a referendum provided by State iaw,
which _allows each county to ban video poker
operations. The plaintiffs allege that this resulted in
revenue losses for video poker operators in counties
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where the referendum was passed., State losses in
these cases could have an adyerse impact on future
revenues. While the State is uncertain as to the
ultimate outcome of any of these cases, it is
vigorously defending each lawsuit. In the event of
an unfavorable outcome for these cases, the ultimate
liability is not expected to exceed $131.808 million.
This estimate does not include the impact on future
revenues. ) i ]
_Another case in which the State may incur a
liability is a suit that challenged the single gender
education policy at The Citadel. A judgment was
entered by the” District Court in August of 1996
finding the Citadel’s admissions policy in violation
of the United States Constitution. That judgment is
presently on appeal to the United States Court of
Appeals for the Fourth Circuit. In the event of an
unfavorable outcome for this case, the ultimate
uninsured liability is not expected to exceed
$4.700 million. ) )
~ The_ South Carolina Retirement Systems are
involved in a lawsuit filed by four retired members.
The plaintiffs challenge the Systems' treatment of
unused annual leave in fhe calculation of
F_art_lc_lpants' retirement payments. The State’s
iability in the event of an unfavorable outcome
would™ be_ approximately $340.000 million for
current retirees and $800.000 million for current
active members_of the South Carolina Retirement
System and the Police Officers’ Retirement System.
Although the Circuit Court determined that the State
has been providing retirement benefits in accordance
with the law, the plaintiffs have apgealed the
decision to the South Carolina Supreme Court. The
State continues to vigorously defend its position.
_The State is involved in a number of cases in
which the amounts of potential losses, 1f_an?', are not
presently determinable. These cases include one
contending that the funding of public education in
South Carolina is inequitable and inadequate and
one involving tax refunds on State capital gains
taxes. The State moved to_dismiss the public
education case, and_the Circuit Court granted that
motion. The plaintiffs have apﬁleal d. .
The State is involved. in other legal proceedings
pertaining to matters incidental to the performance
of routiné governmental operations, Such litigation
includes cases involving possible violations of State
and Federal laws. Unfavorable outcomes in these
matters could result in the State incurring losses.
However, these losses are not expected to_have a
material, adverse effect on the State's financial
statements. . . . .
Due to the uncertainty involving the ultimate
outcome of the previously discussed unresolved

lawsuits, no ﬁrowsgon for potential liability has been
made for them in the accompanying financial
statements.

In two recent decisions, the South Carolina
Sugreme Court concluded that the $250 thousand
sta utog/ government liability cap provided for in the
South Carolina Tort Claims”Act would not apply to
tort cases filed against the State prior  to
July 1, 1994. Most State agencies purchase only
$250 thousand in _ liability ~ insurance ~coveragé.
During 1997, the General "Assembly reenacted the
government liability caps and made the reenactment
applicable to all claims or actions that have not been
reduced to final judgment. The State has recorded

an $800 thousand liabilitﬁ in the Department of
Transportation Special Revenue funds and a
$3.400 million liability in its General Long-Term
Obligations Account Group at June 30, 1997, for

]Judgments against the State in cases filed prior to
uly 1, 1994.

b. Federal Grants

_The State receives significant Federal %rant and
entitlement revenues. Compliance audits ot Federal
i))r_ograms may identify disallowed expenditures.
isallowances by Federal program officials as a
result of these audits may become liabilities of the
State. The State records a liability for pending
disallowances if settlement is probable and the
settlement amount is reasonably estimable.
Otherwise, the liability is recorded when the State
and the Federal ~government agree _ upon
reimbursement terms. It’is presently not possible for
management to determine the outcome of pendin
audit _disallowances. Based on an analysis o
historical data, however, the State believes that any
such reimbursements relating to the fiscal year
ended June 30, 1997, or earlier years will not have a
material impact on the State's financial statements.

¢. Education Assistance Loan Guarantees

The South Carolina Education Assistance
Authority within the State's  Enterprise  Funds
uarantees student loans. At June 30, 1997, these
oans totaled $930.757 million. The United’ States
Department of Education reinsures 100% of losses
under these &uarantees for loans made prior to
October 1, 1993, and 98% of losses for loans made
on or after October 1, 1993. If the loan default rate
exceeds 5.0% of the loans in repayment status,
however, the United States Department of Education
decreases the reinsurance rate. The State's default
rate at June 30, 1997, was less than 2.0%.

d. Federal Housing and Urban Development
Loan Guarantee Program

During 1994, Lexington County and Berkeley
County each entered into a contract for part1c1£ﬁt}on
in the Housing and Urban Development (HUD)
Section 108 loan guarantee program. Under this
program, HUD arranges a public offering of notes
guaranteed by Federal funds and lends the note
proceeds to the program participant. The participant

uarantees the loan with HUD Community

evelopment Block Grant (CDBG) funds. Because
neither county received CDBG funds directly from
HUD, the State cosigned the HUD contracts and
ledged its future federal CDBG funds on behalf of
he counties. Each county lent its loan proceeds to
fund an economic development project. ]

During 1997, both of the ~funded projects
declared ankrupth. Because neither project” will
make anK further loan payments to its réspective
county, the counties will not receive the funds they
would have used to make the corresponding loan
payments to HUD. Under the agreements, therefore,

X
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the State must use its federal CDBG funds to make
the loan payments on behalf of the counties to the
extent that 'such funds are available. If the State
does not receive CDBG funds in future years, the
Federal government is responsible for the ‘payments
to the note holders. o )

At June 30, 1997, $9.850 million remained
outstanding on the Lexington County loan. The
payment terms require the State to repay this amount
n seven years at 8% interest. Berkeley County had
an _interim loan with an outstanding balance of
$12 million at June 30, 1997.  Quarterly interest
gayments, using the 90 14?6/ floating LIBOR rate, are

eing made until the D notes are sold and a
germanent .repayment schedule of principal and
ixed rate interest is established. Accordmgly, at
June 30, 1997, the State has recorded” an
Intergovernmental . Payable liability 0
$21.850 million in thé General Long-Term
Obligations Group for the amount it owes HUD on
the two loans. ) i

In July 1997, the State received title to real and

Eersonal p_ropergly from the bankrupt Berkeley

ounrtty ?rOjeCt. The State plans to sell that property
to partially fund its liability, although the amount of
recovery 1S uncertain.

e. Purchase Commitments

At December 31, 1996, the Public Service
Authority, a discretely presented component unit and
electric utility company, had outstanding minimum
obligations “under _eXisting purchase  contracts
tota 1%$42Q.704 million forcoal and approximately
$100.000 million for power. The term of the power
contract is 39 years. The Authori has
commitments of approximately $104.900 million for
its one-third share under ‘the joint ownership
agreement with the South CarolinaElectric and Gas

ompany for the purchase, enrichment, and
fabrication of uranium. The terms of these
commitments are 10 years.

f. Clean Air Act

The Public Service Authority, a discretely
presented component unit and ~electric_ utility
company, endeavors to ensure that its facilities
comply “with applicable environmental regulations
and ~ standards. Congress has  promulgated
comprehensive amendments to the Clean Air Act,
mclu_dm% the addition of a new federal program
relating fo acid precipitation. Although most of the
Clean "Air Act Amendment regulations have been
finalized, the Federal Environmental Protection
Agency has not yet promul%ated some, important
regulafions. Therefore, complete compliance costs
cannot yet be determined.” The Authority has
installed”  continuous _ emissions  monitoring
equipment at a cost of $5.600 million and estimates
that it will spend approximately $10.700 million for
lz%vbzomtrogen oxide burner technology by the year
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g. Medical University Proposed Sale/l.ease

On October 16, 1995, the Medical University of
South Carolina (MUSC)’ signed a letter of intent
with Columbia/HCA Healthcare Corporation to
negotiate for the sale of Medical Center assets and
the lease of certain real estate. On February 9, 1996,
MUSC’s Board of Trustees approved, in principle,
seven proposed agreements and directed that the
agreements be presented to the appropriate
governmental bodies for review and approval.

On May 22, 1996, the State’s General Assembly
authorized "MUSC to_enter into the a reements,
subject to the State Budget and Control Board’s
satisfaction that (a)the proposed compensation
would reflect fair and reasonable value to the State
and (b) provisions in the lease and purchase
agreements would ensure compliance with the

eneral Assembly’s conditions. The Budget and
Control  Board~ granted its approval on
August 27, 1996. ) o

. On July 24,1996, a third party filed suit_in
Circuit Court questioning ﬁa) whether the transaction
is a constltutlonallﬁ illegal joint venture and (b) the
reasonableness of the compensation to the State.” On
August 14, 1996, MUSC petitioned the South
Carolina S’upreme Court to take original jurisdiction
of the case. On September 18, 1996, the Supreme
Court refused to accept jurisdiction and referred the
case to the lower court. A hearing has been
scheduled for mid-December 1997, but a trial date
has not been set.

NOTE 21: PLEDGES OF GIFTS—
HIGHER EDUCATION
FUNDS

The State's Higher Education Funds expect to
collect pledges (expressed in thousands) as follows:

Fiscal Higher Education Funds
Year Current
Ending Unre- Current
June 30 stricted Restricted Totals
1998 $ 2678 $ 59 $ 2,737
1999 10 56 66
2000 — 1 1
2001 — 1 1
2002 — 1 1
Thereafter 20,410 1,630 22,040

Totals $ 23,098 $ 1,748 § 24,846

It is not practicable to estimate the net realizable
value of such pledges; accordingly, they are not
recorded as pledges receivable at June 30, 1997, in
the accompanying financial statements.
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State of South Carolina

National Guard Pension System
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

Last Six Fiscal Years

(Dollars in Thousands)
Actuarial UAAL
Accrued As a
Actuarial Liability Unfunded Annual Percentage
Fiscal Actuarial Valuation (AAL) AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Year Ended Valuation of Assets Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroli
June 30 Date (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) ((b-a)/c)
1992 July 1,1991% § 0 $ 19499 $ 19,499 0.0% $ 48,827 39.9%
1993 July 1, 1992° 0 23,701 23,701 0.0% 50,404 47.0%
1994 July 1, 1993 2,499 26,200 23,701 9.5% 48,385 49.0%
1995 July 1, 1994 3,760 26,996 23,236 13.9% 50,766 45.8%
1996 June 30, 1996 6,259 36,756 30,497 17.0% 48,861 62.4%
1997 June 30, 1996° 6,259 36,756 30,497 17.0% 41,264 73.9%

@ Before July 1, 1993, the National Guard Pension System operated on a pay-as-you-go basis.

® The State Adjutant General's Office administers the plan. Effective June 30, 1996, the plan’s administrator

implemented a biennial valuation schedule.

The unfunded actuarial accrued liability
expressed as a percentage of covered payroll is a
measure of the significance of the <unfunded
actuarial 11ab111?/ relative to the State’s capacity to
pay it. The funded ratio represents the assets
expressed as a percentage of the actuarial accrued

100

liability.  The trend in those two ratios provides
information about whether the financial strength of
the plan is improving or deteriorating over time. An
improvement is indicated when the funded ratio is
increasing and the ratio of the unfunded actuarial
liability to active covered payroll is decreasing.



State of South Carolina

National Guard Pension System

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS

Last Six Fiscal Years

(Dollars in Thousands)
Employer Contributions
Fiscal Year Annual

Ended Required Percentage
June 30 Contribution Contributed

1992 § 2316 45.0%

1993 2,499 46.8%

1994 2,499 100.0%

1995 2,499 100.0%

1996 3,085 81.0%

19972 3,085 81.0%

3 The State Adjutant General's Office administers the plan.

implemented a biennial valuation schedule.

Effective June 30, 1996, the plan’s administrator

The schedule of employer _contributions
provides  information about the required
contributions of the State and the extent to which
those contributions are being made. The schedule
gives an indication of the progress made in

gccumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when
ue.

The information resented above  was
determined as part of the actuarial valuations.
Additional information as of the latest actuarial
valuation follows:

Actuarial valuation date.............
Actuarial cost method................
Amortization method.................

Remaining amortization period

Asset valuation method.............

Actuarial assumptions:

Investment rate of return........
Projected salary increases......
Assumed inflation rate ...........
Assumed cost-of-living adjustments...............

June 30, 1996
Entry age

Level percent, open
30 years

Market

7.25%
Not applicable
4.25%
Not applicable
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The first landscape plan (1879) included a butterfly-shaped lake near the corner of
Gervais and Assembly Streets.
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(See Accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report)




Photograph is not available
in web version of CAFR

Milburn specialized in public buildings. He worked on the State House from 1900
through 1903 and was responsible for the present dome and the porticoes.
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Special Revenue Funds

Special Revenue Funds account for specific
revenue sources (ﬁther than_for Cagltal Projects,
Trust, and Higher Education Funds) that are legally
restricted for specified purposes. The State uses the
following Special Revenue Funds:

Departmental General Operating Fund. This
fund accounts for resources that are part of a
particular State agency's General Fund but are not
part of the State's General Fund. These resources
include significant amounts of Federal grant
recelpts.

Education Improvement Act Fund. This fund
accounts for the special additional one-percent sales
tax levied to be used exclusively for improvements
in elementary and secondary education.

Children's Education Endowment Fund. This
fund accounts for low-level radioactive waste fees
collected from the Barnwell waste facility that are
not required to be deposited to the General Fund or
remitted to Barnwell County. These funds are to be
used for public school facilities assistance and
higher education scholarship grants.

_Repair, Maintenance, and Renovation Fund.
This fund accounts for State bond tproceeds and
other permanent improvement project resources to
be expended for approved repair, maintenance,
renovation, and alteration projects.

Waste Mana%ement Fund. This fund accounts
for fees collecte

solid and hazardous wastes, and owners and
operators of solid waste and hazardous waste
storage facilities, These fees must be used for the
pugposes set forth in the State's Solid Waste Policy
and Management Act of 1991 and to cover the
State's costs in governmental actions involving
uncontrolled hazardous waste sites.

Department of Transportation Special
Revenue Fund. This fund accounts for the various
gasoline taxes, fees, fines, and Federal grant
resources used By the Department of Transportation
for its general operations. These operations include
highway maintenance and repair.

from consumers, generators of

Image

Local Government Infrastructure Fund. This
fund, formerly called the Economic Development
Fund, accounts for grants, loans, and other financial
assistance to local governments for infrastructure
lgun(—{posces. It is funded by certain motor fuel taxes,

ederal funds, and transférs from other funds.

Accommodations and Local Option Sales
Tax Fund. This fund accounts for: (1) a special
additional two-percent sales tax on the %_ross
proceeds on the rental of transient accommodations
and (21) a special one-percent sales tax applicable in
some localities within the State. The State allocates
these revenues to counties and municipalities in
accordance with State law.

Energy Settlement Fund. Revenues received
from court-ordered settlements resulting from oil
overcharges by various oil companies are accounted
for in this fund. These resources must be used for
energy-related programs designed to benefit all
categories of ~the State's petroleum product
consumers.

Omnibus Crime Fund. This fund accounts for
court fees remitted to the State by local court
systems under the Omnibus Crime ‘Act of 1985.

hese fees must be used for certain programs
administered by the Department of Probation,
Parole & Pardon Services.

Medicaid Expansion Fund. Resources of this
fund include county assessments for indigent
medical care and a tax on licensed hospitals. The
fund was established to provide Medicaid coverage
to persons formerly 1ne11§1ble for such coverage and
{\(/)I _royéde additional State matching funds for

edicaid.

Other Special Revenue Funds. These funds,
aggregated for reporting purposes, account for
various other revenues which must be used for
specific purposes. These, include operations of
various employment services, water recreation,
agricultural boards, forest renewal programs, certain
housing programs, and medical ~and dental
scholarships.

Steel Frame of Dome Completion of South Carolina Capitol
Building, Frank P. Milburn, c. 1900, courtesy of the South
Carolina Department of Archives and History

The simplified dome has a steel frame, similar
to a railroad bridge, and copper sheathing. A
smaller, off-center interior dome was
necessary to “line up” with the lobby below.
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State of South Carolina

Combining Balance Sheet
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

June 30, 1997

(Expressed in Thousands)

Repair, Department
Depart- Education Mainte- of
mental improve- Children's nance, Waste Transportation
General ment Education and Manage- Special
Operating Act Endowment Renovation ment Revenue
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents............................ 173,484 $ 63,499 S 84,490 $ 23,600 $ 69234 S 153,151
Investments........................ 217 — — — — —
Securities lending investments...................... 142 155 1,562 — 1,240 3.109
Receivables, net:
ACCOUNES.....oiiiiiiiiiie e 45,282 1,824 972 — 794 8,209
2,230 38,051 15,758 — — 31,164
— 14,645 — — — —
Loans and notes..........ccooceeviiiiiiiiieninnn. 224 — — — — —
Due from Federal government
and other grantors.............ococoiinen 142,644 167 — 3 — 51,204
Due from other funds.................cccoeeiii, 13,501 1,846 — 1,564 1,546 48,660
Interfund receivables 343 — — — — 1,358
Advances tootherfunds................................ — — — — — 6,227
Inventories...........coooovviieiiiiii 9,788 — — — 25 12,237
Other assets.........c..ocooveiiiiiieiiiiiieeee 143 — — — - —
Total @assets.........ccveveveremererernrcrercrerennrenens 387,998 $ 120,187 $ 102,782 $ 25,167 $ 72839 $ 315,319
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued
liabilities................... 192,199 $ 2,621 $ 1,785 $ 3,095 $ 3,891 $ 95,879
Tax refunds payable 5 294 — — — 625
Intergovernmental payables......................... 67,923 6,444 4,816 — 606 —
Due to otherfunds.............c..ccoooiiin. 46,958 2,379 6 191 383 2,155
Interfund payables 3,198 100 — — — —
Advances from other funds 300 - — — — —
Deferred revenues.............ccccocceeeenn. 20,810 1,290 — 31 — 16,835
Obligations under securities lending............ 142 155 1,562 — 1,240 3,109
Other liabilities, including retainages
payable............c.ooociii 8 5 — 2,079 — 24,830
Total liabilities.........cccccooeercrencrrivanrenna: 331,543 13,288 8,169 5,396 6,120 143,433
Fund balances:
Reserved for:
INVENtORES. ......eeeiiiiie 9,788 — — — 25 12,237
Advances to other funds........................... — — — — — 6,227
Long-term loans and notes
receivable............occceeiiiiiiii 224 10,859 — — — —
Debt requirements... — — — — — 1,267
School building aid...............cccceoiiee — 22,512 — —_ — —
Unreserved:
Designated for future years'
expenditures..............ccooocveeeiine i — — — — — 76,805
Designated for capital expenditures........... — — — - — 37,508
Designated for scholarships.........c............ — 14,085 — — 242 —
Undesignated..............cccooooiviiiiiinine 46,443 59,443 94,613 19,771 66,452 37,842
Total fund balances...........cccecvrecenncne 56,455 106,899 94,613 19,771 66,719 171,886
Total liabilities and
fund balances........c...ccovrciniirinineninene 387,998 $ 120,187 $ 102,782 $ 25,167 $ 72,839 $ 315,319
- I _

106



State of South Carolina

Accommoda-
Local tions and Other
Government Local Option Energy Omnibus Medicaid Special Elimina-
Infrastructure Sales Tax Settlement Crime Expansion Revenue tions Totals
$ 90,343 $ 21,342 $ 18,529 $ 1,796 S 5,456 $ 57,603 $ — 3 762,527
— — — — — — — 217
1,670 — 341 — 37 315 — 8,571
2.008 — 232 — 59 234 — 59,614
— 14,085 — — — 1,566 —_ 102,854
- — — — — — — 14,645
139,019 — — — — 2,669 — 141,912
— — — — — — — 194,018
65,504 33 — 249 — 768 (43,539) 90,132
200 — — — — 59 — 1,960
600 — — — — 260 — 7,087
— — 1 — — — — 22,051
— — — — — — — 143
$ 299,344 $ 35,460 $ 19,103 $ 2,045 $ 5,552 $ 63,474 $  (43,539) $ 1,405,731
$ 1,908 $ 1 $ 463 $ 539 $ 42 $ 3,422 $ — $ 305,845
— 46 — — — 2 — 972
— 19,663 44 — — 274 — 89,770
17 72 42 243 59 3,576 (43,539) 12,542
— — — — — 70 — 3,368
— — — — — — —_ 300
31,745 925 — — — 14 —_ 71,650
1,670 — 341 — 37 315 — 8,571
— — — — — 5 — 26,927
35,340 20,707 890 782 138 7,678 (43,539) 529,945
— — 1 — — — — 22,051
600 — — — — 260 — 7,087
138,733 — — — — 2,644 — 152,460
— — — — — — — 1,267
— — — — — — — 22,512
— — — — — —_ — 76,805
— — — — — — — 37,508
— — — — — — — 14,327
124 671 14,753 18,212 1,263 5,414 52,892 — 541,769
264,004 14,753 18,213 1,263 5,414 55,796 —_ 875,786
$ 299,344 $ 35,460 $ 19,103 $ 2,045 $ 5,552 $ 63,474 $ (43,539) $ 1,405,731
R R
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State of South Carolina

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,

and Changes in Fund Balances

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1997
(Expressed in Thousands)

Revenues:
Taxes:
Retail sales and US€...........ccoveeiieiiiece e

Licenses, fees, and permits..............ccooccniiiciine,
Interest and other investment income..............cococccccii
Federal..........cooiiie e
Departmental SErviCes..........coocevceiciiiii s
ContribUtiONS......coooiiiiiieie e

Expenditures:
Current:
General government.............c.ccocoeiicin
Education. ...
Health and environment..............c.oco oo
SOCial SBIVICES.......coiiiiiiiiie e
Administration of justice..................ccoei i
Resources and economic development...............................
Transportation..........ccoovveriercriicri e
Capital outlay.............cocooveereninnnnnn. e
Debt service:
Principal retirement...............cccccoiiin
Interest and fiscal charges............ccccccviiinis
Intergovernmental..................cciii

Total expenditures............coeervmeninn o,
Revenues over (under) expenditures...............cccoeviinininine

Other financing sources (uses):
Proceeds from bonds and notes..............c.coeiiin,
Lease and installment debt proceeds.................ccoocviein
Operating transfers in...........cccocceciiinii
Operating transfers out............ccoooiiiiiiiiic

Total other financing sources (US€S)...........cccuvueveinnnennn.

Revenues and other sources over

expenditures and other uses.........ccccccevvvvvimniininvinenninn.
Fund balances, July 1, 1996 (restated)
Increases (decreases) in reserve for inventories....
Residual equity transfers out............cccocininnnnnniincinnnn,

Fund balances, June 30, 1997.........cccccririiiinninncinininininnen
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Repair,
Depart- Education Mainte-
mental Improve- Children's nance, Waste
General ment Education and Manage-
Operating Act Endowment Renovation ment
257 $ 404944 — $ — $ 1,635
30,414 — 73,393 216 —
47,311 2 — 6 24,668
410 5,945 5,011 — 2,301
2,744 288 143 —_ 1,499 —
158,569 — — 653 282
106,566 — — 121 —
19,886 — —_ 1,438 100
51,647 1,366 — 335 755
3,159,348 412,400 78,404 4,168 29,741
45,994 6,972 — 27,099 4
115,988 15,700 3,009 359 —_
1,993,942 926 4,221 11,440
580,884 4,263 — —_ —
38,529 1,222 - 3,511 —
78,586 — — 1,443 —
628 — — — —
129 —_ — — —
378,693 374,388 39,198 — 5,023
3,233,373 403,471 42,207 36,633 16,467
(74,025) 8,929 36,197 (32,465) 13,274
1561 -— — — —_
89,353 37 — 42 657 38
(11,147) (3,447) (17,399) (757) (416)
78,357 (3,410) (17,399) 41,900 (378)
4,332 5,519 18,798 9,435 12,896
51,641 101,380 75,815 10,336 53,870
482 - - —_ (47)
56,455 §$ 106,899 $ 94613 §$§ 19,771 $ 66,719




State of South Carolina
. e

Department
of Accommoda-
Transportation Local tions and Energy Omni- Other
Special Government Local Option Settle- bus Medicaid Special Elimina-
Revenue Infrastructure Sales Tax ment Crime Expansion Revenue tions Totals
$ — — $ 121654 §$ — $ — $ — $ — — $ 528,490
313,328 18,000 — — — 21,726 12,843 — 469,920
— — —_ — — — 4,554 — 76,541
20,950 8,458 —_ 1,123 — 331 1,774 — 46,303
253,083 8,084 — — — — — — 3,007,097
65,104 — —_ 203 —_ — 2,171 — 226,882
—_ — —_ — —_ 7,508 901 —_ 115,096
— — — —_ 12,708 — 8,783 — 42915
3,595 — — 1 1 — 27 — 57,727
656,060 34,542 121,654 1,327 12,709 29,565 31,053 — 4,570,971
— — 12 661 4 — 14,654 — 95,400
— — —_ — — — — — 135,056
— — — 79 — 29,037 87 — 2,039,732
— — — — — —_ 2,557 — 587,704
— —_ — — 12,002 - 174 — 55,438
— 643 — — — - 2,630 — 83,302
230,384 — — — — —_ —_ — 230,384
436,798 — — — — — — —_ 436,798
2,230 — — — — — 107 — 2,965
3,596 — — - — - 20 — 3,745
9,499 7,601 117,022 413 — — 2,000 — 933,837
682,507 8,244 117,034 1,153 12,006 29,037 22,229 —_ 4,604,361
(26,447) 26,298 4,620 174 703 528 8,824 —_ (33,390)
44,550 — —_ — — — — —_ 44,550
— — —_ — — — 500 — 651
586 76,933 — —_ 304 — 2,866 (44,018) 168,756
(6,050) (360) (1,688) (103) — —_ (7,5613) 44018 (4,862)
39,086 76,573 (1,688) (103) 304 —_ (4,147) — 209,095
12,639 102,871 2,932 71 1,007 528 4,677 — 175,705
160,592 161,635 11,821 18,147 256 4,886 51,119 - 701,498
(1,345) —_ — (5) —_ —_ —_ — (915)
—_ (502) — — — — — —_ (502)
$ 171,886 264,004 $ 14753 $ 18,213 $ 1,263 $ 5414 $ 55796 — $ 875,786
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Photograph is not available
in web version of CAFR

When the new capital city was laid out, a central square was reserved for the State
House.

110



State of South Carolina

Enterprise Funds

_Enterprise Funds account for business-like State
activities_that provide goods and/or services to the
public. These funds are financed primarily through
user charges. The State's primary government
maintains the following Enterprise Funds:

Housing Authority. The State Housing Finance
and Development Authority facilitates medium-
income and low-income_housing opportunities by
providing reasonable financing to the State's
citizens, To provide such financing, the Authority
issues bonds and notes and administers Federal
grants and contracts. The Authority is supported
primarily by mortgage interest.

Education Assistance Authority. The South
Carolina Education Assistance Authority issues
bonds for the purpose of making loans to students of
the State to enable them to attend higher education
institutions. Resources include interest charges
subsidies from_the United States Department of
Education, and investment earnings.

Jobs—Economic Development Authority. The
Jobs—Economic | Development Authority acts in
conjunction with other organizations in the
promotion and advancement of industrial
commercial, = agricultural and  recreational
development in the State. The Authority's emphasis

is on those areas of the State with the greatest
economic need and to those prollgcts providing the
greatest economic benefit. he Authority is
fupported primarily by interest charges on project
oans.

Patients' Compensation Fund. This fund
provides medical malpractice insurance to any
ublic or private health care provider within the
tate. =~ This fund is reported as an insurance
enterprise.

_Second Injury Fund. This fund serves as a
claims processor for insurance carriers, self-
insurers, and the State Accident Fund. The fund
processes claims of employees with existing
permanent physical impairment who are further
injured in the course of their subsequent
employment.

Patriots Point Development Authority. The
Patriots Point Development Authority is responsible
for developing and oFer_atmg the Patriots Point area
near Charleston, including a naval museum. The
Authority is supported by user fees.

_Other Enterprise Funds. Other enterprise
activities of the State include: the Savannah Valley
Development and the Public Railways Divisions of
the South Carolina Department of Commerce, and
the Canteens Fund.

Photograph is not available
in web version of CAFR

The terrace and tower were never built, and none of Niernsee’s drawings survive;
nonetheless, nineteenth century pictures clearly show what he had in mind.
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State of South Carolina

Combining Balance Sheet

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

June 30, 1997
(Expressed in Thousands)

Jobs-
Education Economic
Housing Assistance Development Patients’
Authority Authority Authority Compensation
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents........ 1,576 $ 47,970 $ 8,422 $ 13,645
Securities lending investments — 433 — 244
Receivables, net:
ACCOUNES <.envereeeie et eieeesteeeeeereeeseeaseeeeteesesessseeasseasseasas 155 9,061 158 165
Student loans...... — 6 — —
Loans and notes 303 64,000 — —
Due from Federal government and other grantors............... 424 1,034 — —
Due from other funds 5 — — —
INVENEOTIES. ... .eieeeeeietitieier e e e eere e e e e e re i rerer e et e e sananans — — — —
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents.........c..ccoceeciniiiie, 128,320 50,396 —_ —
Loans receivable 9,930 — — —
Other.......ccooevviivieeee 6,659 — — —
Other current assets — — 38 —
Total current asSets...........vvvvveeeeeemveiiiiririiireiirrceieeeeeeeerenes 147,372 172,900 8,618 14,054
Long-term assets:
INVESIMENES ... it e e ce e s e — 2,280 1,450 —
Receivables, net:
Student 10ans. .............oooiiiei e — 14 — —
Loans and NOES ........ooooviiiiieiiie e s 5,819 290,739 5,449 —
Servicing rights, Net.........ccccoviiii e — — — —
Restricted assets:
INVESEMENES ..ot a e e e et e e e e e 37,848 27,143 — —
Loans receivable..........ccoooi i 458,105 — — —
Other.......coooiiiiien, RSN 864 — — —
Other long-term assets.... e — —_ 300 —
Deferred charges............cccooviiiemieece i — 1,497 — —
Total long-term assets...............c.ooi 502,636 321,673 7,199 —
Property, plant, and equipment:
Land and improvements...........c.c.coovviiiiiiinieiiininen e — — — —
Buildings and improvements...............ccoccocoiinii s — — — —
Machinery, equipment, and other...............c.oooiiiiis 1,285 — — 29
Construction in Progress..........coovveveieiiiie i — — — —
Less: accumulated depreciation.................c.cccie (395) — — (21)
Total property, plant, and equipment, net........................ 890 — — 8
Total assets.....cccviverrrrrrnrnmrnercresisse e $ 650,898 $ 494,573 $ 15,817 $ 14,062
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State of South Carolina

Patriots
Point
Second Development Other Elimina-
Injury Authority Enterprise tions Totals

$ 1,131 $ 1,254 $ 14,066 $ — $ 88,064
848 3 137 — 1,665
5 96 1,515 — 11,155
— — — — 6
—_ —_ —_ — 64,303
— — — - 1,458
—_ — — (4) 1
— 209 1,718 — 1,927
44,095 119 2,723 — 225,653
—_ — — — 9,930
728 — — — 7,387
— 9 42 — 89
46,807 1,690 20,201 (4) 411,638
— — - — 3,730
— — — — 14
— —-— 13,236 — 315,243
— — 2,070 —_ 2,070
— — — — 64,991
- — —_ —_ 458,105
— — — — 864
—_ — 474 — 774
— — — — 1,497
—_ — 15,780 — 847,288
—_ 5,619 14,350 —_ 19,969
— 1,629 2,543 —_ 4,172
202 7,889 1,244 — 10,649
—_ 8 - — 8

(106) (5,938) (3,452) — (9,912)
96 9,207 14,685 —_ 24,886
$ 46,903 $ 10,897 $ 50,666 $ (4) $ 1,283,812

Continued on Next Page
. L __ |
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State of South Carolina

Combining Balance Sheet

ENTERPRISE FUNDS (Continued)

June 30, 1997
(Expressed in Thousands)

LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY
Liabilities:
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities...........................
Due to other funds.............cccoooiii
Interfund payables................ci
Deferred revenues...............ccccoiiiiiiiiici
DEPOSIES ...t
Obligations under securities lending.................c.cccooein.
Liabilities payable from restricted assets...........................
Notes payable.............coo
Revenue bonds payable............c.ooooiiii
Compensated absences payable......................
Other current liabilities, including retainages payable........

Total current liabilities....................c.oooviiiii .

Long-term liabilities:
Accrued liabilities..............occocooiiiiii
Insurance claims incurred but not reported..
Advances from other funds...............cooooo
Notes payable..............co i
Revenue bonds payable..................co

Total long-term liabilities..........................
Total liabilities........cccocecoiriiieie s
Fund Equity (Deficit):
Contributed capital.............cccooiiiii
Retained earnings (deficit):
Reserved for debt requirements...................
Unreserved............ooooiiiiiiii

Total fund equity (deficit).......cccooereiireriiiceees

Total liabilities and fund equity..........c.ccccoririiiciees

Jobs-
Education Economic
Housing Assistance Development Patients’
Authority Authority Authority Compensation
16,660 10,764 $ 65 $ 294
14 210 — 2
141 92 — 2,700
— — 100 —
— 433 — 244
16,245 31,865 - —
336 42 19 22
3,027 — — —
36,423 43,406 184 3,262
— — — 8,875
— —_ —_ 3,925
471,846 360,050 —_ —
471,846 360,050 — 12,800
508,269 403,456 184 16,062
134,388 73,848 — —
8,241 17,269 15,633 (2,000)
142,629 91,117 15,633 (2,000)
650,898 494,573 $ 15,817 $ 14,062
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State of South Carolina

Patriots
Point
Second Development Other Elimina-
Injury Authority Enterprise tions Totals
1,051 $ 532 $ 3,186 $ — $ 32,552
458 8 458 (4) 1,146
— 20 200 — 220
—_ 58 36 — 3,027
— — — — 100
848 3 137 —_ 1,665
44,375 — 967 —_ 45,342
— — 1 — 1
— — — — 48,110
75 144 352 — 990
— — 103 — 3,130
46,807 765 5,440 (4) 136,283
— — 2,112 — 10,987
—_ — — — 3,925
— — 14,037 — 14,037
—_ —_ 27 — 27
— — — — 831,896
— — 16,176 — 860,872
46,807 765 21,616 (4) 997,155
— 11,809 5,061 — 16,870
— — 1,806 — 210,042
96 (1,677) 22,183 — 59,745
96 10,132 29,050 —_ 286,657
46,903 $ 10,897 $ 50,666 $ {4) $ 1,283,812
L _____________________________________ L ]
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State of South Carolina

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses,

and Changes in Fund Equity

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1997
(Expressed in Thousands)

Operating revenues:
Charges for SEMVICES ... ..o i
Interest and other investment income.....................

Total operating revenues...........ccccocceerecieteresrnensnenencescesanasensenes

Operating expenses:
General operations and administration
Benefits and claims........................
121 (=1 (=3 S O OO PP PP OO
Depreciation and amortization......................
Other operating eXPeNnSES........coociiiiiiiiii i

Total operating eXPeNSeS.......cccceeeiieimirrcieiciiee e
Operating iNCome {l0SS).....ccevriiniiiniirnsrr e

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
INtEIESt INCOME. ... e et e
Federal reVenuUe. ............coooii e
Interest expense
Other nonoperating revenues (eXPenses)...........cccoeeviiiiiiiiiineee s

Total nonoperating revenues (EXPENSes)........cccucvivniveeninerasan

Income (loss) before operating transfers
and extraordinary items..........coocoiieiiii e

Operating transfers iN.................ccccii
Income (loss) before extraordinary items........cccccevimnciinnnnns
Extraordinary loss on early extinguishment of debt...........................
Net inCome (10SS)...cuuiccierccrrrctisrire et
Retained earnings (deficit), July 1, 1996 (restated)........................
Retained earnings (deficit), June 30, 1997............cccooeiimrvinnncinns

Contributed capital, July 1, 1996 (restated)..........cccccrvemreriennnnnenn.
Additions to contributed capital..............ccccniininnni

Fund equity (deficit), June 30, 1997..........ccconiiminnee

Jobs-
Education Economic Patients'
Housing Assistance Development Compen-
Authority Authority Authority sation
$ 3,422 $ 38,326 $ 683 $ 3,578
47,098 6.804 744 906
50,520 45,130 1,427 4,484
4,910 6,709 319 276
— — — 7,105
33,588 21,971 — —
222 51 — 2
1,363 770 — —
40,083 29,501 319 7,383
10,437 15,629 1,108 (2,899)
— — 44 —
21,547 — 1,152 —
(21,459) — (3,452) —
88 — (2,256) —
10,525 15,629 (1,148) (2,899)
— — 125 —
10,525 15,629 (1,023) (2,899)
(243) — — —
10,282 15,629 (1,023) (2,899)
132,347 75,488 16,656 899
142,629 91,117 15,633 (2,000)
$ 142,629 $ 91,117 $ 15,633 $ (2,000)
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Injury

1,234

1,234

1,120

33
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1,203

31

35

35

35

61

96

96

State of South Carolina

Patriots
Point
Develop-
ment Other
Authority Enterprise Totals

$ 4,494 $ 21,173 $ 72,910
— — 55,552
4,494 21,173 128,462
4,148 20,285 37,767
— — 7,105
— —_ 55,559
375 487 1,170
83 2 2,268
4,606 20,774 103,869
(112) 399 24,593
7 1,576 1,627
— — 22,699

— (1,069) (1,069)

— (669) (25,576)

7 (162) (2,319)

(105) 237 22,274

—_ — 125
(105) 237 22,399

— — (243)
{105) 237 22,156
{1,572) 23,752 247,631
(1,677) 23,989 269,787
11,809 3,724 15,533

—_ 1,337 1,337

$

s 10132

29,050

$ 286,657
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State of South Carolina

Combining Statement of Cash Flows

ENTERPRISE FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1997

(Expressed in Thousands) Jobs-
Education Economic
Housing Assistance Development
Authority Authority Authority
Cash flows from operating activities:
Operating income (loSS) ..........ccccoiiiiiiiiiiiinns e e $ 10,437 $ 15,629 $ 1,108
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss}
to net cash provided by (used in) operations:
Depreciation and amortization ... 222 51 —
Provisions for ioan losses and bad debts.............................. — — (493)
Issuance of Ioans and NOtES.............cooiiiiiiiii (58,088) (48,300) (1,825)
Collection of loans and notes ..o 47 254 60,353 617
Interest PAYMENES........coooiii e 33,588 21,971 —
Interest on investments (8,928) (6,805) —
Amounts received for payment of claims - —_ —
Payment of Claims.............ooooii — — —
Other nonoperating Xpenses...................ccccoeiiiiiiicicccciee, — — (192)
Oher. e 38 358 —
Change in assets--decreases (increases):
Accounts receivable, net..................... (49) 526 (13)
Student loans receivable, net....................l . — 3 —
Due from Federal government and other grantors... —_ 146 —_
Due from other funds..............ccoooiiiii, (5) — —
INVENEOTIES . ... — — —
Other current assets ... (607) — (1
Change in liabilities--increases (decreases):
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities....................co (266) 653 (132)
Insurance claims incurred but not reported.................................... — — —_
Due to other funds..............cooiii (11) 210 —
Deferred revenues .... 141 34 —
Deposits.................... — — 9)
Compensated absences payable 41 8 6)
Other liabilities, including retainages payable................................ — — —
Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities..........ccccciiriiiiiic 23,767 44,837 (946)
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Principal payments made to other funds........................o — — —
Proceeds from sale of notes payable — — —
Principal payments on notes payable................c.cccooi, — — —_
Proceeds from sale of revenue bonds................coooiiii . 29,643 — —
Principal payments on revenue bonds..................c.cococ (29,450) (29,395) —
Interest payments... ... (33,724) (22,072) —
Payment of bond issuance costs (68) — —_
Federal reVENUE. ............iiiiiiiii e 21,547 —_ 1,057
Payments from Federal grants....................cn. (21,547) — (3.322)
Operating transfers in ... — — 125
Indirect cost remitted to State General Fund (19) — —
Net cash provided by (used in)
noncapital financing activities........c.cccoccevniinniicicicncncnnn. {33,618) (51,467) (2,140)
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Patriots
Point

Patients’ Second Development Other
Compensation Injury Authority Enterprise

State of South Carolina

Elimina-
tions

Totals

$ (2,899) $ 31 $ (112) $ 399

2 33 375 487

(906) —_ — —

(6.723) (3,078) 207 492
768 — - _

— — @ (89)

1,200 — (63) 3

— 12 (1) 31

$ —_

24,593

1,470
(493)
(108,213)

108,224

55,560
(16,639)

56,273
(58,000)
(311)

388

336

3

146
M
(230)
(620)

(8,847)
768
102

1,315
(9)
85
©)

(8,558) (4,726) 339 884

55,597

— — (20) —

(20)
1,730
(440)
29,643
(58,845)
(56,752)
(68)
22,604
(24,869)
125
(19)

— —_ (20) 334

{86,911)

#

Continued on Next Page
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State of South Carolina

Combining Statement of Cash Flows

ENTERPRISE FUNDS (Continued)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1997
(Expressed in Thousands)

Jobs-
Education Economic
Housing Assistance Development
Authority Authority Authority
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Acquisition of property. piant, and equipment e $ (253) $ — $ —
Principal payments on notes payable ... — — —_
Interest payments ... — — —
Proceeds from the sale of capital assets.................................... — — —
Contributions of capital......................o — — —
Net cash used in capital and
related financing activities..............cccoocveivivnnnncnniciceeee, (253) — —
Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from sale of investments......................................... 2,583 25716 —
Purchase of investments ... (1.304) (15,676) —
Interest on investments 8,494 6.850 44
Issuance of loans — — —
Collection of loans — — 144
Net cash provided by
investing activities.........cccccoccriirei i 9,773 16,890 188
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents................... (331) 10,260 (2,898)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year........................... 130,227 88,106 11,320
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year..........cccocoevcevevverevrnenenn. $ 129,896 $ 98,366 $ 8,422




State of South Carolina

Patriots
Point
Patients' Second Development Other Elimina-
Compensation Injury Authority Enterprise tions Totals

$ 6) $ 71) $ (122) $ (1,617) $ — $ (2,069)
— — — (513) — (513)
— — — 3) — 3

— 2 66 6 — 74

— — — 1,337 — 1,337
(6) (69) (56) (790) - (1,174)

— — — — — 28,299
— — — — — (16,980)

1,001 3,352 7 1,571 — 21,319
— — — (1,730) — (1,730)

— — — 440 — 584

1,001 3,352 7 281 _ 31,492
(7,563) (1,443) 270 709 —_ (996)

21,208 46,669 1,103 16,080 —_ 314,713

$ 13,645 $ 45,226 $ 1,373 $ 16,789 $ — $ 313,717
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Photograph is not available
in web version of CAFR

With a raised basement housing offices and a ceremonial principal (second) floor, the first State House
resembled many of the planter-legislators’ homes.
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State of South Carolina

Internal Service Funds

Internal Service Funds provide goods/services
to other funds, other agencies, or other governments
on a cost-reimbursement basis. The State uses the
following Internal Service Funds:

Insurance Reserve Fund. This is a risk
management/reinsurance fund. It underwrites
insurance risks on public buildings and their
contents and tort liability, medical malpractice, and
automobile liability for public employees. The
Fund's customers ‘are limited by law™ to certain
governmental persons/entities within the State and
certain associated parties.

Health and Disability Insurance Fund. This is
a risk management fund which underwrites the
group health, dental, long-term disability, and
related benefits provided to State and public” school
employees and retirees.

State Accident Fund. This is a  risk
management fund _ which provides workers'
compeénsation _ benefits predominantly to State
employees. Premiums are collected” from State
agencies.

General Services Fund. This fund accounts

for various services provided to State and local

overnmental units for which user fees are charged.

hese services include telecommunication and

computer services, rental of office buildings

janitorial services, building maintenance, an
procurement services.

Central Supplies and Equipment Fund. This
fund sells office sugﬁ)hes and equipment, food, and
paper products to other governmental units. It also
stores food and paper products for State agencies.

Motor Pool Fund. This fund provides daily and
permanent lease assignments of vehicles to “State
agencies. It also maintains an inventory of
automotive parts to provide maintenance of these
vehicles.

Department of Transportation Internal
Service Fund. This fund accounts for various
service  activities of the  Department of
Transportation. The fund_provides data processing
and printing services, equipment rentals, and office
and engineering supplies to other divisions and
county offices of the Department.

Pension Administration Fund. This fund
administers the public employee retirement systems.
Revenues of the fund Pprimarily consist of
assessments charged to the Pension Trust Funds.

Prison Industries Fund. This fund accounts
for goods produced by inmate labor. These goods
are sold primarily to State agencies.

Other Internal Service Funds. These funds,
aggre%ated for reporting Furposes, account for other
miscellaneous_activities that meet the definition of
Internal Service Funds. Such activities include
provision of training programs for State employees
and work activity centers of the Vocational
Rehabilitation Department.

Photograph is not available
in web version of CAFR

The principal floor had wide hallways, three meeting rooms and a library. The
House and Senate chambers were at either end of the building.

[
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State of South Carolina

Combining Balance Sheet

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
June 30, 1997

(Expressed in Thousands) Central
Health and State Supplies
Insurance Disability Accident General and Motor

ASSETS Reserve Insurance Fund Services Equipment Pool
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents . 8 43,125 $ 181,142 $ 57,420 $ 33,641 $ 1,137 $ 2,822

Securities lending investments 28,964 3,282 1,024 19 — —

Receivables, net:

Accounts............ 21,206 3,952 35,603 358 36 91
Due from Federal government and other grantors........ — — — 44 — —_
Due from other funds 450 13,064 2,703 3,700 860 2,043
Interfund receivables. 5,772 — — 420 — —_
Inventories............ — — — 1,569 2,642 10
Other current assets 2,451 2 — — — —

Total current assets 101,968 201,442 96,750 39,751 4,675 4,966

Long-term assets:
Investments.......... 189,348 20,980 — — — —_
Advances to other funds 34,075 — — — — —
Total long-term t 223,423 20,980 — — —_— —
Property, plant, and equipment:
Land and improvements............cococconienn. — — — 5,048 — 329
Buildings and improvements............ccccoonereneieieeenns — — — 143,157 — 1,119
Machinery, equipment, and other...............c.ccccooeene. 1,084 1,264 5,135 67,993 — 21,655
Construction in progress . — — — 648 — —
Less: accumulated depreciation................ccccoocvinnnnns (461) (570) (563) (94,351) — (12,984)
Total property, plant, and equipment, net................... 623 694 4,572 122,495 — 10,119
Total assets. $ 326,014 $ 223,116 $ 101,322 $ 162,246 $ 4,675 $ 15,085
LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY
Liabilities:
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities..................... $ 100,195 $ 35,006 $ 12,832 $ 5,941 $ 911 $ 630

Insurance claims incurred but not reported................. 62,496 66,680 15,468 — — —

Due to other funds...........ccocoov e 22 170 110 858 24 106

Interfund payables... — — — 2,141 1,000 —

Deferred revenues 33,502 618 34,340 — — —

Obligations under securities lending............ccccecceeenee 28,964 3,282 1,024 19 — —

Limited obligation bonds payable............c..c.cccoo. — — — 2,000 — —

Capital lease and instaliment debt

obligations payable............ — — — 669 — —
Compensated absences payable.................c.c........... 241 282 266 2,167 — 111
Other current liabilities, including retainages payable. — — 229 a1 — —
Total current liabilities...........ccccccooiniiiiiiciiicnnn, 225,420 106,038 64,269 13,836 1,935 847
Long-term liabilities:

Accrued habilities.......ccccoevveeeieieeeeee e, — — 11,546 — — —

Insurance claims incurred but not reported... —_ — 22,832 — — —

Advances from other funds............ccccoo v, — — — 19,413 —_ —

Limited obligation bonds payable...........c..cccoccocooe. — — — 26,977 —_ —

Capital lease and installment debt

obligations payable...................ccociii, — — —_— 9,903 — —_

Total long-term liabilities............cccccoreccininnnnnn, — — 34,378 56,293 —_ —
Total liabilities 225,420 106,038 98,647 70,129 1,935 847

Fund Equity:

Contributed capital..............ccovevniconnecnnee — 7 — 62,563 — 327
Retained earmings...........ccoccoeviiieieeiciriinreeereenseennns 100,594 117,071 2,675 29,564 2,740 13,911
Total fund equity. 100,594 117,078 2,675 92,117 2,740 14,238
Total liabilities and fund equity.......cccoeerrnnnnns $ 326,014 $ 223,116 $ 101,322 $ 162,246 $ 4,675 $ 15,085
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State of South

Carolina

Department of
Transportation Pension Other
Internal Adminis- Prison Internal Elimina-

Service tration Industries Service tions Totals
$ 15,926 $ 1,356 $ 1,498 691 $ — $ 338,758
— — — — — 33,289
— — 1,171 — 62,417
— — — — — 44
— — 911 151 (1,920) 21,962
— — — 4561 (6,074) 4,679
— — 2,481 — — 6,702
— — — — — 2,453
15,926 1,356 6,061 5,403 (7,994) 470,304
— — — — — 210,328
— — — 17,966 (28,647) 23,394
— —_ —_ 17,966 (28,647) 233,722
— — — — — 5,377
— — — —_ — 144,276
9,652 4,866 7,690 152 — 119,491
—_ — — — — 648
(5,763) (2,092) (5,501) (83) — (122,368)
3,889 2,774 2,189 69 — 147,424
$ 19,815 $ 4,130 $ 8,250 23,438 $ (36,641) $ 851450
$ — $ 1,024 $ 913 78 $ — $ 157,530
— — — — — 144,644

— 111 219 300 (1,920) —
— - — 4,580 (6,074) 1,647
_ _ — — — 68,460
— — — — — 33,289
— — — - — 2,000
— — — - — 669
— 716 407 55 — 4,245
— — — — — 270
_— 1,851 1,539 5,013 (7,994) 412,754
— — — — — 11,546
— — — — — 22,832
— — — 17,409 (28,647) 8,175
— — — — — 26,977
— — — — — 9,903
— — — 17,409 (28,647) 79,433
— 1,851 1,539 22,422 (36,641) 492,187
9,652 8 3,857 133 — 76,537
10,163 2,271 2,854 883 — 282,726
19,815 2,279 6,711 1,016 —_— 359,263
$ 19,815 $ 4,130 $ 8,250 23,438 $ {36,641) $ 851,450
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State of South Carolina

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses,
and Changes in Fund Equity

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1997
(Expressed in Thousands)

Health Central
and State Supplies
Insurance Disability Accident General and
Reserve Insurance Fund Services Equipment
Operating revenues:
Charges for SEIVICES............ccccee i $ 62428 $ 597,882 $ 31,178 $ 69374 $ 10,508
Contributions............ccocoeiiniie — — — 8 —
Interest and other investment income 19,066 14,310 3,654 — —
Total operating revenues 81,494 612,192 34,832 69,382 10,508
Operating expenses:
General operations and administration 47,972 111,167 5,150 53,539 10,424
Benefits and claims.............c.ccoceveeeeee 36,786 513,207 31,108 —_ —
Depreciation ...........cccccoeeee. 161 127 230 8,112 —
Other operating eXpenses.............ccooooiiiiiiiiiiccnieireeene — — 123 217 —
Total operating expenses 84,919 624,501 36,611 61,868 10,424

Operating income (loss) (3.425) (12,309) (1,779) 7,514 84

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Interest iNCOME........cccoiriiiiii e — — — 101 —
Federal revenue — — — 620 —
Interest expense —_ — — (4,397) —
Other nonoperating revenues (expenses) (64) (2) — (221) 1
Total nonoperating revenues (€Xpenses)........ccuuwcssemsaninns (64) (2) — (3,897) 1

Income (loss) before operating transfers..............ccosnnuen (3,489) (12,311) (1,779) 3,617 85
Operating transfers in..................cccocii — 7 — 6,284 —
Operating transfers out..................cccccoiii (425) (264) — (1,666) —

Net income (loss) (3,914) (12,568) (1,779) 8,235 85
Retained earnings, July 1, 1996 (restated)............coceecrieriainns 104,508 129,639 4,454 21,329 2,655
Retained earnings, June 30, 1997 100,594 117,071 2,675 29,564 2,740
Contributed capital, July 1, 1996 — 7 —_ 60,708 —
Additions to contributed capital — — — 2,014 —_
Deductions from contributed capital — — — (169) —
Fund equity, June 30, 1997 $ 100,594 $ 117,078 $ 2,675 $ 92117 $ 2,740
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Department of

State of South Carolin

Transportation Pension Other
Motor Internal Adminis- Prison Internal Elimina-

Pool Service tration Industries Service tions Totals
$ 11154 $ 4,716 11,542 $ 13902 $ 1,021 — $ 813,705
— — — — — — 8
— — — — —_ — 37,030
11,154 4,716 11,542 13,902 1,021 — 850,743
5,856 965 10,738 13,417 1,844 — 261,072
— — — — — — 581,101
3,833 150 845 571 13 — 14,042

2 3 202 11 7 — 565
9,691 1,118 11,785 13,999 1,864 — 856,780
1,463 3,598 (243) (97) (843) — (6,037)
— — — —_ 1,690 — 1,791
— — — — — — 620
— — — — (1,374) — (5,771)
(184) — 191 (11 8 — (282)
(184) — 191 (11) 324 — (3,642)
1,279 3,598 (52) (108) (519) _ (9,679)
376 — — — 39 (2,832) 3,874
(345) — — (1,311) (182) 2,832 (1,361)
1,310 3,598 (52) (1,419) (662) — (7,166)
12,601 6,565 2,323 4,273 1,545 — 289,892
13,911 10,163 2,271 2,854 883 — 282,726
334 13,205 8 3,854 138 -— 78,254
26 3,260 —_ 3 —_ — 5,303
(33) (6,813) — — (5) — (7,020)

$ 14,238 $ 19,815 2,279 $ 6,711 $ 1,016 — $ 359,263

L
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State of South Carolina

Combining Statement of Cash Flows

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1997
(Expressed in Thousands)

Health
and State
Insurance Disability Accident General
Reserve Insurance Fund Services

Cash flows from operating activities:
Operating income (10SS).........cocccciiiiiiiiiiiiiiic e $ (3,425) $ (12,309) S (1,779) $ 7.514
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash provided by (used in) operations:
Depreciation ..o 161 127 230 8,112
Amortization of deferred gain on sale of capital leaseback........ — — — (296)
Loss (gain) on disposition of property and equipment............... — — — —

Interest on investments and interfund loans.... (19,843) (14,310) (3,654) —

Other nonoperating revenues................cc........ — — — 877
Other nonoperating eXpenses...........ccooveveveriieeeiieieviiee e — —_ — (116)
Oher ...t — 1) (1) (20)

Change in assets--decreases (increases):
Accounts receivable, net..................... 533 (66) (28,355) (3)

Due from Federal government and other grantors ... — — - (30)
Due fromotherfunds .......................l 810 1,004 7,492 2,379
INVENLOTIES. .....evieie e e —_ —_ — 181
Other current @ssets............cccocoiiiiiiiiiii e (827) 148 — 33
Change in liabilities--increases (decreases):
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities........................... (9,466) 6,774) (12,957) 155
Insurance claims incurred but not reported..................... (1,996) 2,309 9,210 —
Due to other funds (113) 115 14 406
Deferred revenues ... 907 618 26,440 —
Compensated absences payable....................ooo 2 3) 38 399
Other liabilities, including retainages payable........................... — — 143 (3)
Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities.........c.ucevcinincnse (33,257) (29,142) (3,179) 19,588
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Principal payments received from other funds........................... 5,961 — — 28
Proceeds from loans made by other funds............................... — — — —
Principal payments made to other funds.....................ccc — — — (2,241)
Receipt of interest from other funds.............ccocoociii 2,684 — — —
Interest payments made to other funds.. — — — (1,645)
Loans made to other funds.............ccocovviiriiiiiii, (6,098) — — (400)
Federal reVenUE..............ccoooiiiiiiiiiiiie e — — — 620
Operating transfers iN...........cccooovioiiie e - 7 — 6,284
Operating transfers out..............ccccooviiii (425) (264) — (1,666)
Net cash provided by (used in)
noncapital financing activities........cccccconimniicnniienninnns 2,122 (257) —_ 980
N IR
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State of South Carolina

e ———

Central Department of
Supplies Transportation Pension Other
and Motor internal Adminis- Prison Internal Elimina-
Equipment Pool Service tration Industries Service tions Totals

$ 84 $ 1.463 $ 3,598 (243) $ (97) (843) $ — (6,037)
— 3,833 150 845 571 13 — 14,042
— — — — — — — (296)

— — — 59 (25) — — 34
— — — — — — — (37.807)

1 5 — 191 — 10 — 1,084
— — — — 8) — — (124)
— Q)] (2,398) — (1) — — (2,422)
(36) (23) — 10 (369) — — (28,309)
— — — — — — — (30)
(130) (259) — — (192) (129) 571 11,546
(450) 7 — — (539) — — (801}
— — —-— — — 8 — (638)
87 361 — (232) 345 (32) — (28,513)

— — — — — — — 9,523

14 (59) — (35) (45) 274 (571) —

— — — — — — —_ 27,965

— 2 — 76 44 ) — 551

— — — — — — — 140
(430) 5,325 1,350 671 (316) (702) — (40,092)

— — — — — 3,672 — 9,561

— — — — — 4,368 — 4,368
(75) — — — — (3,610) — (5.926)

— — — — — 1,690 — 4,374
— — — — — (1,374) — (3,019)
— — — — — (4,368) — (10,866)

— — — — — — — 620

— 376 — — — 39 (2,832) 3,874
— (345) — — (1,311) (182) 2,832 (1,361)
(75) 31 —_ —_ (1,311) 135 — 1,625

Continued on Next Page
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State of South Carolina

Combining Statement of Cash Flows

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS (Continued)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1997
(Expressed in Thousands)

Health
and State
Insurance Disability Accident General
Reserve Insurance Fund Services
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Acquisition of property, plant, and equipment...............c.cccecent $ (145) $ (399) $ (3,839) $ (9,449)
Proceeds from sale of limited obligation bonds....................... — — — 22,512
Principal payments on limited obligation bonds......................... —_ — — (215)
Interest payments...............cccoeiiii — — — (2,744)
Principal payments on capital leases and
installment debt obligations payable....................cocciinns — — — (21,919)
Net cash used in capital and
related financing activities...........cvuerninrerenenernccnninnnsnnnnns (145) (399) (3,839) (11,815)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from sale of investments.....................ccocveeereiennn. 52,150 1,719 — —
Purchase of investments.....................coo, (82,487) (6,792) — —_
Interest Oon INVESIMENES.........ccoiiiie e 17,159 14,719 3,736 101
Net cash provided by (used in)
investing activities..........c.ccuereieninens (13,178) 9,646 3,736 101
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents.............. (44,458) (20,152) (3,282) 8,854
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year (restated)....... 87,583 201,294 60,702 24,787
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year..........c.ccocrvrrisrisirnne $ 43,125 $ 181,142 $ 57,420 $ 33,641
Noncash capital and financing activities:
Acquisition of property and equipment through:
Transfers from other funds...........cccocooniniinic e $ — $ — $ — $ —
Donations — — — —
Total noncash capital and financing activities................. $ — $ — $ — $ —
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State of South Carolina

Central Department of
Supplies Transportation Pension Other
and Motor Internal Adminis- Prison Internal Elimina-
Equipment Pool Service tration Industries Service tions Totals

$ — $ (4,482 $ — $ (680) $ (715) 3 ) — $ (19.715)
— — — - — — — 22,512
—_ - — - — — — (215)
—_ — — — — — — (2,744)
— — — — — — — (21,919)
- (4,482) — (680) (715) (6) — {22,081)

—_ — —_ — —_ - -— 53,869
— — - — — — — (89,279)

— — — — — -— — 35,715

—_ —_ —_ - —_ —_ —_ 305
(505) 874 1,350 (9) (2,342) (573) —_— (60,243)

1,642 1,948 14,576 1,365 3,840 1,264 —_ 399,001

$ 1,137 $ 2,822 $ 15,926 $ 1,356 $ 1,498 $ 691 — $ 338,758
$ — $ — $ 3,260 $ — $ — $ — — $ 3,260
— 20 — — — — — 20

$ — $ 20 $ 3,260 $ — $ — $ — — $ 3,280

- __ I
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Photograph is not available
in web version of CAFR

John R. Niernsee, the original architect of the present State House, died in 1885. He
was followed briefly by his partner, J. Crawford Neilson, who was succeeded in 1889
by Niernsee’s son. Frank Niernsee designed much of the interior metal work and
tried to make the building fireproof as his father had planned.
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State of South Carolina

Fiduciary Funds

Fiduciary Funds account for resources the State
holds as trustee or agent for individuals, private
organizations, or other governmental units.

EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS

Expendable Trust Funds_account for resources
the State holds as trustee. Both the principal and
earnings of Ex[)endable Trust Funds may be used
for purposes allowed under the trust agreements.
lIhed State uses the following Expendable Trust

unds:

_ Radioactive Waste Contingency Fund. A
private company operates a low-level radioactive
waste disposal facility within the State. The State
and the company have entered into a trust agreement
with the State Treasurer as trustee. The company
has deposited monies into the trust fund to provide
for site cleanup in the event that there is seepage
into the groundwater or the site is abandoned.

Unemployment  Compensation  Benefits
Fund. This fund accounts for the State's
unemployment compensation benefits. Revenues
consist of taxes assessed on employers to pay
benefits to qualified unemployed persons.

Other Expendable Trust Funds. These funds,
aﬁqgrega‘ged for presentation purposes, account for
other miscellaneous expendable trust funds. These
are generally resources given to_the State through
trust agreements and provide for such items as
scholarship funds, maintenance and operation of
specific properties, and construction of monuments.

NONEXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS

These funds account for resources the State
holds as trustee. The principal of these funds must
be preserved and only the earnings may be used for
the purposes allowed under thé trust agreement.
Most of the resources in these funds were
bequeathed to the State via wills of deceased
persons.

PENSION TRUST FUNDS

Pension Trust Funds account for the following
five public employee retirement systems that the
State administers:

South Carolina Retirement System. This is a
multiple-employer pension _ system that benefits
employees of the State, public schools, and political
subdivisions of the State.

Police Officers’ Retirement System. This is a
multiple-employer pension system that benefits
gollce officers "and fire fightérs employed by the

tate or its political subdivisions.

. General Assembly Retirement System. This
is a single-employer pension system that benefits
members of the South Carolina General Assembly.

_Judges’ and Solicitors’ Retirement System.
This is a single-employer pension system that
benefits the judges of the State's Supreme Court
Court of Appeals, circuit courts, family courts, and
the State's circuit solicitors.

National Guard Pension System. The State
administers this sm%le-employer pension system
that lg)rowdes_ a supplemental retirement benéfit to
South Carolina members of the National Guard.
The State is a nonemployer contributor to the
system.

AGENCY FUNDS

Agency Funds are custodial in nature. They
enerally represent amounts held by the State on
ehalf of third parties. The State uses the following

Agency Funds:

Deferred Compensation Plans. This fund
accounts for the Section 457, Section 401(k), and
Section 403(b) deferred compensation plans offered
to employees of the State, its component units, and
various local governmental units.

Insurance Company Deposits Fund. This
fund accounts for deposits which are required to be
Lnadde by insurance companies in lieu of surety
onds.

Local Government Investment Pool. Excess
public monies are deposited into this fund by
various local governmental units and other political
subdivisions of the State. The State Treasurer
invests these monies in order to allow these
participating governmental units to realize a higher
income on ftheir investments by pooling their
Investments.

Federal Interfund Activi&y Fund. This fund
accounts for Federal grants and entitlements that are
first received by one State agency and eventually
will be distributed to another State agency.

Payroll Clearing Fund. This fund accounts for
employee deductions and contributions for the short
period of time between the issuance of payroll
checks and payment to the proper recipient.

Other Agency Funds. Balances in these funds,
aggregated for presentation purposes, represent
amounts held for prisoners and patients of State
institutions, cash bonds, miscellaneous clearing
accounts, and other deposits.



State of South Carolina

Combining Balance Sheet

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
June 30, 1997
(Expressed in Thousands)
EXPENDABLE TRUST
Radioactive Unemployment Other
Waste Compensation  Expendable NONEXPENDABLE
Contingency Benefits Trust TRUST
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents..............cccccco i, $ 83,064 $ 12,025 $ 19,337 $ 1,491
Cash on deposit with fiscal agents........................... — 664,540 - —
Investments............ooori i — — — —
Securities lending investments.................ccccoiis 1,536 197 42 —_
Receivables, net:
ACCOUNTS......c..iiiiieeiee it e er st st 995 128 342 28
TAXES...c.vieieeeeeee e eiee e e e e et s rnere e e — 44976 — —
Loans and NOtES......c.ccveeirccniriirirenene e — —_ 66 —
Due from Federal government................c.cccooevneeen. — 1,069 — —
Due from otherfunds..............ccc i — — 5 —
Other @sSets.........ccccvviiiiiriciie e — — — —
Property, plant, and equipment:
Land and improvements...........c.ccccoviiiiiiiiicnninns — — — —
Buildings and improvements......................cccoo... — — — —
Machinery, equipment, and other........................... — — — —_
Less: accumulated depreciation................cc.c.e.. — — — —
Total aSSetS....ccovvvvrirerirrccerieserererereerssesssseesns $ 85,595 $ 722,935 $ 19,792 $ 1,519
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities............... $ 1,755 $ 1,778 $ 52 $ —
Tax refunds payable...........cc.coceiviiniieicniiiiiins — 1,577 — —
Intergovernmental payables...................cccoeeie — — —_ —
Due to other funds...........cccooeiiiiiriiii e — 202 39 —
Interfund payables..........ccconiioiiiiiiii — — — —
Deferred revenues...........ccceevvereeeeciieenieeeneneneeens —_ 476 — —
DEPOSIES......viveeeeier e s — — — —
Amounts held in custody for others........................ — — —_ —
Deferred compensation............cccceceveveeneiincnennnn. — — — —
Obligations under securities lending..................... 1,536 197 42 —
Other liabilities.............ccoooiii e — — — —
Total liabilities.....c.cccveriercreirrnisrrmrsnrcrenssenene 3,291 4,230 133 —
Fund Balances:
Reserved for:
Pension and other benefits................ccccceiinl — 718,705 — —
Endowment and similar funds...........cccccooeieiinnnn. — — — 1,361
Long-term loans and notes receivable................. — — 66 —
Unreserved, undesignated................c.....coocoee 82,304 — 19,593 158
Total fund balances.........ccccvmvmimimimimiiiiiiininnnee 82,304 718,705 19,659 1,519
Total liabilities and fund balances.................... $ 85,595 $ 722,935 $ 19,792 $ 1,519
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State of South Carolina

PENSION TRUST
Judges’

South Police General and National
Carolina Officers' Assembly Solicitors’ Guard
Retirement Retirement Retirement Retirement Pension
System System System System System
$ 531,367 $ 61,093 $ 2,213 $ 3,082 $ 5,006
13,714,009 1,507,792 32,712 68,242 —

1,257,149 133,958 2,445 2,444 —
259,292 34,965 515 1,169 88
12,705 3,118 2 104 —
524 54 2 2 —
4,279 437 13 20 —
— — — — 4
(510) (52) 2 0] @
$ 15,778,815 $ 1,741,365 $ 37,900 $ 75,061 $ 5,096
$ 9,338 $ 231 $ 29 $ 8 $ —
13,613 462 — — —
1,257,149 133,958 2,445 2,444 —_
1,280,100 134,651 2,474 2,452 —
14,498,715 1,608,714 35,426 72,609 5,096
14,498,715 1,606,714 35,426 72,609 5,096
$ 15,778,815 $ 1,741,365 $ 37,900 $ 75,061 $ 5,096
Continued on Next Page
——
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State of South Carolina

Combining Balance Sheet

FIDUCIARY FUNDS (Continued)

June 30, 1997
(Expressed in Thousands)

Deferred
Compensation
Plans
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents.............ccccce e, $ —
Cash on deposit with fiscal agents..................ccciiinnicn —
V=1 1 41=] 11 TOUTT U OO 986,719
Securities lending investments....................cocii i, —
Receivables, net:
AACCOUNES ...veeee ettt et ettt e e e eeeettbvreeeseesbaeaeeaesessassaaeeaeesesannnes 3,207
TAXES. .. uerereieeeietetieeeeeeees et beeeeeaese s an bt ee e e s e nere e e s s nnan e e e s nesnnras —
LOANS @8N0 NOES......oevevereriiiiirereieiererererereraieresesesesenesenereeesreseenasnenen 25,069
Due from Federal government............coccveiiiiiiiciniiicn e, —
Due from other funds.............oooiiiiiiii s —
(0] (3 1= = T3] £ T PPN 5,306
Property, plant, and equipment:
Land and improvements..........cccccereverieiiiiiiicier it —
Buildings and improvements..............c.ccocvveiiniiece e —
Machinery, equipment, and other.............cccocevniniininc —
Less: accumulated depreciation.............cccoooiiiieiiiininien, —
Total aSSetS......cccvreiiirrrrrirr e $ 1,020,301
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities......................... $ —_
Tax refunds payable............cccocciiic —
Intergovernmental payables...........c.ccocooviniiiiii —
Due to other fUNAS.........cc.ooiiii e —
Interfund payables.............ccooociiiiiic —
Deferred reVENUES..............ccoeie it —
DEPOSIES. . .cvieeeire e ettt e —
Amounts held in custody for others...........cccoooii —
Deferred compensation...........ccccooeie i 1,020,301
Obligations under securities lending.................ccccoon, —
Other liabilities............ccooe i —_
Total liabilities.........ccvercercrrrrrrireene et ssre s e eeaens 1,020,301
Fund Balances:
Reserved for:
Pension and other benefits............cccccoviericiiiii e, —
Endowment and similar funds..........cocoooieiiiiiiii e —
Long-term loans and notes receivable.......................ccooen —
Unreserved, undesignated.............ccccoooiiiiiiii —
Total fund balances.......cccccvcrivnieririniii e —
Total liabilities and fund balances.............cccuvmeeenerereeirinnieninnnn $ 1,020,301

$

$

$

Insurance
Company
Deposits

22,924

314,168

337,092

337,002

337,092

337,092



State of South Carolina

AGENCY
Local
Government Federal
Investment Interfund Payroll Other
Pool Activity Clearing Agency Eliminations Totals
$ 10,005 $ — $ 9,206 $ 229,811 $ — $ 990,714
— — — — — 664,540
653,817 — — 16,507 — 17,293,966
—_ — — 3,150 — 1,400,921
386 — — 2,424 — 303,539
— — — — — 44976
— — — 78 — 25,213
— 645 — — — 1,714
— — 41,495 4,257 (53,895) 7,791
— — — 4 — 5,310
— — — — — 582
— — — — — 4,749
— — — — — 4
—_ — — — — (568)
$ 664,208 $ 645 $ 50,791 $ 256,231 $ (53,895) $ 20,743,451
$ 10,000 5 — $ 192 $ 4,447 $ — $ 27,830
— — — — — 1,577
— 10 — 525 — 535
— 262 9,175 85,081 (53,895) 54,939
— 343 5 — — 348
— — — — — 476
— — — 526 — 526
654,203 30 41,419 162,502 — 1,195,246
—_ — — — — 1,020,301
— — — 3,150 — 1,400,921
5 -— — — — 5
664,208 645 50,791 256,231 (53,895) 3,702,704
— — — — — 16,937,265
— — — — — 1,361
— — — — — 66
— — — — — 102,055
- = - - = — = — 17,040,747
$ 664,208 $ 645 $ 50,791 $ 256,231 $ (53,895) $ 20,743,451
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State of South Carolina

B

Combining Statement of Plan Net Assets

PENSION TRUST FUNDS

June 30, 1997
(Expressed in Thousands)

Judges’
South Police General and National
Carolina Officers’ Assembly Solicitors' Guard
Retirement Retirement Retirement Retirement Pension
System System System System System Totals
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents............................. $ 531,367 § 61,093 § 2213 § 3082 $ 5006 $ 602,761
Receivables:
Contributions.........coooveivi 78,471 8,832 7 170 — 87,480
Employer long-term...........cccoooiiniiiininne 1,351 4,224 —_ — — 5,575
Accrued interest............ccocoiinneiiii, 179,470 21,909 508 999 88 202,974
Due from other funds...............ccccniniinine 12,705 3,118 2 104 — 15,929
Total receivables.........cccoccevirrciniiiiiennnn 271,997 38,083 517 1,273 88 311,958
Investments, at fair value:
United States government securities............ 3,124,253 269,013 8,478 9,915 — 3,411,659
United States government agencies and
government-insured securities..................... 4,287,428 416,047 8,776 22,382 — 4,734,633
Corporate bonds........c...cococeeviiiiiiniisieeee, 4,135,763 576,414 10,932 24,974 — 4,748,083
Financial and other..........ccccocoeenriiiins 2,166,565 246,318 4,526 10,971 — 2,428,380
Securities lending.........ccocccvieciiiinnn 1,257,149 133,958 2,445 2,444 — 1,395,996
Total investments............cccooereiiiiiiiinnne 14,971,158 1,641,750 35,157 70,686 — 16,718,751
Property and equipment, net of
accumulated depreciation...............cccccoee 4,293 439 13 20 2 4,767
Total aSSetS......curmrierisisisunnaninneeesenes 15,778,815 1,741,365 37,900 75,061 5,096 17,638,237
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable—unsettled investment
purchases.............. [ UTU PR RROPPTI 5,000 —_ — - — 5,000
Due to other funds 13,613 462 —_ — — 14,075
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities........ 4,338 231 29 8 — 4,606
Obligations under securities lending............... 1,257,149 133,958 2,445 2,444 — 1,395,996
Total liabilities...........ccevcmvrervncnnrcienernnnns 1,280,100 134,651 2,474 2,452 — 1,419,677
Net assets held in trust
for pension benefits.........ccoeceuncee. $ 14,498,715 $ 1,606,714 $ 35426 $ 72609 $ 509 $ 16,218,560

e
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State of South Carolina

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,

and Changes in Fund Balances

EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1997
(Expressed in Thousands)

Radioactive Unemployment Other
Waste Compensation Expendable
Contingency Benefits Trust Eliminations Totals
Revenues:
Taxes, other......................................... $ — $ 214,848 $ — $ — 214,848
Licenses, fees, and permits..................... 899 — 1,333 — 2,232
Interest and other investment income...... 4,885 42,048 1,286 — 48,219
Federal................................ — 12,179 — — 12,179
Contributions...........cooooiii — — 142 — 142
Other. ... — 1,335 33 — 1,368
Total revenues........ueeeeeeeeniienirrencieanes 5,784 270,410 2,794 — 278,988
Expenditures:
Current:
General government............................ — 196,519 3,099 — 199,618
Education.............. — - 199 — 199
Health and environment......................... — — 29 — 29
Social services...........cooiiiiiii — — 33 — 33
Administration of justice....................... — — 1 — 1
intergovernmental..................coe — — 4 — 4
Total expenditures...........ccceeeeiinnnnee — 196,519 3,365 — 199,884
Revenues over (under) expenditures..... 5,784 73,891 (571) — 79,104
Other financing sources (uses):
Operating transfers in............................ — — 1,013 (630) 383
Operating transfersout.......................... — (1,245) (630) 630 (1,245)
Total other financing sources (uses) — (1,245) 383 — (862)
Revenues and other sources over (under)
expenditures and other uses................ 5,784 72,646 (188) — 78,242
Fund balances, July 1, 1996 (restated)... 76,520 646,059 19,847 — 742,426
Fund balances, June 30, 1997................. $ 82,304 $ 718,705 $ 19,659 $ — 820,668
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State of South Carolina

Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities

AGENCY FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1997
(Expressed in Thousands)

Balance
July 1, 1996 Balance
{Restated) Additions Deductions June 30, 1997
DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLANS
Assets:
INVESTMEBNLS.....ov it $ 874011  § 144279 $ 31571 % 986,719
Accounts receivable. ... 2,583 80,760 80,136 3,207
Loans and notes receivable 20,830 4,239 — 25,069
Other @sSets........cccouvveriieieiiiire e 4,974 4,227 3,895 5,306
Total @SSetS....coieriirircrerrire e reere s enr e $ 902,398 $ 233,505 $ 115,602 $ 1,020,301
Liabilities:
Deferred compensation..............coeoveecvricriiiniiiinns $ 902,398 $ 153,383 § 35480 $ 1,020,301
Total [iabilitieS......ccoevrerrrrcmrrrceresiere e sies e $ 902,398 $ 153,383 $ 35480 $ 1,020,301
INSURANCE COMPANY DEPOSITS
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents.... $ — $ 45955 § 23,031 § 22,924
INVESIMENES ...ttt 314,061 95,056 94,949 314,168
Total ASSELS. ..o e $ 314,061 $ 141,011 $ 117,980 § 337,092
Liabilities:
Amounts held in custody for others..................ccccie $ 314,061 $ 95,056 $ 72,025 § 337,092
Total liabilitieS....cccueererrircrrecrnererer e ere st $ 314,061 $ 95056 $ 72,025 $ 337,092
LOCAL GOVERNMENT INVESTMENT POOL
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents............ccccccocoeiiniinnin. $ 20,000 $ 55,272,695 $ 55,282,690 $ 10,005
INVESIMENES. ... 595,480 50,609,772 50,551,435 653,817
Securities lending investments................... 30,790 — 30,790 —
Accounts receivable...............ccococi i 927 14,894 15,435 386
Total ASSELS.....cerrrrrrrerrrrrrarcesersaseeasersssesssssrensasnessnsee $ 647,197 $ 105,897,361 $ 105,880,350 $ 664,208
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities....................... $ 20,000 $ 10,000 $ 20,000 $ 10,000
Amounts held in custody for others............ 596,406 1,981,347 1,923,550 654,203
Obligations under securities lending.... 30,790 — 30,790 —
Other liabilities............oooviiiiiie e 1 18 14 5
Total liabilitieS.....ccveecrererircrrirnenisisnencrne s $ 647,197 $ 1,991,365 $ 1,974,354 $ 664,208

Continued on Next Page

140



State of South Carolina

Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities

AGENCY FUNDS (Continued)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1997
(Expressed in Thousands)

Balance
July 1, 1996 Balance
(Restated) Additions Deductions June 30, 1997
FEDERAL INTERFUND ACTIVITY
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents..................... - $ — $ 13,775 § 13,775  $ —
Due from Federal government................cccccoeiiniiinnns — 645 — 645
Due from other funds..............ccoooiin i 860 — 860 —
TOtal ASSOLS...oeiiieiiiciei et e e e e e e ata s enea e $ 860 $ 14,420 $ 14,635 $ 645
Liabilities:
Intergovernmental payables...................... $ 1 8 63 § 54 § 10
Due to other funds........cccooiiiiiii 53 290 81 262
interfund payables.............ccccoo 755 343 755 343
Amounts held in custody forothers.............................. 51 1,032,903 1,032,924 30
Total liabilities.......cccerirrercrieieier e $ 860 $ 1,033,599 $ 1,033,814 $ 645
PAYROLL CLEARING
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents................ccoccoveceieinnis $ 8,763 § 913,717 § 913,184 § 9,296
Due from other funds.............ccccoiiiiii s 39,666 41,495 39,666 41,495
Total @SSeLS....ccoirvveiirieeieee e re s ara e $ 48,429 $ 955,212 § 952,850 $ 50,791
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities...................... $ 219 § 192 § 219 § 192
Due to other funds..........coooooi it 8,766 9,229 8,820 9,175
Interfund payables.............c......c 30 5 30 5
Amounts held in custody for others 39,414 783,889 781,884 41,419
Total liabilitieS.......cocoeercrieirceieirin e $ 48,429 $ 793,315 $ 790,953 $ 50,791

Continued on Next Page

e S,
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State of South Carolina

Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities

AGENCY FUNDS (Continued)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1997

(Expressed in Thousands)

OTHER AGENCY
Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents.................cccoooenin,
INVESIMENES.......cviiiiei e
Securities lending investments...........cc..cocc

Accounts receivable

Loans and notes receivable...................................
Due from otherfunds...................cc

interfund receivables............
Advances to other funds

Otherassets..............oii e
Total aSSetS...ccveciiriciircirresner et

Liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities.......................

Intergovernmental payables
Due to other funds..................
Advances from other funds.....

DEPOSIES....o.evenciierceiiiiiii e
Amounts held in custody for others..........cc.cocooine

Obligations under securities lending
Other liabilities

Total liabilities.....c.c.cevirerererersrenisnnnnnamemes.

TOTALS--ALL AGENCY FUNDS
Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents..................ccooiiiiiiinn.

Investments

Securities lending investments.............c.cocoeinn
Accounts receivable.................cccccvii

Loans and notes receivable........
Due from Federal government....
Due from other funds..................

Interfund receivables...............cc.coooviiiiiiniii,
Advances to other funds...............ccoccceiiiiicniiccn s
Other @SSetS........cccoieiiiiieceiiee et

Total assets

Liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities.......................

Intergovernmental payables
Due to other funds...............
Interfund payables............cccocoviiiiinnii e,
Advances from other funds
Deposits.........ccvrvrrieeier s

Amounts held in custody for others.............c.ccccoeeeenn.
Deferred compensation..............cococeeiiiiiniiccincceen,

Obligations under securities lending..
Other liabilities.............c..cccvreeiennnnn

Total liabilities.
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Balance
July 1, 1996 Balance
(Restated) Additions Deductions June 30, 1997

253,409 $ 1,705,705 $ 1,729,303 $ 229,811
16,507 — — 16,507
26,159 3,150 26,159 3,150
930 2,767 1,273 2,424
— 78 — 78
5,490 4,811 6,044 4,257

20 — 20 —

20 20 40 —
— 4 — 4
302,535 $ 1,716,535 $ 1,762,839 $ 256,231
16,397 $ 4856 $ 16,806 § 4,447
— 525 — 525
74,399 89,956 79,274 85,081

1,100 — 1,100 —
700 526 700 526
183,615 846,999 868,112 162,502
26,159 3,150 26,159 3,150

165 — 165 —_
302,535 $ 946,012 $ 992,316 $ 256,231
282,172 $ 57,951,847 $ 57,961,983 $ 272,036
1,800,059 50,849,107 50,677,955 1,971,211
56,949 3,150 56,949 3,150
4,440 98,421 96,844 6,017
20,830 4,317 — 25,147
- 645 — 645
46,016 46,306 46,570 45,752

20 — 20 —_

20 20 40 —
4,974 4,231 3,895 5,310
2,215,480 $ 108,958,044 $ 108,844,256 $ 2,329,268
36,616 $ 15,048 § 37025 $ 14,639
1 588 54 535
83,218 99,475 88,175 94,518
785 348 785 348

1,100 _— 1,100 —
700 526 700 526
1,133,547 4,740,194 4,678,495 1,195,246
902,398 153,383 35,480 1,020,301
56,949 3,150 56,949 3,150
166 18 179 5
2,215,480 $ 5,012,730 $ 4,898,942 $ 2,329,268




State of South Carolina

|

General Fixed Assets Account Group

The General Fixed Assets Account Group is assets except those accounted for in the Proprietary
maintained to_account for fixed assets acquired or Funds, Discretely Presented Component Units,
constructed for use by the State for general Fiduciary Funds, and Higher Education Funds.

governmental purposes.” These include all' fixed

Photograph is not available
in web version of CAFR

The dome as initially proposed by Milburn is shown here. It had to be simplified and made smaller to fit
the budget.
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State of South Carolina

L _ ]
Schedule of General Fixed Assets by Function
June 30, 1997
(Expressed in Thousands)
Buildings, Machinery,
Land and Improvements, Equipment,
Function Improvements and Utility Plant and Other Totals
General government................oooeeveeininnne. $ 12,155 $ 126,588 $ 85,550 $ 224,293
Education...............ccvieii e, 5,575 87,200 346,963 439,738
Health and environment.......................... 12,929 199,687 141,488 354,104
Social SErVIiCES.........ovvvvviiiiiiiiiiec 813 14,604 42,381 57,798
Administration of justice........................... 5,970 450,879 120,732 577,581
Resources and economic development.... 144,444 68,824 89,920 303,188
Transportation...........cccovveeeeiiiii, 3,336 61,851 203,265 268,452
Total general fixed assets allocated
to functions.............cccinreciiinnnnnnees $ 185,222 $ 1,009,633 $ 1,030,299 2,225,154
Construction in progress.............cccceeeeeene. 78,695
Total general fixed assets................... $ 2,303,849

Photograph is not available
in web version of CAFR

The piles of rubble in the foreground are the remains of the first State House.
The tower of Trinity Church is in the background.
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State of South Carolina

Schedule of Changes in General Fixed Assets by Function

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1997
(Expressed in Thousands)

Balance Balance
Function July 1, 1996 Additions Retirements June 30, 1997

General government.................c.ceeen. $ 218,120 $ 12,791 $ 6618 3 224,293
Education..........ooiiiiii 446 487 15,977 22,726 439,738
Health and environment....................... 330,914 30,260 7.070 354,104
Social ServiCes.......coovviiiiiies 44,246 13,735 183 57,798
Administration of justice....................... 527,900 57,940 8,259 577,581
Resources and economic development 287,919 19,760 4,491 303,188
Transportation..............ccoooiinns 250,789 24,354 6,691 268,452
Construction in progress...................... 86,043 51,107 58,455 78,695

Total general fixed assets............... $ 2,192,418 § 225924 $ 114,493 § 2,303,849

Photograph is not available
in web version of CAFR

The first State House was built facing East on Richardson (later called Main)
Street.
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State of South Carolina

|5

Higher Education Funds

Financial _activities of the State's higher
education institutions are reported in_the Higher
Education Funds. The four-year institutions are:

The Citadel . |

Clemson UmyersitJy o

Coastal Carolina University i

The College of Charleston (mcludmﬁ an
Undergraduate School, known as the
Colle%e of Charleston, and a Graduate
School, known as the Umver51ty of
Charleston) L

Francis Marion University

Lander University )

The Medical University of South Carolina

South Carolina State University

The University of South Carolina

Winthrop University

Area technical colleges include:

Aiken Technical College
Central Carolina Technical College
Chesterfield-Marlboro Technical College
Denmark Technical College
Florence-Darlington Technical College
Greenville Technical College
Horry-Georgetown Technical College
Midlands Technical College.
Orangeburg-Calhoun Technical College
Piedmont Technica] College
Spartanburg Technical College

echnical College of the Lowcountry
Tri-County Technical College
Trident Technical qulelge
Williamsburg Technical College
York Technical College

Higher Education Funds include the following
individual funds:

CURRENT FUNDS

Current Funds account for resources that higher
education institutions may use for any purpose in
carrying out their primary objectives.

Unrestricted Current Funds. These funds
account for currently expendable resources. The
majority of these funds are completely unrestricted.
Certain” institutions, however, have reserved or
designated small portions of available resources for
various operating purposes specific to the individual
Institution.

Restricted Current Funds.  These funds
account for resources that donors or other outside
agencies have restricted for specific current
operating purposes.

LOAN FUNDS

Loan Funds account for resources available for
loans to students, faculty, or staff of higher
education institutions.

ENDOWMENT AND SIMILAR FUNDS

These funds account for endowments and quasi-
endowments. These funds are similar to trust funds.
The State must comply with the terms of any
applicable agreements.

PLANT FUNDS

Plant Funds account for transactions involving
physical properties of the higher education
institutions.

Unexpended Plant Funds. The Unexpended
Plant Funds subgroup accounts for resources that
institutions have available to finance the acquisition,
construction, or improvement of physical properties.
Resources that institutions have set aside for the
renewal and replacement of institutional properties
are also recorded in this fund. ~— Assets under
construction may be accounted for in this fund or in
the Investment in Plant Funds.

Retirement  of Indebtedness Funds. The
Retirement of Indebtedness Funds subgroup
includes amounts to pay debt service and to retire
indebtedness on institutional properties.

Investment in Plant Funds. The Investment in
Plant Funds subgroup accounts for resources that
the institution has expended for (and thus has
invested 1n3 its properties and any related
outstanding debt.

AGENCY FUNDS

Agency Funds account for amounts that hfigher
education ‘institutions hold as custodians or fiscal
agents for others.

FOUNDATIONS AND INSTITUTES FUNDS

Foundations and Institutes Funds account for
certain component units of the State's colleges and
universities, All but one of these component units
meet the criteria for blending but are presented in a
separate column because they use a basis of
accounting_different from the one followed by the
State's colleges and universities. ~ The South
Carolina Environmental Education Consortium

ualifies as a discrete c_om?_onent unit of one of the
tate’s universities but is still considered part of the
State’s primary government.

147



State of South Carolina
m

Combining Balance Sheet

HIGHER EDUCATION FUNDS
June 30, 1997

(Expressed in Thousands) CURRENT FUNDS
ENDOWMENT
LOAN AND SIMILAR
Unrestricted Restricted FUNDS FUNDS
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents...........................ccco. $ 311,977 $ 21,853 $ 4125 $ 42,058
Investments...........oc e 10,988 3,588 688 31,957
Securities lending investments.................................... 3,311 444 81 186
Receivables, net:
ACCOUNES. ..., 8,970 1,748 129 67
Patient and student. 68,069 — — —
StUdent 108NS. .......ooiiiei i — — 44,807 —
Loans and notes.............ccccovviiiniie — 114 — —
Due from Federal government and other grantors............. 5,252 46,917 55 -
Due from other Higher Education Funds......................... 51,248 67 45 935
Due from other funds 17,978 2,975 3 —
Advances to other funds..............cccoooiiiiii — — — —
INVENLOTIES. ...t 21,201 — — —
Prepaid long-term operating lease..................cccooeeven.n. — — — —
Other @ssets........coocooiiiiiiii 18,268 469 108 1,751
Property, plant, and equipment, net.......................ocoo — — — —
Total assets $ 518,262 $ 78,175 $ 50,041 $ 76,954
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities............................. $ 65,239 $ 5,525 $ 190 $ 216
Due to other Higher Education Funds 16,211 19,126 11 152
Duetoother funds................coooiiii 6,381 366 — —_
Interfund payables...................i 400 —_ — —
Advances from other funds..................ccoocoeii i —_ — — —
Deferred revenues. ... 34,546 576 - —
Deposits.........ccccrvreiiiiiii, 3,339 — — —
Amounts held in custody for others.. — — — —
Obligations under securities lending. 3,311 444 81 186
Notes payable...........ccoooiiiii —_ — — —
General obligation bonds payable.................... — — —_ —
Revenue bonds payable................... — — — —
Certificates of participation payable — — — —
Capital lease and installment debt obligations payable....... — — — —
Compensated absences payable......................c.ccoceeen 77,286 14 — —
Other liabilities including retainages payable...................... 314 12 — 10
Total liabilities 207,027 26,063 282 564
Fund Balances:
Investmentinplant............. — — — -
Reserved for:
Restricted fund balance..............cc..oooooioii — 52112 5,541 —
Federal government grants refundable.. - — 44,046 —
Endowment and similar funds....................ccccoooeeinn — — — 42,445
Debt requirements...............cccocoiiiiiii e, — — — —
Encumbrances............... 3,880 — — —
Other special purposes 5,905 — — —
Unreserved:
Designated for future years' expenditures...................... — — — —_
Designated for loan funds..................cccovevieii i, — — 172 —
Designated for quasi-endowments.......................cccoc....... — — — 33,945
Designated for plant funds..... ... —_ — —_ —_—
Designated for special purposes. 6,809 — — —
Undesignated...........ccocooceviiiiiiiiiicceee e 294,641 — — —
Total fund balances 311,235 52,112 49,759 76,390
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 518,262 $ 78,175 $ 50,041 $ 76,954
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State of South Carolina

#

PLANT FUNDS
Retirement Investment FOUNDATIONS
of in AGENCY AND
Unexpended Indebtedness Plant FUNDS INSTITUTES Eliminations Totals

$ 166,707 $ 45,205 $ — $ 47 3 41,129 $ — $ 637,785
7,958 — — 2,606 32,876 — 90,662
1,649 16,797 — 100 — — 22,568
1,450 545 — 409 1,239 — 15,557
— — — — 24,190 — 92,259
— — — — 20 — 44,827
— — — -— —_ — 114
905 —_ —_ —_— 1,656 - 54,785

13,708 432 — 82 2,257 (68,774) —
270 — — 240 — (527) 20,939

— 520 — — 32,640 (33,160) —
— — — — 415 — 21,616
—_ — — — 18,353 — 18,353
1 36 — — 12,755 — 33,388
26,760 — 2,775,422 — 39,381 — 2,841,563
$ 219,409 $ 63,535 $ 2,775,422 $ 8,168 $ 206,911 $ (102,461) $ 3,894,416
$ 12,265 $ 6,292 $ — $ 778 $ 8,341 $ — $ 98,846

2,151 777 — 38 30,308 (68,774) —
12 — — — — (527) 6,232
326 — 1,634 — — — 2,360
520 - 35,178 — — (33,160) 2,538
— 879 — — 3,809 — 39,910
— — — — — — 3,339
— — — 7,249 — — 7,249
1,649 16,797 — 100 — — 22,568
3,587 — 32,1 — 74,983 — 110,761
40,289 — 45,076 — — — 85,365
4,925 8 228,748 — 14,014 — 247 695
— — — — 22191 — 22,191
— — 24,488 — 902 — 25,390
— — — — 4,079 — 81,379
3,236 8 240 3 2,388 — 6,211
68,960 24,761 367,555 8,168 161,115 (102,461) 762,034
— — 2,407,867 —_ — — 2,407,867
78,595 23,279 — — 9,602 — 169,129
—_ — —_ —_ — —_ 44,046
— — — — — — 42,445
_ — — — 8,027 — 8,027
— -—_ — — — — 3,880
154 — —_ —_ — — 6,059
—_ —_ —_ —_ 4,260 — 4,260
— — — — — - 172
— — — — — — 33,945
71,700 15.495 — — — — 87.195
— — — — 4,864 — 11,673
— — — — 19,043 — 313,684
150,449 38,774 2,407,867 — 45,796 — 3,132,382
$ 219,409 $ 63,535 $ 2,775,422 $ 8,168 $ 206,911 $  (102,461) $ 3,894,416

L L
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State of South Carolina

—

Schedules--Budgetary General Fund

The Budgetary General Fund, which
corresponds to the General Funds column in the
Appropriation Act, is the State's gleneral operating
fund. The Budgetary General Fund _ differs
significantly from the GAAP-basis General Fund.

The schedules in this section have been
Freé)ared usm% the budgetary basis_of accounting.
In South Carolina, the budgeftary basis of accounting
is the cash basis with certain exceptions. The Notes
to the Financial Statements include a more detailed
description of the budgetary basis of accounting.

Photograph is not available
in web version of CAFR
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State of South Carolina
 _____ “

Appropriation Activity
BUDGETARY GENERAL FUND

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1997
(Expressed in Thousands)

Original
Function Appropriations Adjustments®

Legislative............oo e $ 27,714 $ 3,894
Judicial.......coooo e 34,645 3,225
Executive and administrative.............ccccoooiii 160,001 65,100
Educational............ T T B PR 2,062,862 115,842
Health......... e, 719,497 48,871
Social rehabilitation services............................. 129,267 30,760
Correctional and public safety................ccoooiiiiiiiiiiii 439,140 77,541
Conservation, natural resources, and development..................... 110,253 41,328
Regulatory............ e 55,804 2,665
Department of Transportation............................................ 586 4
Debt SEIVICE. ... 157,460 —
MISCElIANEOUS. ...ttt 385,472 154,195

Totals--appropriations for expenditures...............cccconeennn. 4,292,791 543,425
Transfer to designation for capital and nonrecurring................... 84,671 (1,104)

Totals--appropriations for expenditures and

intrafund transfers..........cccvumiiiiiiicc $ 4,377,462 $ 542,321

Note: See Note 2 to the Financial Statements for information on budgetary accounting and reporting.

*The adjustments shown above (expressed in thousands) may be summarized as follows:

Appropriations brought forward from 1995-96....................... $ 391,382
Governor vetoes of 1996-97 capital reserve appropriations .. (1,104)
Open-ended appropriations.................occcviiiiiiiiiii e 6,720
Supplemental appropriations............................................... 145 323
Total adjustments.........cccoo e, $ 542,321
L L~
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State of South Carolina

Appropriations
Adjusted Intrafund To Be Lapsed
Appropriations Expenditures Transfer Carried Forward Appropriations
$ 31,608 $ 27,507 $ — $ 4,101 $ -
37,870 35,034 — 2,823 13
225,101 164,236 — 58,904 1,861
2,178,704 2,111,951 — 62,393 4,360
768,368 742,824 — 25,544 —
160,027 132,595 — 27,432 —
516,681 478,064 — 38,617 —
151,581 118,945 — 32,636 —
58,559 56,088 — 2,470 1
590 586 — 4 —
157,460 156,809 — — 651
549,667 507,854 — 39,837 1,976
4,836,216 4,532,493 —_ 294,761 8,962
83,567 — 83,567 — —
$ 4,919,783 $ 4,532,493 $ 83,567 $ 294,761 $ 8,962

Photograph is not available

in web version of CAFR
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State of South Carolina

General Fund Reserve Activity

BUDGETARY GENERAL FUND
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Article 1II, Section 36, of the South Carolina
Constitution establishes requirements relating to the
General Fund Reserve, a reserve primarily designed
to prevent Budgetary General Fund deficits. On
November 4, 19%4, a Constitutional amendment
changed the funding requirement from five to four
percent of the Budgetary General Fund revenue of
the latest complete§ fiscal year. Provisions of the
amendment also allowed the percentage rate to be
reduced to three or increased to five percent by a
special vote of the General Assembly. An act that
took effect on March9, 1988, reduced the

November 4, 1988, a Constitutional amendment was
passed which permanently changed the funding
requirement for the Reserve to three percent of the
Budgetary General Fund revenue of the latest
completed fiscal year.

f amounts are withdrawn from the Reserve, the
State Constitution establishes a schedule for
restoring the Reserve to full funding within three
years.

Key amounts (dollars in thousands) for the
General Fund Reserve for the last ten fiscal years
are:

percentage rate to three percent. On

Actual

Start-of- End-of-

Fiscal Year Ended Year End-of-Year Full-Funding Year %

June 30 Balance Deposits Withdrawals Balance Amount2 Funded®
1988 $ 75381 $ 25,093 $ (14,382) $ 86,092 $ 80783 107%
1989 86,092 7,217 (5,310) 87,999 87,999 100%
1990 87,999 — — 87,999 94,114 94%
1991 87,999 6,115 (60,687) 33,427 98,843 34%
1992 33,427 4,729 (38.156) — 99,163 0%
1993 — 66,832 — 66,832 100,248 67%
1994 66,832 43,346 — 110,178 110,178 100%
1995 110,178 10,557 — 120,735 120,735 100%
1996 120,735 6,271 — 127,006 127,006 100%
1997 127,006 3,374 — 130,380 130,380 100%

aEquals 3% of the Budgetary General Fund revenues for the latest completed fiscal year.
bEquals (End-of-Year Balance/Full Funding Amount) x 100.
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State of South Carolina

Funds Earmarked for Public Education

BUDGETARY GENERAL FUND
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1997
(Expressed in Thousands)

Part 1, Section 1, of the 1996-97 Appropriation (including debt service on Capital Improvement
Act and Sections 12-21-1130, 12-33-38, 1£33-50, Bonds applicable to those agencies) and for other
61-4-250, 61-6-4260, and 61-6-4270 of the South school purposes. These legal requirements are
Carolina Code of Laws require that the State's considered to be satisfied if the amount of
portion of those Budgeta eneral Fund revenues Budgetary General Funds expended for these
shown below be expended only to support the particular agencies and for other school purposes
specific public education agencies listed below exceeds the State's portion of the specified revenues.

Gross budgetary-basis revenues:
Retail sales tax (4%) and excise tax—casual sales...............c.c....ocoeeiinnnn $ 1,634,622
Alcoholic liquors tax--60% POrtion...............cocieiiiiiiiiiiiiiii 20,014
Beer and wine tax--penalties and fines..................cooo 278
SOft AINKS 1AX. ... i 22,622
Gross budgetary-basis revenues.........cccccece e, 1,677,536
Less: Applicable portion of Act 162 of 1993 Spending -
LIMILAEON. .. ..t (19,396) *
Budgetary-basis revenues available for appropriation......................... 1,658,140

Total budgetary-basis revenues earmarked for public
education (95.5% of budgetary-basis revenues
available for appropriation)...........ccoeeimiiiiriiimn e, 1,583,524 b

Budgetary-basis expenditures:

Department of Education.................ccooeiiiiiii 1,367,235
State Board of Technical and Comprehensive Education............................. 144,654
Educational Television CommisSion............oooiieiiiiiiiiiiee 19,946
Wil Lou Gray Opportunity SChool...........cooovuiiiniiiiiii e 2,902
School forthe Deafand Blind..............coooniiiiiii e 11,339
John De La Howe SChoOL...........oooviiiiii e 3,502
Debt senice on Capital Improvement Bonds applicable to
BDOVE AQENCIES. .. ..t iieiiit et 22,167
Other SChOOI PUIPOSES. ........ccvveieeieeieeeeee e ee e et 12,459 ©
Total budgetary-basis expenditures for public education........................ 1,584,204
Excess of budgetary-basis expenditures over revenues -

earmarked for public education..........ccccomirireiiimmmien e $ 680

2Act 162 of 1993 limits annual appropriations to the lesser of: (1) the total recurring revenues collected in the preceding
fiscal year plus seventy-five percent (75%) of the revenue growth projected by the Board of Economic Advisors, or (2) the
estimated revenue projected by the Board of Economic Advisors.

*Title 6, Chapter 27 of the South Carolina Code of Laws is known as the State Aid to Subdivisions Act. That Act requires
the State to appropriate not less than four and one-half percent (4.5%) of the latest completed fiscal year’s total budgetary
General Fund revenues to local governments. Accordingly, the State’s portion of the above revenues is ninety-five and one-
half percent (95.5%) of the budgetary-basis revenues available for appropriation.

“The Other School Purposes expenditure category includes: (1)a State supplement to school districts to help pay the district

contribution toward public school employee benefits, (2) State expenditures for the Palmetto Unified School District,
(3) State expenditures for the Department of Juvenile Justice’s education program, and (4) State expenditures for the
Governor’s Office Division of Education.
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State of South Carolina

Expenditures by Function
GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES®
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Expressed in Thousands)
Function 1988 1989 1990 1991

General governmentb .................................. $ 232243 $ 261,929 314764 $ 251692
Education ... 223,623 240,491 270,237 262,697
Individual and family services®.................. 1,316,828 1,417,641 1,811,417 2,097,614
Health and environment™®........................ — — — —
Social services®........................... — — — —
Administration of justice.............................. 217,125 256,358 282,580 300,250
Resources and economic development...... 101,041 113,672 128,101 132,970
Transportation..........................ccco 190,345 249,285 265,443 274,895
Miscellaneous................ccccovvviiiinn. 50 70 30 —
Capital outlay®. ... 29,252 38,634 25,854 25,166
Debt service:

Principal retirement................................. 77,521 84,680 62,482 66,715

Interest and fiscal charges...................... 44,684 46,077 47,902 50,825
Intergovernmental.................................l 1,641,939 1,746,987 1,969,425 2,007,557

Total expenditures...........ccoecrveeeeriiccinnns $ 4074651 $ 4455824 $ 5,178,235 $ 5,470,381

2 General Governmental Fund Types include General and Special Revenue Funds.

b Until July 1, 1990, General Government expenditures included premiums for retiree health and dental insurance for all functional areas. Since July 1,
1990, the total premium cost has been allocated among the various functional areas. This resulted in a decrease in General Government expenditures

for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1991.

Beginning July 1, 1993, Individual and Family Services expenditures were divided into two new functional expenditure categories--Health and
Environment expenditures and Social Services expenditures. Prior years were not restated for this change.

Before July 1, 1995, the State used an Agency Fund to account for Medicaid assistance that the South Carolina Department of Health and Human
Services paid to other State agency providers. Effective July 1, 1995, the State began classifying these transactions as quasi-external transactions in the
Governmental Fund Types. Prior years were not restated for this change.

Until July 1, 1993, all highway construction projects were included as Capital Project expenditures. Since July 1, 1993, these projects have been

recorded in the Special Revenue Funds.
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For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30

State of South Carolina

—

1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 1997
$ 234002 $ 247452 $ 399456 $ 352,015 330,519 351,156
241,230 254,464 293,158 322,219 379,984 326,103

2,489,321 2,682,162 — — — —
— — 2,166,088 2,320,642 2,946,457 3,032,995
— — 678,772 697,958 709,747 700,442
304,488 312,961 405,503 457,008 488,425 543,456
128,059 131,021 138,937 139,635 155,302 150,131
274,957 290,740 214,574 203,837 218,366 230,384
22,819 24,572 391,848 385,698 398,776 436,798
94,538 104,316 82,602 88,765 82,997 97,728
53,911 53,316 49,107 48,796 50,574 53,493
2,033,486 2,096,679 2,157,866 2,358,823 2,636,440 2,805,584
$ 5876901 §$ 6,197,683 $ 6,977,911 §$ 7,375396 §$ 8,397,587 § 8,728,270

159



State of South Carolina

Revenues by Source

GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES®

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Expressed in Thousands)

Sources 1988 1989 1990 1991

Taxes:

individual income...................oiiiei . $ 1,130,898 $ 1225648 $ 1,361839 $ 1,377,825

Retail salesand use..................ccccoeee. 1,277,447 1,359,200 1,464,989 1,463,941

Other.......ccccoooiiiii e 904,198 958,058 918,270 914,729
Licenses, fees, and permits...................... 134,083 150,859 163,202 198,235
Interest and other investment

INCOME... .o 67,586 75,535 82,954 77,602
Federal............oooooi e 1,127,213 1,202,502 1,650,917 1,821,552
Departmental Services’ ..o 102,910 105,484 111,985 118,209
Contributions ........oooovivi 26,125 30,316 31,812 54,337
Fines and penalties.............ccccccviiveeeeenns 22,777 24,235 31,034 31,643
Other... ... 26,713 44 971 37,775 32,045

Total revenues...........cccevcecermmmnnreciisinns $ 4819950 $ 5,176,808 $ 5,854,777 $ 6,090,118

® General Governmental Fund Types include General and Special Revenue Funds.

° Before July 1, 1995, the State used an Agency Fund to account for Medicaid assistance that the South Carolina Department of Health and
Human Services paid to other State agency providers. Effective July 1, 1995, the State began classifying these transactions as quasi-external
transactions in the Governmental Fund Types. Prior years were not restated for this change.
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State of South Carolina

50—

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30

1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 1997
$ 1,386,724 1,481,592 1,519,030 1,646,375 § 1,809,287 1,927,600
1,515,223 1,628,766 1,756,157 1,892,801 2,034,484 2,141,864
911,036 983,546 999,077 1,059,846 1,149,342 1,163,889
218,726 300,699 307,939 255,570 243,502 258,960
55,634 44,702 48,596 82,412 98,728 113,199
2,140,272 2,228,180 2,682,498 2,787,132 2,907,661 3,087,312
137,112 153,781 161,375 215,485 535,117 533,395
81,232 101,242 82,507 89,797 106,606 115,739
43,610 44,182 51,926 54,881 55,340 58,170
43,552 52,796 53,195 59,716 73,639 70,424
$ 6,533,121 7,019,486 7,562,300 8,144,015 § 9,013,706 9,470,552
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State of South Carolina

Income and Sales Tax Rates
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal
Year Individual Corporate Retail
Ended Income Income Sales
June 30 Tax Tax Tax®
1988 3-7% 5.5% 5%
1989 3-7% 5% 5%
1990 3-7% 5% 5%
1991 2.75-7% 5% 5%
1992 250-7% 5% 5%
1993 2.50-7% 5% 5%
1994 2.50-7% 5% 5%
1995 2.50-7% 5% 5%
1996 2.50-7% 5% 5%
1997 2.50-7% 5% 5%

#Excludes the 2% accommodations tax and the local option sales tax.

Source: The Department of Revenue and Taxation

Photograph is not available
in web version of CAFR

Artifacts unearthed during the current renovation are being
preserved by the State Archaeologist and the State Museum.
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Net General Obligation Bonds and Notes Per Capita

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Debt Payable Net General
Gross From Higher Net General Bonded
Fiscal Bonded Education Bonded Debt
Year Ended Population® Debt” Funds Debt® Per
June 30 (Thousands) (Thousands) (Thousands) {Thousands) Capita
1988 3,400 $ 681,425 $ 28,185 $ 653,240 $ 192.13
1989 3,444 709,165 25,925 683,240 198.39
1990 3,486 807,911 28,071 779,840 223.71
1991 3,556 828,650 28,560 800,090 225.00
1992 3,595 876,305 44,570 831,735 231.36
1993 3,629 884,025 43,230 840,795 231.69
1994 3,643 929,571 40,420 889,151 244.07
1995 3,667 898,047 44,345 853,702 232.81
1996 3,699 1,007,394 41,900 965,494 261.01
1997 3,776 1,052,173 85,365 966,808 256.04

a Office of Research and Statistics, State Budget and Control Board.

State of South Carolina

b Includes general obligation bonds payable and general obligation bond anticipation notes of both the General Long-
Term Obligations Account Group and the Higher Education Funds and notes payable in the General Long-Term
Obligations Account Group.

c
Net general bonded debt is the gross general bonded debt less the general obligation debt payable not expected to
be repaid through general governmental resources (e.g., the debt payable from Higher Education Funds).

Note: Assessed value data is not presented because the State of South Carolina does not receive property tax

revenue.
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State of South Carolina

Computation of Legal Debt Margin

June 30, 1997
(Expressed in Thousands)

Section 59-107-90 of the South Carolina Code
of Laws limits State institution bonds legally
outstanding to $90 million.

Section 57-11-240 of the South Carolina Code
of Laws and Article X, Section 13 of the South
Carolina Constitution state that highway bonds may
be issued if such bonds are additionally secured by a
pledge of revenues designated by the General
Assembly for State highway purposes from taxes or
licenses imposed for using the public highways of
the State. The maximum annual debt service on all
highway bonds shall not exceed fifteen percent of

the proceeds received from the designated revenues
for the fiscal year next preceding.

Furthermore, Section 11-1%—430 states: "The
issuance of general obligation bonds of the State
must be limited so that the maximum annual debt
service on all general obligation bonds of the State
(excluding highway bonds, State institution bonds,
tax anticipation notes, and bond anticipation notes)
may not exceed five percent of the general revenues
of the State for the fiscal year next preceding
(excluding revenues which are authorized to be
pledged for State highway bonds and State
institution bonds)."

State institution bond IMItAtION............. e e, $ 90,000
Less: State institution bonds outstanding at June 30, 1997...............ccooiiiii 85,365
Legal debt margin at June 30, 1997--institution bonds.........ccccuiiiicerrsmrrcrrssrcnrccnncs e $ 4,635
1995-1996 Budgetary General Fund revenues pledged for highway bonds................................. $ 102,645
1995-1996 other revenues pledged for highway bonds.............c.ccoocoeiiiiiiii e, 299,386
1995-1996 revenues pledged for highway bONAS..........c.c.cooiiiiiiiiii e 402,031
15% of 1995-1996 revenues pledged for highway bonds..................ccooiiiiiiiiii 60,305
Less: maximum annual debt service for highway bonds® ...............c.cccooi oo 8,850
Legal debt service margin at June 30, 1997--highway bonds.........ccceemieriesniinssnicsniiininnns $ 51,455
1995-1996 Budgetary General FUN FEVENUES ..........cc.oooiviiioiiieiiieciiee et $ 4,345,991
Less: 1995-1996 Budgetary General Fund revenues pledged for

NIGRWAY BONAS ... ettt 102,645
Less: 1995-1996 transfers for institution bond debt service recorded as

Budgetary General FUNG FEVENUES. ............coi ittt 6,938
1995-1996 net Budgetary General Fund revenues. ... 4,236,408
5% of 1995-1996 net Budgetary General Fund revenues.....................ccoooiiiiiiiiiiie 211,820
Less: maximum annual debt service for general obligation bonds

excluding institution and highway bonds® ..o 143,544
Legal debt service margin at June 30, 1997--general obligation bonds

excluding institution and highway bonds..........cccimininincr e $ 68,276

2As of June 30, 1997, the maximum annual debt service will occur in the fiscal year ending June 30, 2011, for
highway bonds and in the fiscal year ending June 30, 1998, for general obligation bonds (excluding institution

and highway bonds).
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#

Ratio of Annual Debt Service Expenditures
for General Obligation Debt to Total
General Governmental Expenditures®

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Dollars in Thousands)

State of South Carolina

Fiscal Ratio of
Year Total General Debt Service to
Ended Debt Governmental General Governmental
June 30 Principal Interest Service Expenditures Expenditures
1988 $ 77,521  $ 44,684 122,205 4,074,651 3.00%
1989 84,680 46,077 130,757 4,455,824 2.93%
1990 62,482 47,902 110,384 5,178,235 2.13%
1991 66,715 50,825 117,540 5,470,381 2.15%
1992 94,538 53,911 148,449 5,876,901 2.53%
1993 104,316 53,316 157,632 6,197,683 2.54%
1994 82,602 49,107 131,709 6,977,911 1.89%
1995 88,765 48,796 137,561 7,375,396 1.87%
1996 82,997 50,574 133,571 8,397,587 1.59%
1997 97,728 53,493 151,221 8,728,270 1.73%

’ General Governmental Expenditures include the General and Special Revenue Funds.

o

Photograph is not available
in web version of CAFR

Bearing evidence of fire and found on the site of the first State House, this
lock was probably from one of the principal entries.
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State of South Carolina

Revenue Bond Coverage—Enterprise Funds®

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Dollars in Thousands)

SOUTH CAROLINA HOUSING FINANCE AND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY®*

Fiscal
Year Direct

Ended Gross Principal Operating

June 30 Revenues Proceeds Expenses”

1988 $ 75,642 3 42,642 $ 4,472
1989 69,673 41,888 4,758
1990 71,017 45,028 5,853
1991 73,984 44,896 5,265
1992 58,431 103,495 5314
1993 64,465 94,666 5,797
1994 53,871 116,082 5,703
1995 52,576 44,228 6,611
1996 51,109 55,527 6,093
1997 50,520 47,254 6,273

SOUTH CAROLINA EDUCATION ASSISTANCE AUTHORITY®®

Fiscal ,
Year Direct

Ended Gross Principal Operating

June 30 Revenues Proceeds Expensesb

1988 $ 14,387 $ 8,954 $ 3,436
1989 19,541 10,677 7.477
1990 24,312 15,249 4,663
1991 22,969 18,087 8,320
1992 32,411 23,163 9,025
1993 35,697 28,402 11,299
1994 35,207 32,965 6,450
1995 41,164 36,715 7,641
1996 44 597 47,735 7,108
1997 45,130 43,907 7,479

Net Revenue
Available for

Debt Service

113,812
106,803
110,192
113,615
166,612
153,334
164,250

90,193
100,543

91,501

Net Revenue
Availabie for

Debt Service

19,905
22,741
34,898
32,736
46,549
52,800
61,722
70,238
85,224
81,558

@ Computations are based on data provided by the authorities. There may be classification differences between this data and data found elsewhere

in this report.
® Excludes depreciation, amortization, and interest expense.

- e Direct operating expenses for years before 1989 have been restated to exclude housing assistance payments.

4 These entities use bond proceeds to make loans to non-governmental parties. Accordingly, principal proceeds received are included as a

revenue in the calculation of the Net Revenue Available for Debt Service.

® In years prior to 1994, the South Carolina Education Assistance Authority Fund included the Student Loan Corporation. Previous years have not

been restated.
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State of South Carolina

# -

Debt Service Requirements

Coverage

Principal Interest Total Ratio
$ 10,075 $ 53,435 $ 63,510 1.79
10,125 55,412 65,537 1.63
10,010 56,661 66,671 1.65
10,025 59,359 69,384 1.64
11,325 59,468 70,793 2.35
43,103 49,503 92,606 1.66
81,965 39,405 121,370 1.35
11,715 35,307 47,022 1.92
9,880 34,492 44,372 2.27
11,070 33,588 44,658 2.05

Debt Service Requirements

Coverage

Principal Interest Total Ratio
$ 9,815 $ 5,655 $ 15,470 1.29
7,330 7477 14,807 1.54
11,440 11,864 23,304 1.50
17,665 12,419 30,084 1.09
21,320 14,284 35,604 1.31
22,480 17,507 39,987 1.32
24,895 19,199 44,094 1.40
34,795 21,469 56,264 1.25
32,155 23,563 55,718 1.53
29,395 21,971 51,366 1.59

The Palmetto Monument, Jet Lowe, 1995

Photograph is not available The cast iron monument was

in web version of CAFR designed and fabricated by
Christopher Werner of Charleston
in 1852; it was purchased by the
State as a memorial to the Palmetto
Regiment which fought in the
Mexican War.

f
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State of South Carolina
“

Demographic Statistics
Last Ten Years

Median
Per Capita Age® School Unemployment
Population? Income® (Years) Enrollment® Rate®
at Year Ended at at at

Year June 30 December 31 June 30 June 30 December 31
1987 3,369,000 $ 12,283 30.6 672,943 5.1%
1988 3,400,000 13,192 31.0 676,847 4.3%
1989 3,444,000 13,884 314 678,050 4.6%
1990 3,486,310 15,106 31.7 677,356 52%
1991 3,556,000 15,482 32.2 681,717 6.5%
1992 3,595,000 16,467 326 685,744 6.7%
1993 3,629,000 17,136 32.9 688,513 7.4%
1994 3,643,000 18,044 33.3 692,515 5.3%
1995 3,667,000 19,031 337 701,140 5.5%
1996 3,699,000 19,755 34.1 699,058 6.1%
1997 3,776,000 d 345 708,751 d

Sources:

?Office of Research and Statistics, State Budget and Control Board

®South Carolina Department of Education

“South Carolina Employment Security Commission

‘Not yet available.

— —— S ——
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State of South Carolina

Property Value, Construction, and Bank Deposits

Last Ten Years
(Dollars in Millions)
Nonresidential Residential
Construction Construction® Property Value®
Thousands of Number of Bank Nonresidential Residential
Square Feet at Units at Value at Deposits at at at
Year December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 June 30 June 30
1986 21,684 40,390 $ 1,581 $ 22,907 $ 25,915 $ 27,149
1987 26,085 26,991 1,489 23,612 28,364 29,114
1988 24,598 25,563 1,438 26,022 34,127 31,241
1989 20,263 20,530 1,252 27,849 34,936 33,869
1990 20,866 22,454 1,475 29,091 37,079 38,852
1991 18,504 19,309 1,372 29,528 39,089 41,220
1992 16,747 20,853 1,685 30,224 41,104 45,926
1993 18,139 21,186 1,662 31,005 43,084 50,963
1994 19,566 23,670 1,898 30,475 44,204 54,118
1995 23,618 22,400 1,826 33,035 45,334 57,987
1996 26,381 28,281 2,402 30,032 ¢ ¢
1997 c c c c d d

@ The residential construction statistics for 1986 include mobile home permits; later years do not.
b Property taxes do not represent a source of revenue for the State.
° Not yet available.

d
Due to legislation requiring that tax assessments be based on the prior year's property value, neither the 1996 nor 1997
information is yet available.

Sources: Board of Economic Advisors, State Budget and Control Board; Department of Revenue; University of South
Carolina, College of Business Administration, Division of Research.
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State of South Carolina

Largest Manufacturing Companies®
December 31, 1996

Number of Plants Number of Employees
Name in South Carolina in South Carolina
Westinghouse Electric Corporation............. 3 11,861
Springs Industries, Incorporated.................. 18 9,097
Michelin Tire Corporation............................ 9 7,033
Milliken & Company..............oeceeevviviiieennnn. 26 6,813
Robert Bosch GmbH................ccoo. 6 4,401
Hoechst AG........ccccoeiiiiiiiieie e, 5 3,833
WestPoint Stevens............c.ccooeiiin, 6 3,099
Ingersoll-Rand Company............cccccceenen. 5 3,045
W. R. Grace & Company........c..cccceeveereeeees 5 2,938
Greenwood Mills, Incorporated.................... 9 2,874
AB Electrolux Sweden.............c..coeevveeiinnnnn 2 2,800
KEMET Corporation............ccccccooiiiiiieiiinnne. 4 2,736
AlliedSignal, Incorporated........................... 5 2,669
Avondale Mills..........c.ooiiiiiiiie e, 7 2,487
E. l. du Pont de Nemours............cccccceerunnnnn 4 2,442
General Electric Company...........ccccecuveeene. 2 2,400
Ryobi North America, Incorporated............. 3 2,345
Sonoco Products Company...........ccccueeee.... 2 2,341
Owens-Corning Fiberglas Corporation......... 4 2,244
Koninklijke Ahold NV.............ccooiiiiiiinnn, 1 2,100
International Paper............c...oociieviineeneen, 5 2,037

Based on number of employees. This list includes all companies with 2,000 or more employees.

Source: 1997-98 South Carolina Industrial Directory.
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State of South Carolina

#

Miscellaneous Statistics
December 31, 1996 (Except as Noted)

Date of ratification--U. S. CONSHLUON..............cooriririirreceeccciss s 1788*
Form of QOVEIMMENL.........c.ooiiiii i Legislative-Executive-Judicial
Miles of State NIGhWaYS.........cccoeriiiiecci e 64,356"
Land area (SQUAre MIlES)........cooieur it 30,111¢

State police protection:

Police and sheriff agenCies.............o.cviiriiieir i 2924
Total number of SWOorn offiCers............ccoioiiiiiiiii 8.871¢

Higher education (universities, colleges, and
technical education centers):

NUMDEF Of CAMPUSES.......vionieeieeitee ittt ees it et sae et 61°¢

NUMDBEr Of SEUAENES......ooviiiiiii et 201,291¢
Recreation:

Number of State parks and historical Sites................cccoi 56

Area Of State PATKS...........oiveireieeeieir it 81,589 acres’

ATEA OF SR FOTESES. .. .o ettt ettt ettt sttt e sreens 68,188 acres’®
State employees--all funds (at June 30,1997).........cccoiii 68,292
Sources:

41997 Legislative Manual

®Department of Transportation

°Office of Research and Statistics, State Budget and Control Board
dState Law Enforcement Division

*Commission on Higher Education

fDepartment of Parks, Recreation, and Tourism

SForestry Commission

"Office of State Budget, State Budget and Control Board

#
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